
 

Eugene City Council Agenda May 27, 2014 

 

 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA    
May 27, 2014May 27, 2014May 27, 2014May 27, 2014        

    

    

5:30 p.m.5:30 p.m.5:30 p.m.5:30 p.m.    CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONCITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONCITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONCITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION    

        Harris HallHarris HallHarris HallHarris Hall    

        125 East 8125 East 8125 East 8125 East 8thththth    AvenueAvenueAvenueAvenue    

        Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401    

    

7:30 p.m.7:30 p.m.7:30 p.m.7:30 p.m.    CITY COUNCIL MEETING CITY COUNCIL MEETING CITY COUNCIL MEETING CITY COUNCIL MEETING     

        Harris HallHarris HallHarris HallHarris Hall    

        111125252525    EaEaEaEast st st st 8888thththth    AvenueAvenueAvenueAvenue    

                Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401    

    

    
    

Meeting of Meeting of Meeting of Meeting of May 27, 2014May 27, 2014May 27, 2014May 27, 2014; ; ; ;     

Her Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy Presiding    

    

                                                CouncilorsCouncilorsCouncilorsCouncilors 

     George Brown, President   Pat Farr, Vice President 

     Mike Clark       George Poling 

     Chris Pryor       Claire Syrett  

     Betty Taylor       Alan Zelenka 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Harris Hall 

 
5:30 pm A. WORK SESSION: 

Climate Recovery Proposal 
 



 

Eugene City Council Agenda May 27, 2014 

6:15 pm B. ACTION: 
    South Willamette Street Improvement 
Plan 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Harris Hall 

 
 1. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

 
 2. PUBLIC FORUM 

 
 3. CONSENT CALENDAR 

(Note:  Time permitting, action on the Consent Calendar may be taken at the 5:30 
p.m. work session.) 

 
A. Approval of City Council Minutes 
B. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda 
C. Execution of Document to Provide for Payment of Veterans 

Affairs Clinic’s Systems Development Charges 
 

 4. PUBLIC HEARING:  
An Ordinance Concerning Prohibited Acts in the Downtown Activity 
Zone and Amending Section 4.872 of the Eugene Code, 1971 

 
 5. WORK SESSION: 

 Proposed Changes to the Eugene Code Related to Eugene 
Skateboard and Bike Laws 

 
*time approximate 

 
 
The Eugene City Council welcomes your interest in these agenda items.  This meeting location is wheelchair-
accessible.  For the hearing impaired, FM assistive-listening devices are available or an interpreter can be provided 
with 48 hours' notice prior to the meeting.  Spanish-language interpretation will also be provided with 48 hours' 
notice.  To arrange for these services, contact the receptionist at 541-682-5010.  City Council meetings are telecast 
live on Metro Television, Comcast channel 21, and rebroadcast later in the week.   
 
City Council meetings and work sessions are broadcast live on the City’s Web site.  In addition to the live broadcasts, 
an indexed archive of past City Council webcasts is also available.  To access past and present meeting webcasts, 
locate the links at the bottom of the City’s main Web page (www.eugene-or.gov). 
 
El Consejo de la Ciudad de Eugene aprecia su interés en estos asuntos de la agenda.  El sitio de la reunión tiene 
acceso para sillas de ruedas.  Hay accesorios disponibles para personas con afecciones del oído, o se les puede 
proveer un interprete avisando con 48 horas de anticipación.  También se provee el servicio de interpretes en 
idioma español avisando con 48 horas de anticipación.  Para reservar estos servicios llame a la recepcionista al 541-
682-5010.  Todas las reuniones del consejo estan gravados en vivo en Metro Television, canal 21 de Comcast y 
despues en la semana se pasan de nuevo.   
 
 
  

For more information, contact the Council Coordinator at 541-682-5010, 

or visit us online at www.eugenewww.eugenewww.eugenewww.eugene----or.gov.or.gov.or.gov.or.gov. 



 

 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY
 
  

Work Session: 
 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014  
Department:  Central Services   
www.eugene-or.gov 
  
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
The City Council has previously approved targets related to reducing Eugene’s greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions and use of fossil fuels. More recently 
Alan Zelenka to consider an ordinance brought forward by Our Children’s
expressed interest in adding more structure and significance to
 
Attachment A, Climate Recovery Proposal, outlines a plan that 
to formalize goals that can be included in 
the following components: 
 
Goals 

• By 2020, all City-owned facilities and City operations shall be carbon neutral, either by 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions to zero or, if necessary, funding of appro
carbon offset mechanisms or the purchase of approved offsets for any remaining emissions.

• By 2030, the City organization shall reduce its use of fossil fuels by 50
2010 usage. 

• By 2030, all business, individuals and others livi
reduce the combined use of fossil fuels by 50

 
Assessment 

• Within six months of the council’s adoption of the above goals and actions, the 
Manager shall complete an assessme

• To reach those adopted climate action goals, the City Council shall establish numerical 
targets and benchmarks for achieving the required reductions.

• The City Manager shall propose options for meeting the goals 
line (TBL) assessment of the options including a cost

 
Review and Action 

• The City Manager shall present to 
goal or “carbon budget” for greenhouse gas 
350 parts per million (ppm) of CO2 in the atmosphere by the year 2100.

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter

 

OUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

UMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 

Work Session:  Climate Recovery Proposal  

 Agenda Item Number:  
 Staff Contact:  

Contact Telephone Number:  

City Council has previously approved targets related to reducing Eugene’s greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions and use of fossil fuels. More recently at a work session requested by Councilor 

Zelenka to consider an ordinance brought forward by Our Children’s Trust, 
adding more structure and significance to climate recovery

Attachment A, Climate Recovery Proposal, outlines a plan that the council could approve in order 
to formalize goals that can be included in either an ordinance or resolution. The proposal includes 

owned facilities and City operations shall be carbon neutral, either by 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions to zero or, if necessary, funding of appro
carbon offset mechanisms or the purchase of approved offsets for any remaining emissions.
By 2030, the City organization shall reduce its use of fossil fuels by 50 percent

By 2030, all business, individuals and others living or working in the City collectively shall 
reduce the combined use of fossil fuels by 50 percent compared to 2010 usage.  

ouncil’s adoption of the above goals and actions, the 
anager shall complete an assessment of current efforts to reach those goals. 

To reach those adopted climate action goals, the City Council shall establish numerical 
targets and benchmarks for achieving the required reductions. 
The City Manager shall propose options for meeting the goals and provide a triple bottom 

assessment of the options including a cost-benefit analysis. 

The City Manager shall present to the council for adoption, a numerical community
goal or “carbon budget” for greenhouse gas emission reductions consistent with achieving 
350 parts per million (ppm) of CO2 in the atmosphere by the year 2100.

Document Converter\temp\3421.docx 

Agenda Item Number:  A 
Staff Contact:  Matt McRae  

Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5649 
 

City Council has previously approved targets related to reducing Eugene’s greenhouse gas 
session requested by Councilor 

Trust, the council 
climate recovery commitments.  

ouncil could approve in order 
either an ordinance or resolution. The proposal includes 

owned facilities and City operations shall be carbon neutral, either by 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions to zero or, if necessary, funding of approved local 
carbon offset mechanisms or the purchase of approved offsets for any remaining emissions. 

percent compared to 

ng or working in the City collectively shall 
compared to 2010 usage.   

ouncil’s adoption of the above goals and actions, the City 
nt of current efforts to reach those goals.  

To reach those adopted climate action goals, the City Council shall establish numerical 

and provide a triple bottom 

ouncil for adoption, a numerical community-wide 
emission reductions consistent with achieving 

 

 

-3-

Item A.



 

 
C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3421.docx 

• The City Manager shall report to the City Council on progress in reaching adopted climate 
action goals following the council’s adoption of the numerical targets and benchmarks. 
Progress reports shall be provided in specified time frames including an assessment after 
five years to determine greenhouse gas emission reductions to date and the status in 
reaching the established targets and benchmarks. 

• If the five-year comprehensive assessment indicates that the City is not reaching the 
adopted targets and benchmarks, the City Manager shall conduct an analysis of possible 
actions to get back on track to achieve the next adopted benchmark, together with a TBL 
analysis of those options, as well as provide the council with potential revisions to the plan. 

 
Once the council has finalized the Climate Recovery Proposal, the form in which the outlined 
commitments are enacted could be determined. Options are to either move forward with an 
ordinance, as suggested by Our Children’s Trust, which is usually used to regulate the behavior of 
the community or move forward with a resolution.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Existing Eugene Climate and Energy Goals 
In 2008 and 2009, upon recommendation from the Sustainability Commission, the Eugene City 
Council:  

• Approved a formal goal of making all City-owned facilities and City operations carbon 
neutral by 2020. 

• Directed the City Manager to develop a community climate and energy action plan that 
includes a carbon emissions reduction goal and that will aim to reduce total (not per 
capita) community wide fossil fuel consumption 50 percent by 2030. 

 
While the City of Eugene does not have ultimate control over community-wide greenhouse gas 
emissions, the City does have the power to convene and collaborate with partners, and support 
progress toward shared community-wide goals. 
 
Existing Eugene Climate and Energy Plans 
Internal Climate Action Plan 
The City developed an Internal Climate Action Plan (2009) which contains action items for 
reducing the greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions associated with City operations and facilities. The 
Plan when fully implemented is designed to achieve a 55 percent reduction in greenhouse gas 
emissions, with the remaining 45 percent of emissions addressed through the purchase of “carbon 
offsets.” The purchase of offsets is estimated to cost $122,000/year starting in 2020. 
 
Community Climate and Energy Action Plan 
The City developed the Community Climate and Energy Action Plan (2010), though it was not 
adopted by the City Council. The greenhouse gas emissions targets contained in the plan are 
aligned with those set by the State, including. 

• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions 10 percent below 1990 levels by 2020 and 75 percent 
below 1990 levels by 2050. 

• These targets mirror the Oregon State greenhouse gas emissions targets 

-4-

Item A.



 

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3421.docx 

 
 

• Reduce community wide fossil fuel use 50 percent by 2030 
• These targets are unique to Eugene  
• Identify actions to adapt to climate change and rising and volatile energy prices 

 
Progress on Climate Action 
Carbon neutral goal for City operations and facilities 
Recent progress reports to the City Manager indicate that the City is not on track to meet the goal 
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
The 2010 Internal Greenhouse Gas Inventory contains long-term organizational energy use 
trends.  The report can be found on the City of Eugene website:  
http://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/9467  
 
Community fossil fuel reduction goal 
In spring 2013, staff released a 2013 CEAP Progress Report that summed up progress toward local 
climate and energy goals: 
 

Community-wide energy consumption continues to trend downward. Total electricity use has 
been flat over the last few years but is down 15 percent since 2000. Gasoline and diesel 
consumption has dropped 16 percent since 2005 including two percent over the last year. Natural 
gas consumption, down about one percent in 2012, has declined more than 12 percent since 2006. 
All of this while Eugene’s population continues to increase, growing eight percent between 2005 
and 2011. These are hopeful trends that demonstrate we are succeeding in substantially reducing 
our reliance on fossil fuels.  
 
Looking at individual actions, in the 12 months between September 2011 and September 2012, 
several recommendations contained in the Community Climate and Energy Action Plan were 
completed while others remain unchanged. 

 
The full 2013 CEAP Progress Report can be found on the City of Eugene website:  
http://www.eugene-or.gov/sustainability.  
 
 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
The City has existing adopted greenhouse gas emissions and fossil fuel consumption targets: 

• Achieve carbon-neutral internal operations by 2020 
• Reduce total community-wide fossil fuel consumption 50 percent by 2030 

 
The Community Climate and Energy Action Plan contains a community-wide greenhouse gas 
emissons target: 

• Reduce community-wide greenhouse gas emissions 10 percent below 1990 levels by 2020 
and 75 percent below 1990 levels by 2050 

 
The City maintains a number of policies directly related to community-wide energy consumption 
including, but not limited to: 

-5-

Item A.



 

 
C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3421.docx 

• Growth Management Policies 
• Green Building Policy (2006) 
• Sustainability Resolution (2000) 
• Environmental Policy 
• Sustainable Practices Resolution (2006) 
• Sustainable Procurement Policy (2008) 

 
This proposal could effect: 

• Eugene Community Climate and Energy Action Plan 
• Eugene Internal Climate Action Plan 
• Eugene Pedestrian Bicycle Master Plan 
• Regional Transportation System Plan/ Eugene Transportation System Plan 
• Metro Plan/ Eugene Comprehensive Plan: Envision Eugene 
• Regional Prosperity Economic Development Plan 
• Eugene/Springfield Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan 

 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Related to Contents of Climate Recovery Proposal 

1. Approve Attachment A, Climate Recovery Proposal. 
2. Revise and approve Attachment A, Climate Recovery Proposal.  

 
Related to Form for Climate Recovery Proposal  

1.   Direct the City Manager to draft a resolution based on the approved Climate Recovery 
Proposal. 

2.   Direct the City Manager to draft an ordinance and schedule a Public Hearing for July 21 
based on the approved Climate Recovery Proposal. 

 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager does not have a recommendation at this time. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
No motions provided. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Climate Recovery Proposal 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Matt McRae  
Telephone:   541-682-5649   
Staff E-Mail:  matt.a.mcrae@ci.eugene.or.us  

-6-

Item A.



Climate Recovery Proposal - Page 1 of 2 

ATTACHMENT A 
Climate Recovery Proposal 

• Council adopts the following:  
Ø By 2020, all City-owned facilities and City operations shall be carbon neutral, 

either by reducing greenhouse gas emissions to zero or, if necessary, funding of 
approved local carbon offset mechanisms or the purchase of approved offsets 
for any remaining emissions. 

Ø By 2030, the City organization shall reduce its use of fossil fuels by 50% 
compared to 2010 usage. 

Ø By 2030, all business, individuals and others living or working in the City 
collectively shall reduce the total (not per capita) use of fossil fuels by 50% 
compared to 2010 usage.   

• Within 6 months of the Council’s adoption of the above goals and actions, the city 
manager shall complete an assessment of current efforts to reach those goals.  This 
assessment shall include a review and analysis of: 

Ø Trends in current energy use for the community and for City operations and 
facilities; and 

Ø Progress in implementing the Community Climate and Energy Action Plan and 
the Internal Climate Action Plan.  

• To reach those adopted climate action goals, the City Council shall establish numerical 
targets and benchmarks for achieving the required reductions through the following 
steps: 

Ø Within 12 months of the adoption of these goals, the City Manager shall propose 
for adoption by the City Council: 
ü Numerical greenhouse gas and fossil fuel reduction targets equivalent to 

achieving the related goals.  
ü 2-year and 5-year benchmarks for reaching the numerical targets. 

Ø The City Manager shall present to Council for adoption, a numerical community-
wide goal or “carbon budget” for greenhouse gas emission reductions consistent 
with achieving 350 parts per million (ppm) of CO2 in the atmosphere by the year 
2100. 
ü The proposed community-wide goal shall include numerical targets and 

associated benchmarks.  
ü The city manager shall subsequently propose for adoption by administrative 

rule a specified baseline amount and appropriate greenhouse gas inventory 
methodology. 

Ø The City Manager shall propose options for meeting goals and provide a triple 
bottom line assessment of the options including a cost-benefit analysis. 

-7-

Item A.



Climate Recovery Proposal - Page 2 of 2 

 
 

• The City Manager shall report to City Council on progress in reaching adopted climate 
action goals following the Council’s adoption of the numerical targets and benchmarks. 

Ø Provide a progress report every 2 years. 
Ø Provide a comprehensive report every 5 years that includes an assessment of 

greenhouse gas emission reductions to date and the status in reaching the 
established targets and benchmarks. 

Ø Update the Community Climate and Energy Action Plan and the Internal Climate 
Action Plan every five years, which shall be based on the updated greenhouse 
gas inventory. 
 

• If the 5-year comprehensive assessment indicates that the City is not reaching the 
adopted targets and benchmarks, the City Manager shall: 

Ø Conduct an analysis of possible actions to get back on track to achieve the next 
adopted benchmark, together with a TBL analysis of those options. 

Ø Develop for Council consideration potential revisions to the plan that reflect the 
necessary actions to achieve the next adopted benchmark. 

 

-8-

Item A.



 

-9-

Item
 A

.



Matt McRae 
City of Eugene 

Climate and Energy Analyst 
(541) 682-5649 

matt.a.mcrae@ci.eugene.or.us 
www.eugene-or.gov/sustainability  

 

-10-

Item
 A

.



Outline 

1. National Climate Assessment 
 
2. Local Government Action 
 
3. Climate Recovery Proposal 
 

-11-

Item
 A

.



“Impacts related to climate 
change are already 

evident…and are expected to 
become increasingly 

disruptive…” 
 

National Climate Assessment 
May 2014 

 

-12-

Item
 A

.



National Climate Assessment 
May 2014 

 
 

The warming of the past 50 
years is primarily due to human 

activity. 
 

-13-

Item
 A

.



Climate change threatens 
human health, infrastructure, 
water, agriculture, and natural 

ecosystems. 
 

National Climate Assessment 
May 2014 

 

-14-

Item
 A

.



Planning to address climate 
change is becoming more 

widespread….    
 

“….but current implementation 
efforts are insufficient to avoid 

increasingly negative social, 
environmental, and economic 

consequences.” 

National Climate Assessment 
May 2014 

 

-15-

Item
 A

.



National Climate Assessment: 
Infrastructure 

Urban infrastructure systems are 
heavily interdependent meaning 

climate-related disruptions in 
one system will almost always 
result in impacts to multiple 

systems. 

-16-

Item
 A

.



National Climate Assessment: 
Unequal Impacts 

Climate-related vulnerability of 
urban residents and 

communities are influenced by 
pronounced social inequalities. 

-17-

Item
 A

.



Eugene Takes Action 
2010 Community Climate 

and Energy Action Plan  
2009 Internal Climate 

Action Plan  

-18-

Item
 A

.



Local Governments With Established 
Greenhouse Gas Targets 

Homer, AK 
Flagstaff, AZ 
Tucson, AZ 
Alameda, CA 
Albany, CA 
American Canyon, CA 
Arcata, CA 
Benicia, CA 
Berkeley, CA 
Calistoga, CA 
Chula Vista, CA 
East Palo Alto, CA 
El Cerrito, CA 
Emeryville, CA 
 

Fremont, CA 
Hayward, CA 
Humboldt County, CA 
Los Altos Hills, CA 
Los Angeles, CA 
Marin County, CA 
Napa County, CA 
Napa, CA 
Novato, CA 
Oakland, CA 
Palo Alto, CA 
Piedmont, CA 
Pittsburg, CA 
Richmond, CA 
Sacramento County, CA 
Sacramento, CA 
Saint Helena, CA 

San Anselmo, CA 
San Carlos, CA 
San Diego, CA 
San Francisco, CA 
San Jose, CA 
San Leandro, CA 
San Luis Obispo, CA 
San Rafael, CA 
San Ramon, CA 
Santa Cruz, CA 
Santa Monica, CA 
Sonoma City, CA 
Sonoma County, CA 
Tracy, CA 
Union City, CA 
Vallejo, CA 

Walnut Creek, CA 
Yountville, CA 
Aspen, CO 
Boulder, CO 
Carbondale, CO 
Denver, CO 
Fort Collins, CO 
Gunnison County, CO 
La Plata County, CO 
Bridgeport, CT 
Hamden, CT 
Hartford, CT 
New Haven, CT 
Stamford, CT 
Broward County, FL 
Collier County, FL 
 

Source: ICLEI 2011 annual report 

-19-

Item
 A

.



Pittsburgh, PA 
Upper Dublin, PA 
Charleston, SC 
Chattanooga, TN 
Franklin, TN 
Knoxville, TN 
Nashville, TN 
Oak Ridge, TN 
Austin, TX 
Dallas, TX 
Grapevine, TX 
Park City, UT 
Alexandria, VA 
Arlington County, VA 
Blacksburg, VA 
Charlottesville, VA 
Loudoun County, VA 
Roanoke County, VA 
Roanoke, VA 

Galloway, NJ 
Hamilton, NJ 
Maplewood, NJ 
Albuquerque, NM 
Las Vegas, NV 
Bedford, NY 
Dobbs Ferry, NY 
New Castle, NY 
New York, NY 
Tompkins County, NY 
Westchester County, NY 
Akron, OH 
Cincinnati, OH 
Eugene, OR 
Portland, OR 
Cranberry Township, PA 
Haverford, PA 
Montgomery County, PA 
Philadelphia, PA 

Williamstown, MA 
Worcester, MA 
Annapolis, MD 
Baltimore, MD 
Chevy Chase, MD 
Montgomery County, MD 
Queen Anne's County, MD 
Takoma Park, MD 
Bath, ME 
Falmouth, ME 
Ann Arbor, MI 
Grand Traverse County, MI 
Minneapolis, MN 
Northfield, MN 
Columbia, MO 
Creve Coeur, MO 
Kansas City, MO 
Winston-Salem, NC 
Keene, NH 

Local Governments With Adopted 
Greenhouse Gas Targets 

Key West, FL 
Miami, FL 
Miami-Dade County, FL 
Tallahassee, FL 
Atlanta, GA 
Blaine County, ID 
Chicago, IL 
Mission, KS 
Amherst, MA 
Belmont, MA 
Boston, MA 
Brookline, MA 
Cambridge, MA 
Falmouth, MA 
Medford, MA 
Nantucket, MA 
Newton, MA 
Northampton, MA 
Somerville, MA 
 

-20-

Item
 A

.



• Arrest emissions by 2010 
 

• 10% below 1990 levels by 2020 
 

•  75% below 1990 levels by 2050 
 
 
        

Oregon 
Greenhouse Gas Targets 

-21-

Item
 A

.



Eugene Climate Recovery Proposal 

 
By 2020, all City-owned facilities and City 
operations shall be carbon neutral. 
 
By 2030, the City organization shall reduce its 
use of fossil fuels by 50%. 
 
By 2030, collectively reduce the combined use 
of fossil fuels by 50%. 
 

1. Establish and Clarify Goals 

-22-

Item
 A

.



Eugene Climate Recovery Proposal 

 
Complete an assessment of current efforts to 
reach those goals.  
 
Establish numerical targets and benchmarks 
for achieving the required reductions. 
 
Propose options for meeting the goals and 
provide a triple bottom line assessment of the 
options including a cost-benefit analysis. 
  

1. Establish and Clarify Goals 
 
2. Assess Current Efforts 
 
 
 

-23-

Item
 A

.



Eugene Climate Recovery Proposal 

 
The City Manager shall present a greenhouse gas 
emission target consistent with achieving 350 parts 
per million of atmospheric CO₂ 
 

1. Establish and Clarify Goals 
 
2. Assess Current Efforts 
 
3. Develop A Science-Based Community 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Goal 
 
 
 

-24-

Item
 A

.



Eugene Climate Recovery Proposal 

 
The City Manager shall report to City Council on 
progress in reaching adopted climate action goals 
 

1. Establish and Clarify Goals 
 
2. Assess Current Efforts 
 
3. Develop A Science-Based Community Greenhouse 
Gas Reduction Goal 
 
4. Report Progress 
 

-25-

Item
 A

.



Eugene Climate Recovery Proposal 

1. Establish and Clarify Goals 
 
2. Assess Current Efforts 
 
3. Develop A Science-Based Community Greenhouse 
Gas Reduction Goal 
 
4. Report Progress 
 
5. Readjust if necessary 
 
 

 
If the 5-year comprehensive assessment indicates 
that the City is not reaching the adopted targets: 
 
Conduct an analysis of possible actions to get 
back on track  
 
Bring revisions to Council 
 

-26-

Item
 A

.



Matt McRae 
City of Eugene Office of Sustainability 

Climate and Energy Analyst 
(541) 682-5649 

matt.a.mcrae@ci.eugene.or.us 
www.eugene-or.gov/sustainability  

 

-27-

Item
 A

.



City of Eugene Internal Energy Use 

Dashed lines: 
Trajectory to 
 meet goal of 
 55% reduction 
 by 2020 

-28-

Item
 A

.



Community Energy Use Trends 

11.5% 

12.5% 

13% 

Population 7.5% 

-29-

Item
 A

.



Community Climate and Energy Action Plan 
Action by action progress 

-30-

Item
 A

.



Public Attitudes 

77% = climate change is happening and it’s 
manmade 
 
75% = climate change requires much 
stronger regulation of GHGs 
 
81% = climate change requires us to 
entirely rethink our behavior 
 
74% = individual action can  
make a difference 
 

-31-

Item
 A

.



Comparison: Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Targets 

-32-

Item
 A

.



 

 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY
 
  

Action:  South Willamette Street 
 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014 
Department:  Public Works 
www.eugene-or.gov 
  
 
ISSUE STATEMENT 
The Eugene City Council is scheduled to 
presented in the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan
Improvement Plan will develop a complete street design for an active transportation corridor 
(providing for walking, biking, transit, 
advanced as a capital improvement proje
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Purpose: 
The South Willamette Street Improvement Plan is exploring options for people to safely walk, 
bike, take the bus, or drive in an eight
32nd Avenue. The City and the Oregon Department of Transportation (
with a consultant team of transportation engineers and urban design planners led by DKS 
Associates (with assistance from OTAK), which includes Cogito, locally based
specialists. 
 
The goal of this study is to help South Willamette Street become a vibrant urban corridor 
accessible by bicycle, foot, car, and bus. Today, Willamette Street is heavily used to reach many 
popular destinations, yet it is uninviting to 
years, many residents and business owners have shared complaints about the poor conditions on 
Willamette Street for walking and biking and the need to do something about it.
 
The plan aims to support existing bu
balanced multi-modal transportation system; further City planning efforts to identify compact 
growth and redevelopment opportunities; and foster a well
supportive of the plan. 
 
The results of this project will serve as the street design portion of the South Willamette Concept 
Plan. The South Willamette Concept Plan is a pilot of the area planning process, an important 
strategy to accommodate growth through Envision Eugene. The Co
vision and identifies tools for realizing that vision in the South Willamette area.  One important 

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter

OUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

UMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 

South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

 Agenda Item Number: 
Staff Contact:

Contact Telephone Number: 

is scheduled to deliberate and take action on street design alternatives 
South Willamette Street Improvement Plan. The South Willamette Street 

Improvement Plan will develop a complete street design for an active transportation corridor 
(providing for walking, biking, transit, driving, and business access) that can be 
advanced as a capital improvement project for construction. 

The South Willamette Street Improvement Plan is exploring options for people to safely walk, 
bike, take the bus, or drive in an eight-block study area of Willamette Street from 24th Avenue to 

the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) have contracted 
with a consultant team of transportation engineers and urban design planners led by DKS 
Associates (with assistance from OTAK), which includes Cogito, locally based public involvement

The goal of this study is to help South Willamette Street become a vibrant urban corridor 
accessible by bicycle, foot, car, and bus. Today, Willamette Street is heavily used to reach many 
popular destinations, yet it is uninviting to people walking, biking, riding transit, 
years, many residents and business owners have shared complaints about the poor conditions on 
Willamette Street for walking and biking and the need to do something about it.

The plan aims to support existing businesses and the commercial district’s vitality; create a 
modal transportation system; further City planning efforts to identify compact 

growth and redevelopment opportunities; and foster a well-informed and involved community 

The results of this project will serve as the street design portion of the South Willamette Concept 
Plan. The South Willamette Concept Plan is a pilot of the area planning process, an important 
strategy to accommodate growth through Envision Eugene. The Concept Plan creates a long

realizing that vision in the South Willamette area.  One important 

Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

Improvement Plan 

Agenda Item Number:  B 
Staff Contact:  Chris Henry 

Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-8472 
 

on street design alternatives 
The South Willamette Street 

Improvement Plan will develop a complete street design for an active transportation corridor 
and business access) that can be accepted and 

The South Willamette Street Improvement Plan is exploring options for people to safely walk, 
block study area of Willamette Street from 24th Avenue to 

have contracted 
with a consultant team of transportation engineers and urban design planners led by DKS 

public involvement 

The goal of this study is to help South Willamette Street become a vibrant urban corridor 
accessible by bicycle, foot, car, and bus. Today, Willamette Street is heavily used to reach many 

riding transit, and driving. For 
years, many residents and business owners have shared complaints about the poor conditions on 
Willamette Street for walking and biking and the need to do something about it. 

sinesses and the commercial district’s vitality; create a 
modal transportation system; further City planning efforts to identify compact 

informed and involved community 

The results of this project will serve as the street design portion of the South Willamette Concept 
Plan. The South Willamette Concept Plan is a pilot of the area planning process, an important 

ncept Plan creates a long-term 
realizing that vision in the South Willamette area.  One important 

 

-33-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

goal of the Concept Plan is to create a neighborhood where services for residents are available 
within a “20-Minute” walk, and that the street functions for a variety of users. The timing of the 
South Willamette Street Improvement Plan is good because it melds with the South Willamette 
Concept Plan, and needed pavement preservation work recently identified in the 2012 Bond 
Measure to Fix Streets and Fund Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects. 
 
Public Process: 
In August 2012, the project team began by talking with stakeholders in small groups, including 
property and business owners, bicycle, pedestrian and transit advocates, and neighborhood 
leaders from Friendly, Crest, South Eugene, and Amazon neighborhood associations. Based on 
knowledge gained, in September two robust focus groups were organized (one based on business; 
and another based on users of cars, walking, bus, and bike) to hear more about people’s concerns, 
preferences and flexibilities towards identified corridor issues. In October, traffic count data was 
collected (when University of Oregon and Lane Community College campuses were active) and an 
Existing Conditions Report was prepared. In November, over 150 participants attended the first 
Community Forum where they heard the results of recent traffic studies, explored alternatives, 
and the project team listened to community priorities for future improvements. 
 
A second Community Forum was held in February 2013 to evaluate the alternatives that were 
prepared in response to earlier community conversations. Following the February Community 
Forum, the project team narrowed the number of alternatives down to three and performed more 
detailed transportation analysis. 
 
The third, and final, Community Forum was held in June 2013. Participants were asked to help 
rank and refine the street design alternatives following a presentation of transportation analysis 
and group discussion. An online survey was also available to hear the preferences of those who 
were not able to attend the Community Forum. 
 
Staff has provided updates on the process to the Eugene City Council on January 28 and June 19, 
2013, and presented the Draft South Willamette Street Improvement Plan on April 16, 2014. Staff 
has also met with the Eugene Planning Commission twice, on November 4, 2013, and again on 
April 7, 2014, to discuss the Draft South Willamette Street Improvement Plan and Economic Study 
respectively. The Eugene City Council held a public hearing on May 19, 2014, to receive public 
comment about the Draft South Willamette Street Improvement Plan.  
 
Consultant Project Team Recommendation: 
On October 2, 2013, an executive summary of the Draft South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 
and consultant project team recommendation was shared in two meetings with stakeholder 
groups. The consultant team will provide details of the street design alternatives in their 
presentation. 
 
The Eugene City Manager has endorsed a triple-bottom-line approach to sustainability and 
analysis for City projects and programs providing for consideration of people, the planet, and 
prosperity (or equity, environment, and economy). In development of the Draft Eugene 
Transportation System Plan (Draft TSP), the Transportation Community Resource Group (TCRG) 
extensively vetted a sustainability rating system based on a triple-bottom-line analysis. The South 

-34-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

Willamette Street Improvement Plan adapted the TCRG sustainability work to develop screening 
criteria for qualitative assessment of the roadway alternatives. The results of the sustainability 
screening are included in the Draft South Willamette Street Improvement Plan and helped to 
inform the consultant project team recommendation. 
 
In weighing all the considerations identified in the Draft South Willamette Street Improvement 
Plan, the community feedback and technical analysis, the consultant project team finds that 
Alternative #3 (three lanes with Bike Lanes) represents the best solution for South 
Willamette Street. 
 
Coordination with Envision Eugene: 
As previously stated, the results of the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan will serve as the 
street design portion of the South Willamette Concept Plan, a pilot of the area planning process for 
Envision Eugene. The Concept Plan includes a long-term vision for redevelopment of the 
streetside character of Willamette Street that is compatible with the South Willamette Street 
Improvement Plan alternatives. Staff will be working with the Eugene Planning Commission, as 
part of the Concept Plan implementation, to develop a systematic approach in the Eugene Code to 
address how accesses along the street are managed over time. Those discussions are anticipated 
to be coming soon to the Eugene Planning Commission followed by Eugene City Council adoption 
at a later date. 
 
Resources: 
The South Willamette Street Improvement Plan is being managed by the City of Eugene and is 
funded with a grant from the Transportation and Growth Management program of the Oregon 
Department of Transportation. 
 
More details of the project and public involvement process are available at: http://www.eugene-
or.gov/SWillametteStreet 
 
 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
During its deliberations, the Eugene City Council will have an opportunity to consider the policy 
context surrounding the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan. The council may choose to 
affirm existing policies, balance potential conflicts between policies, approve potential changes to 
existing policies or enact new policies. 
 
TransPlan (2002) 
 

System-Wide Policy #4: Neighborhood Livability 
Support transportation strategies that enhance neighborhood livability. 
 
Roadway Policy #1: Mobility and Safety for all Modes 
Address the mobility and safety needs of motorists, transit users, bicyclists, pedestrians, and the 
needs of emergency vehicles when planning and constructing roadway system improvements. 
 

-35-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

Roadway Policy #2: Motor Vehicle Level of Service 
1. Use motor vehicle level of service standards to maintain acceptable and reliable 

performance on the roadway system. 
2. Acceptable and reliable performance is defined by the following levels of service under 

peak hour traffic conditions: Level of Service E within Eugene’s Central Area 
Transportation Study (CATS) area, and Level of Service D elsewhere. 

 
Roadway Policy #4: Access Management 
Manage the roadway system to preserve safety and operational efficiency by adopting 
regulations to manage access to roadways and applying these regulations to decisions related to 
approving new or modified access to the roadway system. 
 
Bicycle Policy #1: Bikeway System and Support Facilities 
Construct and improve the region’s bikeway system and provide bicycle system support facilities 
for both new development and redevelopment/expansion. 
 
Bicycle Policy #2: Bikeways on Arterials and Collectors 
Require bikeways along new and reconstructed arterial and major collector streets. 
 
Bicycle Policy #4: Implementation of Priority Bikeway Miles 
Give funding priority (ideally within the first three to five years after adoption of TransPlan 
subject to available funding) to stand-alone bikeway projects that are included in the definition of 
“Priority Bikeway Miles” and that increase the use of alternative modes. 
 
Pedestrian Policy #1: Pedestrian Environment 
Provide for a pedestrian environment that is well integrated with adjacent land uses and is 
designed to enhance the safety, comfort, and convenience of walking. 
 
Goods Movement Policy #1: Freight Efficiency 
Support reasonable and reliable travel times for freight/goods movement in the Eugene-
Springfield region. 
 
Finance Policy #5: Short-Term Project Priorities 
Consider and include among short-term project priorities, those facilities and improvements that 
support mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly nodal development and increased use of alternative 
modes. 
 
Priority Bikeway System Project #296 – Striped bike lanes, Willamette Street from 18th 
Avenue to 32nd Avenue (unprogrammed). 

 
Eugene Pedestrian Bicycle Master Plan (2012) 
 

Policy 1.1: Make bicycling and walking more attractive than driving for trips of two miles or less. 
 

-36-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

Policy 1.2: Increase pedestrian and bicycle connectivity between existing residential 
neighborhoods and nearby commercial areas, parks, and schools. 
 
Policy 1.5: Construct high-quality pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure to provide safer, more 
appealing and well-connected facilities. 
 
Policy 1.6: Build pedestrian and bicycle facilities on new roadways, and retrofit older roadways 
to complete the pedestrian and bicycle system, using routes and facility designs identified in this 
plan. 
 
Policy 1.7: Construct bikeways along new and reconstructed arterial and major collector streets. 
 
Policy 2.1: Continually improve bicycling and walking comfort and safety through design, 
operations and maintenance including development of “low stress” bikeways to attract new 
cyclists. 
 
Policy 3.6: Improve the quality of the pedestrian environment by including facilities such as 
planter strips and street trees in the design or reconstruction of streets and consider preservation 
of existing trees whenever practicable. 
 
20-Minute Neighborhoods Program: Development of a 20-Minute Neighborhoods Program is 
considered a key implementation step of the Climate and Energy Action Plan. 20-minute 
neighborhoods are places where people can easily walk or bike to key destinations such as 
grocery stores, other retail establishments, parks and schools. Coordination between 
implementation of the Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan and the 20-Minute Neighborhoods 
Program will be critical to the success of both. The 20-Minute Neighborhoods Program should be 
one factor that is considered when determining project funding priorities. 
 
Bike Lane Project #31 – Willamette Street from 17th Avenue to 32nd Avenue. 
 
Bike Boulevard Project #397 – Portland Alley from W24th Avenue to W27th Avenue. 
 
Bike Boulevard Project #458 – E 29th Place/Pearl Street/E 28th Avenue/High Street/E 27th 
Avenue from Amazon Parkway to Willamette Street. 

 
Envision Eugene (2012) 
 

7 Pillars of Envision Eugene (partial list) 
• Provide ample economic opportunities for all community members 
• Plan for climate change and energy uncertainty 
• Promote compact urban development and efficient transportation options 
• Protect, repair, and enhance neighborhood livability 
• Provide for adaptable, flexible, and collaborative implementation 

 
 

-37-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The council may: 
 

1. In the order of accepting the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 
a. Accept the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 
b. Not accept the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

 
2. In the order of approving a South Willamette Street Improvement Plan street design 

alternative 
a. Approve street design Alternative #1 (4-lane configuration) 
b. Approve street design Alternative #3 (3-lane configuration with bike lanes) 
c. Approve street design Alternative #5 (3-lane configuration with wide sidewalks) 
d. Approve a 12-month test of street design Alternative #3 (3-lane configuration with 

bike lanes) 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager recommends that the Eugene City Council accept the South Willamette Street 
Improvement Plan prepared by consultants and staff. The South Willamette Street Improvement 
Plan is valuable in informing a decision about the future street configuration.  
 
The analyses from the consultants and staff suggest that street design Alternative #3 (3-lane 
configuration with bike lanes) may be the best alternative. However, before making a final 
decision, the City Manager recommends that the City undertake a test. 
 
Therefore, the City Manager recommends that the City Council approve moving forward with a 12-
month test of street design Alternative #3 (3-lane configuration with bike lanes).  At the 
conclusion of that test, City staff would return to the City Council with additional information and 
data, along with a recommendation as to whether the City Manager believes that 3-lane 
configuration still appears to the best alternative. 
 
A test of the alternative would allow staff to confirm the transportation analysis of the South 
Willamette Street Improvement Plan, determine if there are any unintended consequences before 
any permanent changes are made, and provide a real experience of the street reconfiguration for 
people driving cars. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to accept the South Willamette Street Improvement Plan. 
 
Move to direct staff to implement a test of South Willamette Street Improvement Plan street 
design Alternative #3 (three lanes with bike lanes) and report back with findings after a 12-month 
test period. 
 
 

-38-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3423.docx 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Chris Henry, Transportation Planning Engineer 
Telephone:   541-682-8472   
Staff E-Mail:  chris.c.henry@ci.eugene.or.us   
Project Webpage: http://www.eugene-or.gov/SWillametteStreet 

-39-

Item B.



 



Prepared for

May 2014

City of Eugene

ODOT

-41-

Item B.



This page inten onally le  blank. 

-42-

Item B.



South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

The South Willame e Street Improvement Plan was a collabora ve process among various public agencies, key 

stakeholders and the community. Input, assistance, and outreach by the following people helped make the 

Improvement Plan possible: 

CITY OF EUGENE 
Tom Larsen 
Reed Dunbar 
Robin Hos ck 
Patricia Thomas 
Kurt Yeiter 
Steve Gallup 
Jeff Narin 
Doug Perry 
Jim Ball 
Mike Sullivan 
Jeff Petry 
Mark Snyder  
 

LANE TRANSIT DISTRICT 
Will Mueller 
Sasha Lu ig 
 

EUGENE WATER AND ELECTRIC 
BOARD 
Mark Oberle 
Jeannine Parisi 
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
Kris  Krueger  

CITY OF EUGENE 
Chris Henry 
Rob Inerfeld 
 
 

ODOT 
David Helton 
 
 
 

DKS ASSOCIATES 
Sco  Mansur 
Mat Dolata 
Peter Coffey 
Brad Coy 
 

COGITO PARTNERS 
Ellen Teninty 
Chris Watchie 
Julie Fischer 
 
 

OTAK 
Tom Litster 
Kaitlin North 

Acknowledgements 

PROJECT TEAM KEY CONTRIBUTORS 

This project was par ally funded by a grant from the Transporta on Growth Management (TGM) Program, a 

joint program of the Oregon Department of Transporta on and the Oregon Department of Land Conserva on 

and Development. This TGM grant is financed, in part, by federal Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient 

Transporta on Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU), local government, and State of Oregon funds. The 

contents of this document do not necessarily reflect views or policies of the State of Oregon. 

-43-

Item B.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................. i 

SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION ...................................................... 1 

Study Corridor ............................................................................................. 2 

Background and Context ............................................................................. 2 

Public Process ............................................................................................. 5 

Evalua on Criteria ....................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 2. EXISTING CONDITIONS ........................................... 7 

Exis ng Transporta on Facili es ................................................................ 7 

Adjacent Land Uses ................................................................................... 12 

Travel Condi ons ...................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 3. ALTERNATIVE CONCEPTS .................................... 19 

Alterna ve 1: 4-Lane ................................................................................. 20 

Alterna ve 2: 4-Lane with Center Le -Turn Lane .................................... 22 

Alterna ve 3: 3-Lane with Bike Lanes ....................................................... 24 

Alterna ve 4: 3-Lane with Buffered Bike Lanes ........................................ 26 

Alterna ve 5: 3-Lane with Wide Sidewalks .............................................. 28 

Alterna ve 6: 2-Lane with Bike Lanes, Median and Roundabouts ........... 30 

SECTION 4. SCREENING EVALUATION ..................................... 33 

SECTION 5. ALTERNATIVES REFINEMENT ................................ 35 

Poten al Segment Changes ...................................................................... 35 

Poten al Intersec on Changes ................................................................. 38 

Roundabout Compa bility ........................................................................ 39 

Access Management on Public and Private Approaches .......................... 40 

Bus Stops and Pullouts .............................................................................. 41 

Contents 

Contents 

-44-

Item B.



South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Enhanced Bicycle Connec ons ................................................................. 41 

Enhanced Pedestrian Connec ons ........................................................... 44 

On-Street Parking ...................................................................................... 45 

Alterna ve Cost Es mates ........................................................................ 46 

SECTION 6. STREETSCAPE DESIGN ........................................ 47 

Streetscape Elements ............................................................................... 47 

Developing a Design Theme ..................................................................... 48 

Sidewalk Design ........................................................................................ 51 

Streetscape Design Matrix ........................................................................ 53 

SECTION 7. TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS ................................. 55 

Future Traffic Opera ons .......................................................................... 55 

Traffic Shi  ................................................................................................ 61 

Mul modal Level of Service ...................................................................... 62 

Case Studies .............................................................................................. 64 

ENDNOTES ............................................................................ 69 

CALL-OUT BOXES 

Public Involvement Guiding Principles and Goals....................................... 5 

Community Forum #1 — Explore the Alterna ves ................................... 18 

Community Forum #2 — Evaluate the Alterna ves ................................. 32 

Community Forum #3 — Refine the Alterna ves ..................................... 67 

Stakeholder Group Discussions ................................................................ 70 

APPENDIX (SEPARATE DOCUMENT) 

-45-

Item B.



This page inten onally le  blank. 

-46-

Item B.



i South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

INTRODUCTION 
The South Willame e Street Improvement Plan (“Plan”) iden fies op ons for 

people to easily and safely walk, bike, take transit, or drive in an eight‐block 

sec on of South Willame e Street located between 24th Avenue and 32nd Avenue 

in Eugene, Oregon.  

The goal of the Plan is to help South Willame e Street become a vibrant urban 

corridor accessible by bicycle, foot, car, and bus. The Plan aims to support the 

area’s businesses, encourage the district’s vitality, create a balanced mul ‐modal 

transporta on system, and foster well‐informed community support for the 

project. 

The Plan was developed through a collabora ve process among various public 

agencies, key stakeholders and community members. The regional context was 

considered through a review of previous planning efforts for the area and the plan 

was developed in coordina on with the Dra  South Willame e Concept Plan 

(“Dra  Concept Plan”). A broad level of public involvement was vital to the Plan 

development. 

Throughout this project, the project team took me to understand mul ple points 

of view, obtain fresh ideas and resource materials, and encourage par cipa on 

from the community. The project team received public input through le ers, 

phone calls, emails, and in‐person at stakeholder outreach mee ngs and focus 

groups. Three community forums were held at key stages of the project and 

regular mee ngs were held with decision makers including City of Eugene 

Planning Commission and work sessions with the Eugene City Council. 

In weighing all the considera ons iden fied in this Plan, the community feedback 

and technical analysis, the consultant project team finds that Alterna ve 3 (3‐

lanes with bike lanes) represents the best solu on for South Willame e Street.  

Executive Summary 

Project Study Corridor 

-47-

Item B.



ii Executive Summary 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 
Exis ng transporta on facili es and travel condi ons 

on South Willame e Street were evaluated to 

establish a baseline for assessing poten al design 

alterna ves and improvements to the corridor. 

Exis ng Transporta on Facili es 

The exis ng transporta on facili es vary within the 

study area between 24th Avenue and 32nd Avenue. 

The facili es are summarized below: 

 Roadway configura on: includes a 4‐lane 

sec on north of 29th Avenue, a 5‐lane sec on 

near the 29th Avenue intersec on, and a 3‐

lane sec on south of 29th Avenue. 

 Right‐of‐way: width ranges from 

approximately 60 to 75 feet, with the widest 

sec on near the 29th Avenue intersec on. 

 Number of driveways: over 70 on the 0.8 

mile corridor of Willame e Street. 

 Sidewalks: present on both sides of 

Willame e Street for the full length of the 

study corridor, varying in width from 

approximately 5 feet 

to 9 feet. Most of the 

sidewalks in the 

study area are 

located curbside, 

with u lity poles and 

other objects 

crea ng obstacles 

that impact 

accessibility. 

 Marked pedestrian 

crossings: located at 

the five signalized 

intersec ons (at 24th 

Avenue, 25th Avenue, 

27th Avenue, 29th 

Avenue, and 32nd 

Avenue). 

 Bike lanes: exist approximately 250’ south of 

29th Avenue and con nue south through 32nd 

Avenue. There are currently no bicycle 

facili es to the north of 29th Avenue. 

 Transit: service consists of two bus routes 

operated by Lane Transit District through the 

corridor, with several bus stops located along 

Willame e Street. 

 Posted speed limit: 25 mph 

Exis ng Travel Condi ons 

A wide variety of measures were used to evaluate 

exis ng travel condi ons including traffic pa erns, 

collision data, intersec on opera ons and quality of 

travel for ac ve modes and transit. 

Traffic volumes vary by me of day and follow a 

typical direc onal pa ern. The peak morning flow is 

heavier toward the downtown business district 

(northbound) and the peak a ernoon traffic primarily 

moves away from downtown (southbound). Travel 

me on the corridor depends on the traffic volume 

and resul ng delays that may occur. 

24‐Hour Traffic Volumes (Willame e Street south of 27th Ave.) 

-48-

Item B.



iii South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Auto, pedestrian, bicycle and transit opera ons along 

Willame e Street were evaluated using mul ‐modal 

level of service (MMLOS) methodologies that 

measure user comfort along roadway segments. 

Motor vehicle traffic opera ons at study 

intersec ons were evaluated for a.m. and p.m. peak 

hours based on turn movement traffic counts. 

Travel Condi ons Highlights: 

 16,500 daily traffic volume. 

 2.5 minutes daily average for end‐to‐end 

travel me on the corridor, increasing to 

approximately three minutes during the p.m. 

peak hour. 

 More than 15% of motor vehicles travel over 

30 mph, exceeding the posted speed limit 

(25 mph) by 5 mph or more. 

 5.2 collisions per million vehicle‐miles 

traveled is nearly double the statewide 

average (2.9) for urban city minor arterial 

streets. 

 100% of study intersec ons meet the City of 

Eugene minimum opera onal performance 

standard (LOS D). 

 2% of traffic is heavy vehicles. 

 63% of Willame e Street travelers are “local” 

traffic ‐ making a stop on Willame e Street 

or turning onto a local street. The remaining 

37% are “through” travelers – those who do 

not stop and go directly north/south on 

Willame e Street between 24th Avenue and 

32nd Avenue (24%), or make a turn at 29th 

Avenue (13%).  

Average Travel Times ( Willame e Street, between 24th Ave. and 32nd Ave.) 

Traveler Characteris cs on Willame e Street 

(between 24th Ave. and 32nd Ave.) 

-49-

Item B.



iv Executive Summary 

ALTERNATIVE CONCEPTS 
Six conceptual roadway alterna ves were proposed 

for considera on for the South Willame e Street 

Improvement Plan. The proposed alterna ves were 

iden fied to support a long‐term corridor vision, but 

also to facilitate development of a design plan that 

can be adopted and implemented in the short‐term. 

The exis ng right‐of‐way was maintained in all 

alterna ves to minimize cost. 

The alterna ves defined cross‐sec on concepts that 

reflect a variety of community benefits and trade‐offs 

for the corridor. Community Forum #1 (Explore The 

Alterna ves), held in November of 2012, was cri cal 

in developing the range of op ons that were 

considered to meet community needs. Community 

Forum #2 (Evaluate the Alterna ves), held in 

February of 2013, provided an opportunity to receive 

community feedback on which of the six proposed 

alterna ves should be advanced.  

Conceptual Alterna ves (Tier 1) 

-50-

Item B.



v South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

SCREENING EVALUATION 
The six alterna ve concepts were refined to 

three based on both a technical review (Tier 1 

screening) and public input received from the 

community and stakeholders. The Eugene City 

Manager has endorsed a triple‐bo om‐line 

approach to sustainability and analysis for City 

projects and programs providing for 

considera on of people, the planet, and 

prosperity (or equity, environment, and 

economy). In development of the Dra  Eugene 

Transporta on System Plan (Dra  TSP), the 

Transporta on Community Resource Group 

(TCRG) extensively ve ed a sustainability 

ra ng system based on a triple‐bo om‐line 

analysis. The South Willame e Street 

Improvement Plan adapted the TCRG 

sustainability work to develop the Tier 1 

screening criteria for qualita ve assessment of 

the roadway alterna ves.  

The table to the right provides the assessment 

results, which show that Alterna ves 3, 5, and 

6 scored highest in the evalua on, though no 

alterna ve was clearly superior in all ways. In 

addi on, based on public outreach, Alterna ve 

3, 4, and 5 received the strongest community 

support. 

Although the 4‐lane alterna ves (Alterna ve 1 

and 2) scored the lowest on the evalua on 

criteria and received the least favorable public 

feedback, overall public input indicated the 

need for further analysis and discussion before 

reduc ons to motor vehicle capacity should be 

further considered. Therefore, the following 

three alterna ves were selected for further 

refinement and more detailed analysis: 

 4‐lane (Alterna ve 1) 

 3‐lane with bike lanes (Alterna ve 3) 

 3‐lane with wide sidewalks 

(Alterna ve 5) 

Evalua on Criteria Scoring of Alterna ves 

-51-

Item B.



vi Executive Summary 

ALTERNATIVES REFINEMENT 
Addi onal roadway design details and op ons for 

corridor implementa on were developed for each of 

the three alterna ve concepts advanced. These 

refinements included segment cross sec ons, 

intersec on configura ons, bicycle and pedestrian 

connec ons to the corridor, and other design 

considera ons. Cost es mates were also prepared 

for each alterna ve. 

In addi on, some planned improvements are desired 

throughout the corridor and will be assumed for each 

alterna ve. These improvements include new 

pavement, improved drainage, wider sidewalks, and 

enhancements to pedestrian and bicycle access 

around Willame e Streets. Other improvements may 

vary depending on the loca on and alterna ve 

configura on. 

Poten al Changes by Segment 

The alterna ve cross sec on concepts previously 

illustrated apply on the north segment of Willame e 

Street, from 24th Avenue to near 28th Avenue. In the 

south segment of the study corridor, no differences 

are proposed for any alterna ve. Around 29th 

Avenue, a “transi on area” will provide con nuity 

between the corridor segments to the north and 

south, while best mee ng the corridor’s iden fied 

needs and objec ves. 

Illustra on of Conceptual Alterna ves  (Tier 2) Poten al Cross‐Sec on Changes by Segment 

Alterna ve 1 

Alterna ve 3 

Alterna ve 5 

-52-

Item B.



vii South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Poten al Changes at Intersec ons 

Woodfield Sta on Driveway Intersec on: It is 

recommended that a traffic signal at this intersec on 

be considered as a design op on in all alterna ves. A 

traffic signal would provide be er access for turning 

vehicles and an addi onal pedestrian crossing 

opportunity. Driveway modifica ons would likely be 

necessary on the east side of Willame e Street, 

across from the Woodfield Sta on Driveway. 

29th Avenue Intersec on: For Alterna ve 3 and 5, a 

proposed design op on would include a 4‐lane cross‐

sec on at 29th Avenue including a single northbound 

travel lane while retaining two southbound through 

travel lanes (and a le ‐turn lane.). Removing one of 

the two exis ng northbound travel lanes may be 

considered to accommodate bike lanes or wider 

sidewalks, respec vely. Without reducing the 

number of vehicle lanes, addi onal right‐of‐way 

would be required to provide bike lanes or wider 

sidewalks. The two southbound lanes are needed to 

adequately serve the peak direc on traffic demand 

at the intersec on. The two southbound lanes would 

extend to beyond the Woodfield Sta on Driveway to 

provide addi onal vehicle storage space and 

capacity. 

Other Poten al Refinements 

 Roundabouts can improve traffic flow and 

safety when they are installed and are less 

expensive to operate and maintain compared 

to traffic signals. However, heavy vehicle 

operators may be opposed to roundabouts 

and significant property acquisi on costs 

may be necessary to provide the right‐of‐way 

needed to construct appropriately‐sized 

roundabouts. Traffic analysis results indicate 

that single lane roundabouts may not 

comfortably accommodate peak hour traffic 

demand at several intersec ons. 

Roundabouts are not explicitly included in 

the facility design of any alterna ve but may 

be considered further as poten al design 

refinements. 

 Access Management on public and private 

approaches will be considered to reduce the 

numerous conflict points for motor vehicles, 

pedestrians and bicyclists along the corridor. 

Access management strategies may include 

consolida ng driveways, sharing access 

points between adjacent property owners, 

implemen ng turn lanes at driveways and 

parking circula on enhancements. Reducing 

conflict points is likely to result in fewer 

Conceptual Lane Configura ons at Woodfield 

Sta on and 29th Ave. Intersec ons 

-53-

Item B.



viii Executive Summary 

crashes and increased capacity along the 

corridor. Managing access points along the 

corridor requires finding an appropriate 

balance between safety, mobility, and 

access. Preliminary considera on of access 

management strategies for the corridor 

indicates that recommended strategies will 

not be significantly different for any 

alterna ve compared to another. 

 Bus Pullouts would remove stopped vehicles 

from travel lanes, but would likely require 

right‐of‐way acquisi on and buses in the 

pullouts would need to merge back into the 

traffic stream. No bus pullouts are 

recommended for the corridor given the 

frequency of bus uses (five per hour south of 

29th Avenue and two per hour north of 29th 

Avenue), right‐of‐way impacts, transit agency 

preference, and increased delay for merging. 

 Enhanced Bicycle Connec ons could be 

provided with poten al bicycle facility 

improvements nearby, connec ng to, and 

crossing Willame e Street. These 

improvements may be combined with bike 

lanes on Willame e Street or considered 

independently. The bicycle improvements 

proposed for considera on include 

treatments for nearby bike routes and 

crossing improvements at the 24th Avenue 

and 29th Place intersec ons. 

 Enhanced Pedestrian Crossings could 

support the wider sidewalks included in each 

alterna ve by improving opportuni es to 

cross along Willame e Street. A variety of 

design treatments can be implemented to 

enhance the pedestrian crossings, including 

mid‐block crossings, median pedestrian 

crossing refuges, leading pedestrian 

intervals, and modified pavement surfaces. 

The traffic signal proposed at the Woodfield 

Sta on Driveway and the bicycle crossing 

improvement proposed at 29th Place would 

also provide new pedestrian crossings along 

the largest exis ng gaps between signalized 

crossings. 

 On‐Street Parking would likely have a very 

favorable benefit to the pedestrian 

environment, however, given the 

constrained right‐of‐way and community 

priori es, on‐street parking is not considered 

in any of the three design alterna ves. On‐

street parking may be reconsidered as part of 

long‐term enhancements to the corridor. 

Alterna ve Cost Es mates 

Planning‐level cost es mates were developed for 

each alterna ve, with the facility designs specified in 

this memorandum. All costs shown are planning‐level 

es mates in 2013 dollars and are subject to change. 

The most significant difference between alterna ve 

costs are due to reconstruc on of sidewalks.  The 

planning‐level es mated costs for u lity reloca on 

($2.6 Million) are not included in the es mates 

shown below. 

Alternative 
Pavement 

Project 
24th to 

29th Ave 
29th to 

32nd Ave 
Total 

1 $2.1 $2.0 $0.5 $4.6 

3 $2.1 $2.3 $0.5 $4.9 

5 $2.1 $3.0 $0.5 $5.6 

Pavement Project – City of Eugene project is planned to 
include paving, ADA accessibility, and stormwater 
improvements from 24th to 29th Avenue 
24th to 29th Avenue – Additional costs vary by alternative 
29th to 32nd Avenue – Additional costs same for all 
alternatives 
*All costs are planning-level estimates subject to change 

Planning‐Level Cost Es mates  

(Million Dollars, in 2013 Dollars)  

-54-

Item B.



ix South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

STREETSCAPE DESIGN OPTIONS 
The elements of a unified streetscape that should be 

considered in conjunc on with the roadway facility 

design alterna ves include sidewalk space, u li es, 

and stormwater treatment. The design concepts are 

intended to balance comfort, safety, and appeal for 

all users and may be incorporated into all plan 

alterna ves to varying degrees. 

 Sidewalk Widening will provide a more 

comfortable pedestrian environment that is 

accessible to more users and offers support 

for the success of future businesses as the 

area redevelops. Wider sidewalks may 

provide opportuni es for landscaping, 

vegeta on, storm water/drainage elements 

(e.g., bioswales), café sea ng, 

overhead signing, decora ve 

ligh ng, bike parking, etc. It is 

assumed that sidewalks will be 

widened to construct the maximum 

allowable width within the exis ng 

right‐of‐way in each of the 

alterna ves. Wider sidewalks, 

extending beyond the exis ng right‐

of‐way, may be constructed 

incrementally as proper es 

redevelop.  

 U lity Reloca on to underground 

would improve the sidewalk 

environment by removing some 

barriers to pedestrian access and 

increase the available sidewalk 

space. U li es (poles, hydrants, 

pedestals, etc.) currently located 

along the sidewalks result in an 

inconsistent and obstructed 

pedestrian environment.  

 Green Streets are facili es that 

treat and manage stormwater 

within the right‐of‐way. Those 

facili es create an ecological 

func on for our streets, in addi on to the 

tradi onal mobility and access func ons. 

Examples of green street facili es include 

flow‐through planters, basins, sidewalk silva 

cells, filterras, and permeable paving. The 

choice of techniques will be affected by the 

width of the sidewalk corridor in a preferred 

alterna ve and will require detailed 

engineering analysis and consistency with 

exis ng City of Eugene stormwater 

standards.  

The summary matrix below shows how easily some 

of the typical ameni es of a streetscape can be 

accommodated within the sidewalk corridors 

depicted in the alterna ves.  

Streetscape Design Ameni es Matrix 

Alt. 1 Alt. 3 Alt. 5 

-55-

Item B.



x Executive Summary 

TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS 
Traffic analysis comparisons of the three alterna ves 

advanced for the South Willame e Street 

Improvement Plan were performed for the year 

2018. Results include es mates of intersec on 

opera ons, delay, vehicle queuing, travel me, 

neighborhood traffic shi  and mul ‐modal system 

performance for bicyclists, pedestrians and transit. 

Travel volume forecasts for 2018 were developed 

using growth iden fied in the regional travel demand 

model developed by the Lane Council of 

Governments (LCOG). More delay is an cipated in 

2018 as a result of expected growth in motor vehicle 

traffic volumes. Alterna ves 3 and 5 are considered 

to be approximately equivalent for motor vehicle 

opera ons. 

Transporta on Impacts Summary for 

Alterna ves 3 and 5 (as compared to 

Alterna ve 1) 

 More motor vehicle delay is an cipated due 

to the reduc on of travel lanes for motor 

vehicles. 

 Traffic speeds will likely be reduced for 

through‐moving vehicles, as a passing lane 

will be unavailable in some loca ons. 

 Average travel mes between 24th Avenue 

and 32nd Avenue are expected to increase by 

30 seconds during the 2018 p.m. peak hour. 

 Travel me reliability through the corridor 

may decrease. 

 Intersec on opera ons at Willame e Street 

and 29th Avenue may fall below the adopted 

minimum performance standard (LOS D) 

during the a.m. and p.m. peak (reaching LOS 

E). All other intersec ons operate within the 

performance standards for all me periods 

evaluated for 2018. 

 Vehicle queues at the loca ons where motor 

vehicle lanes are reduced for through travel 

may expect to see queues approximately 

double in length. 

 Up to 500 vehicles per day (3% of daily 

traffic) may reroute to other roadways, with 

approximately two‐thirds of the traffic 

shi ing east to Hilyard Street and/or Amazon 

Parkway. 

 Bicyclist and pedestrian comfort (MMLOS) 

would improve significantly in Alterna ves 3 

and 5, respec vely. 

Case studies in Sea le and Vancouver, WA as well as 

Orlando, FL demonstrated successful examples of 

previous corridor conversions from four vehicle lanes 

Change in Es mated Average Travel Times 

(2018 p.m. peak hour) for Alterna ves 3 & 5 

-56-

Item B.



xi South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

to three. The corridors were generally similar to 

Willame e Street, with before/a er comparisons 

indica ng that vehicle speeds were reduced, the 

number of crashes was reduced, and pedestrian 

and bicycle access was improved. No significant 

problems were iden fied for motor vehicle traffic 

opera ons. 

CONCLUSIONS 
The public involvement process has iden fied a 

variety of needs and preferences for the range of 

users who travel, live, work, and shop on South 

Willame e Street. Each proposed alterna ve 

provides rela ve posi ve and nega ve impacts 

that may be perceived differently by individuals. 

Within the limited right‐of‐way available in the 

developed mixed‐use Willame e Street corridor, 

trade‐offs must be carefully considered. 

Ul mately the alterna ve selected should reflect 

a balanced approach that best meets the 

transporta on needs of the users of Willame e 

Street and best reflects the goals and objec ves 

of the community. 

In weighing all the considera ons iden fied in 

this Plan, the community feedback and technical 

analysis, the consultant project team finds that 

Alterna ve 3 (3‐lanes with bike lanes) 

represents the best solu on for South 

Willame e Street. Alterna ve 3 ranked highest in 

the screening evalua on, based on criteria 

reflec ng community values  adapted from a 

sustainability process ve ed by the 

Transporta on Community Resource Group in 

development of the Dra  Eugene Transporta on 

System Plan. These make clear that 

considera ons of safety, health, energy, equity, 

economic vitality, and access are at least as 

important to the Eugene community as mobility. 

Alterna ve 3 was also the most favorably ranked 

configura on based on responses received at the 

Community Forum #3 (Refine the Alterna ves), 

DRAFT TRANSPORTATION GOALS 
Eugene’s Dra  Transporta on System Plan (TSP) 

iden fies four goals describing the desires of the 

community with regards to its transporta on system: 

 Goal 1: Create an integrated mul modal 

transporta on system that is safe and efficient; 

supports local land use and economic 

development plans; reduces reliance on single 

occupancy automobiles; and enhances 

community livability. 

 Goal 2: Advance regional sustainability by 

providing a transporta on system that improves 

economic vitality, environmental health, social 

equity, and well‐being. 

 Goal 3: Strengthen community resilience to 

changes in climate, increases in fossil fuel prices, 

and economic fluctua ons through adapta ons 

to the transporta on networks. 

 Goal 4: Distribute the benefits and impacts of 

transporta on decisions fairly and address the 

transporta on needs and safety of all users, 

including youth, the elderly, people with 

disabili es, and people of all races, ethnici es 

and incomes. 

The Dra  TSP also iden fies objec ves that are grouped 

into the eight Sustainable Transporta on Access Ra ng 

System (STARS) categories: 

 Safety and Health 

 Social Equity 

 Access and Mobility for All Modes 

 Community Context 

 Economic Benefit 

 Cost Effec veness 

 Climate and Energy 

 Ecological Func on  

The Dra  TSP goals and objec ves cover a wide range of 

community needs and provided the founda on for 

evalua ng the improvement alterna ves iden fied in the 

South Willame e Street Improvement Plan. 

-57-

Item B.



xii Executive Summary 

held in June 2013, and via online survey. These 

outreach efforts indicated a clear preference from 

par cipants and respondents for improved access 

and safety. 

Poten al motor vehicle impacts include peak hour 

travel me increases that most respondents 

considered to be acceptable. The transporta on 

analysis findings for Alterna ve 3 also iden fy 

poten al benefits such as reduced speeding, 

improved safety, and more comfortable le ‐turn 

movements. With the refinements recommended, 

most notably keeping two through travel lanes 

southbound at 29th Avenue, a considerable effort has 

been made to minimize the poten al nega ve 

impacts to motor vehicle mobility. 

Alterna ve 3 enhances pedestrian and bicyclist 

comfort and safety, drawing people to the corridor 

who previously avoided it. Because the majority of 

Willame e Street travelers are turning at driveways 

or local streets, not simply passing through the 

corridor as quickly as possible, the poten al benefits 

of improved safety and ease of access may also 

outweigh concerns about travel me. Reviews of 

roadway conversions in similar circumstances show 

the poten al for implementa on of Alterna ve 3 to 

result in successful outcomes across all methods of 

travel. 

Online Public Survey Response  

-58-

Item B.



1 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

The South Willame e Street Improvement Plan (“Plan”) iden fies op ons for 

people to easily and safely walk, bike, take transit, or drive in an eight‐block 

sec on of South Willame e Street located between 24th Avenue and 32nd Avenue 

in Eugene, Oregon. South Willame e Street is an important corridor that func ons 

as a commercial des na on and as a key route for connec ng residents of 

southern Eugene to the rest of the city. The goal of the Plan is to help South 

Willame e Street become a vibrant urban corridor accessible by bicycle, foot, car, 

and bus. The Plan aims to support the area’s businesses, encourage the district’s 

vitality, create a balanced mul modal transporta on system, and foster well‐

informed community support for the project. 

Six conceptual roadway alterna ves were iden fied and considered for the Tier 1 

screening evalua on. The alterna ve facility designs reflect a variety of community 

benefits and trade‐offs for the corridor. The six alterna ve concepts were refined 

to three based on direc on from City of Eugene staff a er receiving community 

input and feedback from the project Technical Advisory Commi ee on the results 

of the Tier 1 Screening. The three alterna ve configura ons advanced to the Tier 2 

screening phase were a 4‐lane (Alterna ve 1), 3‐lane with bike lanes (Alterna ve 

3), and 3‐lane with wide sidewalks (Alterna ve 5.) The Tier 2 screening provides a 

more detailed descrip on and rigorous analysis of the facility design needed to 

progress toward a selected corridor design. 

This Plan iden fies the study corridor, provides a summary of the exis ng 

transporta on facili es, and summarizes the exis ng travel condi ons for all users. 

The Plan describes the development and analysis of alterna ves and discusses 

benefits and tradeoffs associated with each alterna ve. Transporta on analysis for 

1. Introduction 

View of Willame e Street 
looking south. 

-59-

Item B.



2 

a future 2018 horizon year is included to inform decision

‐makers and the community on how South Willame e 

Street will func on a er a preferred design is selected 

and built. 

STUDY CORRIDOR 
The study corridor is a 0.8 mile segment of Willame e 

Street between 24th Avenue and 32nd Avenue. This 

sec on of Willame e Street is a minor arterial that 

carries approximately 16,500 vehicles per day(1) and has 

five signalized and several unsignalized intersec ons. All 

five signalized intersec ons and one unsignalized 

intersec on (as listed below) were analyzed as part of 

this Plan. These intersec ons are also shown in Figure 1. 

 Willame e Street/24th Avenue 

 Willame e Street/25th Avenue 

 Willame e Street/27th Avenue 

 Willame e Street/Woodfield Sta on Driveway 

(unsignalized) 

 Willame e Street/29th Avenue 

 Willame e Street/32nd Avenue 

BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 
This sec on describes how South Willame e Street fits 

into the regional context based on review of previous 

planning efforts for the area. Key elements from the 

plans are highlighted below that reflect a range of 

considera ons and objec ves for South Willame e 

Street. Key facility design standards are also 

summarized. 

The following documents have been reviewed and 

included in the summary: 

 South Willame e Area Dra  Concept Plan 

 Eugene Arterial and Collector Street Plan (ACSP) 

 TransPlan: The Eugene‐Springfield 

Transporta on System Plan 

 Dra  Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan 

 Walkable Community Workshops 

 Willame e Street Traffic Analysis Report 

Section 1. Introduction 

Figure 1: Study Corridor  

-60-

Item B.



3 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

South Willame e Area Dra  Concept Plan 

The South Willame e Dra  Concept Plan (“Dra  

Concept Plan”) provides high‐level guidance and 

vision on how development in the area should 

progress. The Dra  Concept Plan concentrates on 

residen al and shopping areas surrounding 

Willame e Street between 24th Avenue and 32nd 

Avenue, from Portland Street to the west to Amazon 

Parkway to the east. The Dra  Concept Plan is 

focused on promo ng business success in an urban 

district while suppor ng walking, biking, and driving. 

A key concept iden fied in the Dra  Concept Plan is 

developing the “Heart of the Walkable Business 

District,” which is characterized by a “Safe, A rac ve 

Pedestrian Experience for Business, Shopping and 

Entertainment.” The por on of Willame e Street 

extending from 24th Place to 27th Avenue is iden fied 

as part of this district along with other nearby 

roadways. 

The Dra  Concept Plan iden fies the poten al for a 

pedestrian walkway across Willame e Street located 

between 27th Avenue and 29th Avenue. It also 

iden fies gateways into the district located at the 

Willame e Street intersec ons at 23rd Avenue and 

31st Avenue. The Dra  Concept Plan also 

recommends the establishment of shared parking 

facili es to support the commercial district. 

Eugene Arterial and Collector Street Plan (ACSP) 

The Eugene ACSP was adopted as findings in support 

of the ordinance adop ng the 1999 Street 

Classifica on Map and 1999 Street Right‐of‐Way Map 

(Ordinance No. 20181).  Included in the Eugene 

ACSP, and adopted separately in 1999 by Resolu on 

No. 4608, are the Design Standards and Guidelines 

for Eugene Street, Sidewalks, Bikeways and 

Accessways. The ACSP includes priori es to help 

guide decision making related to street 

improvements. Table 1 provides a summary of the 

priori es for improvement or regula on relevant to 

Willame e Street (minor arterial). 

As shown, the highest priori es are iden fied to be 

regula ng access, adding sidewalks and bike lanes, 

and upgrading urban standards. Regarding access 

management, the ACSP goes on to say “a empts 

should be made, wherever possible, to consolidate 

mul ple driveways on arterial streets into a single 

access point.” The City has also adopted access 

management standards within the Eugene Code (EC 

7.408) that are intended to: 

 Balance the need for a safe and efficient 

roadway system against the need to provide 

ingress and egress to developed land 

adjacent to the street. 

 Reduce conflict points in the transporta on 

system by managing the number, spacing, 

loca on and design of access connec ons. 

 Preserve intersec on influence areas to 

allow drivers to focus on opera onal tasks, 

weaving, speed changes, traffic signals, etc. 

 Reduce interference with through 

movement, caused by slower vehicles 

exi ng, entering or turning across the 

roadway, by providing turning lanes or tapers 

and restric ng certain movements. 

The Eugene Code also provides direc on on access 

spacing standards that are dependent upon the 

roadway classifica on and influence to adjacent 

intersec ons. 

Improvement Type Priority 

Regulate Access High 

Traffic Calming Medium 

Adding Sidewalks High 

Adding Bike Lanes High 

Upgrade Urban Standards High 

Major Corridor Improvements Medium 

New Street Mileage Low 

Table 1: Priority of Improvement or Regula on for 

Minor Arterials 

-61-

Item B.



4 

The November 1999 Street Classifica on Map 

designates Willame e Street as a minor arterial. The 

Design Standards and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, 

Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways iden fy the 

following standards that apply to newly constructed 

minor arterials and major reconstruc on or widening 

of exis ng arterials : 

 Right‐of‐way (ROW) widths from 65’ to 100’ 

 Minimum 11’ travel lanes 

 Con nuous sidewalks on both sides of street 

and set back from curb. 

 Minimum sidewalk widths of 10’ for curbside 

sidewalks, and 5’ for setback sidewalks 

 Bicycle lanes should be striped 6’ (standard) 

or 5’ (in constrained situa ons) and free from 

drainage grates and u lity covers 

TransPlan: The Eugene‐Springfield 

Transporta on System Plan 

TransPlan, the Eugene‐Springfield Transporta on 

System Plan,(2) specifies a minimum performance of 

Level of Service (LOS) “D” for signalized intersec ons 

in this area. TransPlan also iden fies a project on 

Willame e Street to stripe bike lanes (Project 296). 

Dra  Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master 

Plan 

The Dra  Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan 

iden fies exis ng condi ons and needed 

improvements to bicycle and pedestrian facili es.  

The desired improvement along the Willame e 

Street corridor is to provide wider sidewalks and 6’ 

bike lanes (5’ minimum), resul ng in standard width 

pedestrian/bicycle facili es. However, this would 

require significant road widening, poten al impacts 

to proper es and structures, and high poten al cost. 

The recommended reconfigura on to meet design 

standards between 24th  and 32nd Avenues was: 

 From 32nd Avenue to approaching the 29th 

Avenue intersec on the width would be 65’ 

including three 11’ lanes (1 northbound, 2 

southbound), two 6’ bike lanes, and 10’ 

sidewalks on each side. 

 Approaching 29th Avenue from the south and 

leaving 29th Avenue north the roadway 

would be 87’ including five 11’ lanes (1 

Center le ‐turn lane each direc on), 6’ bike 

lanes, and 10’ sidewalks. 

 Leaving 29th Avenue to 24th Avenue the width 

would be 76’ including four 11’ lanes, 6’ bike 

lanes, and 10’ sidewalks.  

Walkable Community Workshops 

In 2004, a series of interac ve workshops were held 

with community members to iden fy and propose 

solu ons to concerns about walkability.(4) One 

workshop focused on Willame e Street between 24th 

Avenue and 29th Avenue and the surrounding 

neighborhood. Four small groups discussed poten al 

solu ons a er walking around the area. Many ideas 

were documented and a few iden fied by mul ple 

groups are summarized here: 

 Convert Willame e Street from its exis ng 

four‐lane configura on to a three‐lane 

configura on with a Center le ‐turn lane, 

bike lanes, and pedestrian refuge medians. 

 Create bus pullouts at all stops to prevent 

buses from blocking traffic. 

 Reduce the number of curb cuts and 

driveways wherever possible. 

 Make pedestrian crossing of Willame e 

Street easier with refuge medians. 

 Add landscaped medians for improved 

aesthe cs. 

 Move u li es underground or to alleyways 

for improved aesthe cs and pedestrian 

circula on. 

The summary report contains many addi onal ideas 

generated by the small groups. It also iden fied 

improved access management and a comprehensive 

look at traffic circula on in a broader area around 

Section 1. Introduction 

-62-

Item B.



5 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Willame e Street as necessary steps to be taken 

before enhancements can be implemented. 

Willame e Street Traffic Analysis 

A traffic analysis(5) was conducted in 2001 to evaluate 

alterna ve designs for the sec on of Willame e 

Street between 24th and 29th Avenues. It was 

directed at improving pedestrian access while 

maintaining traffic capacity and safety. 

The recommended alterna ve involved re‐striping 

Willame e Street to a three‐lane sec on with a 

center le ‐turn lane, bicycle lanes, and pedestrian 

refuges at strategic points. The analysis also 

evaluated a variable three/four‐lane sec on with 

pedestrian refuges, as well as traffic signal op ons 

(full signal vs. mid‐block pedestrian signal) at the 

Willame e Street/25th Avenue intersec on. A full 

traffic signal was added at the 25th Avenue 

intersec on as a result of the analysis. 

PUBLIC PROCESS 
The South Willame e Street Improvement Plan was 

a collabora ve process among various public 

agencies, key stakeholders and the community. A 

broad level of public involvement was vital to the 

Plan development. Public input was received through 

le ers, phone calls, emails, and in‐person at 

stakeholder outreach mee ngs and focus groups. 

The Plan’s public involvement guiding principles and 

goals are summarized in the call‐out box at right. 

Throughout this project, the project team took me 

to understand mul ple points of view, obtain fresh 

ideas and resource materials, and encourage 

par cipa on from the community. Project staff 

conversed informally with members of the 

community, conducted individual interviews, and 

hosted small focus group mee ngs with key 

stakeholders represen ng business and property 

owners, local residents, and corridor users for all 

modes. Regular mee ngs were held with decision 

makers including the City of Eugene Planning 

Commission and work sessions with the Eugene City 

Council. 

At key stages, project staff also held three public 

workshops (or community forums) that gave 

residents an opportunity to learn about the study 

and contribute their concerns on how Willame e 

Street might be improved. The three community 

forums included the following:  

 #1 Community Forum: Explore the 

Alterna ves (November 2012) 

 #2 Community Forum: Evaluate the 

Alterna ves (February 2013) 

 #3 Community Forum: Refine the Preferred 

Alterna ve (June 2013) 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT GUIDING 
PRINCIPLES AND GOALS 
The South Willame e Street Improvement Plan 

included significant public involvement based on the 

following guiding principles and goals: 

Guiding Principles 

 Respect the intelligence of the public 

 Seek out and facilitate the involvement of 

those poten ally affected 

 Iden fy issues and concerns early and 

throughout the process 

 Widely disseminate complete informa on in 

a mely manner 

 Include the public’s contribu on in decisions 

 Report how input was considered & reasons 

for decisions in each phase 

 Encourage open and honest communica on 

Public Involvement Goals 

 Broad par cipa on 

 Timely, authen c & useful public input 

 Though ul responses to individual 

comments, concerns, ques ons 

 Public informa on on city policies, such as 

the 20‐minute neighborhood 

-63-

Item B.



6 

Addi onal details related to the community forums are 

provided in call‐out boxes on pages 18, 32, and 67‐69 

to provide context for the decisions made throughout 

the alterna ves screening process. 

Community interest in the project was very high. The 

interested par es list exceeded 1,000. Total a endance 

at the public mee ngs exceeded 1,000. Over 600 

surveys were completed and over 300 public comment 

emails were submi ed to the city.  

EVALUATION CRITERIA 
A variety of evalua on criteria were established to 

assess the poten al of alterna ves to best meet the 

transporta on needs of the users of Willame e Street. 

The Eugene City Manager has endorsed a triple‐bo om

‐line approach to sustainability and analysis for City 

projects and programs providing for considera on of 

people, the planet, and prosperity (or equity, 

environment, and economy). 

In planning for the development of the Dra  Eugene 

Transporta on System Plan (Dra  TSP), the 

Transporta on Community Resource Group (TCRG) 

extensively ve ed a sustainability ra ng system based 

on a triple‐bo om‐line analysis. The South Willame e 

Street Improvement Plan adapted the TCRG 

sustainability work to develop the Tier 1 screening 

criteria for qualita ve assessment of roadway 

alterna ves.  

The TCRG work has been incorporated into Dra  TSP 

goals, which provide broad statements that describe 

the desires of the Eugene community. The Dra  TSP 

Goals, Objec ves and Policies iden fy a list of 

objec ves which are divided into eight goal categories: 

 Access and Mobility (for all modes) 

 Safety and Health 

 Social Equity 

 Economic Benefit 

 Cost Effec veness 

 Climate and Energy 

 Ecological Func on 

 Community Context 

Under these eight goal categories, 23 individual 

evalua on criteria were developed for the South 

Willame e Street Improvement Plan. The criteria 

reflect community values adapted from a sustainability 

process ve ed by the TCRG, with refinements made 

based on a review of planning documents more specific 

to the project area, including the South Willame e 

Dra  Concept Plan. The evalua on criteria are detailed 

in Technical Memorandum #1 (South Willame e Street 

Improvement Plan – Evalua on Criteria). 

Section 1. Introduction 

-64-

Item B.



7 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Exis ng condi ons were evaluated for South Willame e Street. This sec on 

documents the exis ng transporta on facili es, adjacent land uses, and corridor 

travel condi ons. 

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES 
Key characteris cs of the corridor’s transporta on facili es are documented for 

the roadway network, bicycle and pedestrian facili es, and transit facili es. 

Roadway Network 

The transporta on characteris cs of Willame e Street north and south of 29th 

Avenue are summarized in Table 2 and include approximate street width, number 

of travel lanes, posted speeds, and the presence of sidewalks and/or bike lanes. 

The classifica on of Willame e Street (Minor Arterial) specifies the purpose of the 

roadway and defines the applicable cross‐sec on and access spacing standards. 

At the north end of the study corridor, 24th Avenue provides an important 

connec on to the east and provides a high number of vehicle connec ons to and 

from Willame e Street. Near the center of the study area, 29th Avenue is a minor 

arterial that carries approximately 12,000 to 15,700 vehicles (6) per day. The 

remaining cross streets primarily provide local access to businesses and residen al 

areas. 

The roadway configura on for Willame e Street within the study area can be 

separated into three segments. From 24th Avenue to near 29th Avenue, Willame e 

Street has a 60 foot right‐of‐way consis ng of four travel lanes and no dedicated 

2. Existing Conditions 

South Willame e Street is a 
mul modal corridor with a 
mixture of facili es to serve 
automobile, bicycle, 
pedestrian, transit, and 
freight users. The challenge 
of providing mobility and 
accessibility to all users is 
managing the various 
conflicts that arise, such as 
bikes and automobiles at 
driveways (foreground) and 
turning trucks blocking 
travel lanes (background). 

-65-

Item B.



8 

Table 2: Roadway Characteris cs  

Section 2. Existing Conditions 

Roadway 
Street 
Width 

Willame e St (North of 29th Ave) 42 feet 

Willame e St (South of 29th Ave) 41 feet 

Travel Lanes 
Bike 

Lanes 

4 lanes (2 SB, 2 NB) No 

3 lanes (2 SB, 1 NB) Yes 

Posted 
Speed 

Sidewalks 

25 mph Yes 

25 mph Yes 

Figure 2b: 5‐Lane Cross Sec on (at 29th Avenue) 

Figure 2c: 3‐Lane Cross Sec on (South of 29th Avenue) 

Figure 2a: 4‐Lane Cross Sec on (North of 29th Avenue) 

-66-

Item B.



9 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

bike lanes (shown in Figure 2a). There is a short 

segment near 29th Avenue where a “transi on zone” 

exists, with the right‐of‐way widening to 75 feet. This 

segment has five travel lanes to accommodate le ‐

turn lanes at the 29th Avenue intersec on, and no 

dedicated bike lanes (shown in Figure 2b). 

Roughly 500 feet south of 29th Avenue, the right‐of‐

way returns to approximately 60 feet, with three 

travel lanes (two southbound and one northbound) 

and bike lanes available in both direc ons south of 

29th Place. Figures 2a, 2b, and 2c illustrate the 

exis ng cross‐sec ons for the three segments of 

Willame e Street. 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Facili es 

Sidewalks are present on both sides of Willame e 

Street for the full length of the study corridor varying 

in width from approximately 5 feet to 9 feet. Most of 

the study area has curbside sidewalks with the 

excep on of small sec ons of landscaping near the 

north and south limits of the study area. U lity poles 

and other objects create obstacles and impact 

accessibility. There are marked pedestrian crossings 

at the five signalized intersec ons. No other marked 

crosswalks currently exist within the study area. 

Bike lanes exist from approximately 250’ south of 

29th Avenue and con nue south through 32nd 

Avenue. There are currently no bicycle facili es to 

the north of 29th Avenue. Bike lanes are present on 

the cross streets of 24th Avenue and 29th Avenue; 

however the lack of bike lanes on Willame e Street 

hinders connec vity to these facili es. Portland 

Street (one block to the west) and Oak Street (one 

block to the east) provide poten al alternate bike 

routes to Willame e Street but these roadways 

include connec vity gaps in the network. 

 

 

Obstacles on the sidewalk—such as u lity poles, fire 
hydrants, and driveway slopes—impact the accessibility 

and travel experience for pedestrians and bicyclists. 

-67-

Item B.



10 

Figure 3 shows the loca on of exis ng bike lanes, 

while Figure 4 shows exis ng sidewalks. Both figures 

show paths, which can be used by both bicyclists and 

pedestrians.  

Driveways and Access Points 

There are over 70 driveways on the 0.8 mile corridor 

of Willame e Street. The Arterial and Collector 

Street Plan (ACSP) indicates that for a typical minor 

arterial, emphasis should be given to mobility rather 

than accessibility and that access regula on is of high 

Section 2. Existing Conditions 

Figure 4: Exis ng Pedestrian Facili es Figure 3: Exis ng Bicycle Facili es 

-68-

Item B.



11 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

priority for roadways with this classifica on. 

However, the commercial nature of Willame e 

Street encourages a balanced approach to 

maintaining access and suppor ng mobility. 

Transit Facili es 

Lane Transit District (LTD) provides public transit 

service to the Eugene‐Springfield areas. The following 

two routes provide service to the study area. 

 Route 24 (Donald) – Route 24 runs both 

direc ons over the length of the study 

corridor. On weekdays, it operates from 

roughly 6:15 am to 11:00 pm with 30‐minute 

headways (2 buses per hour). A er 7:00 pm, 

it operates with one‐hour headways. On 

Saturdays, this route operates very similar to 

weekdays, and on Sundays it operates on 

one‐hour headways from 8:00 am to 8:00 

pm. 

 Route 73 (UO/Willame e) – Route 73 runs 

both direc ons on Willame e Street from 

29th Avenue to 40th Avenue. At 29th Avenue, 

the route heads east to Hilyard Street. On 

weekdays, this route operates from about 

7:00 am to 7:00 pm with headways ranging 

from 20 minutes to two hours, and there is 

no service on weekends. 

Figure 5 shows the loca ons of marked bus stops 

located within the study area as well as the available 

transit routes through the study corridor.  

Figure 5: Transit Stops and Routes 

Bus shelters at 
key transit stops 
along the South 
Willame e 
Street corridor 
provide a more 
comfortable 
wai ng 
experience for 
riders. 

-69-

Item B.



12 

ADJACENT LAND USES 
Figure 6 iden fies the land uses adjacent to the study 

corridor. From 24th Avenue to 29th Avenue, the adjacent land 

use is a combina on of a few single family homes, 

apartment buildings, and retail stores. Woodfield Sta on is 

located between 28th Avenue and 29th Avenue on the west 

side of Willame e Street. Adjacent land use south of 29th 

Avenue consists mostly of apartment buildings and single 

family residen al units. 

TRAVEL CONDITIONS 
Exis ng travel condi ons were also evaluated for the South 

Willame e Street corridor. A wide variety of informa on and 

measures are presented including traveler characteris cs, 

traffic pa erns (i.e., volume, speed, and classifica on), travel 

mes, intersec on opera ons, mul modal opera ons (i.e., 

for ac ve modes and transit), and collision history. 

Traveler Characteris cs 

Data collected on Willame e Street between 24th Avenue 

and 32nd Avenue(7) indicate that the majority of traffic on 

Willame e Street has a local origin or des na on. As shown 

in Figure 7, approximately 63% of trips either begin, end, or 

stop on Willame e Street or use local streets for access. 

Approximately one quarter (24%) of Willame e Street traffic 

is traveling through from one end of the corridor to the 

other (between 24th Avenue and 32nd Avenue) without 

stopping or turning onto another street. Another 13% are 

traveling through the corridor using 29th Avenue to connect 

to or from Willame e Street, without making a local stop.  

Section 2. Existing Conditions 

Figure 6: Adjacent Land Use 

Figure 7: Traveler Characteris cs on Willame e 

Street (24th Ave to 32nd Ave) 

-70-

Item B.



13 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Traffic Pa erns (Volumes, Speed, and 

Classifica on) 

Table 3 presents traffic data collected south of the 

Willame e Street/27th Avenue intersec on(8) 

including volume, speed, and heavy vehicle 

percentages(9). As shown, the daily traffic volume is 

approximately 16,400 along the study corridor. The 

85th percen le speeds (meaning 85% of vehicles 

travel at this speed or slower) along Willame e 

Street are approximately 5 mph higher than the 

posted speed of 25 mph and the heavy vehicle 

percentages are around 2%. 

To further understand the use of this roadway over 

the course of a 24‐hour period, Figure 8 shows 

vehicle movements throughout the day. This graph 

shows that the highest northbound traffic volume 

occurs during the lunch hour and the highest 

southbound volumes occur during the p.m. peak 

hours. The northbound direc on is used more heavily 

during the a.m. hours and the southbound direc on 

tends to have higher volumes during the p.m. hours. 

This direc onal traffic pa ern is typical for 

commu ng trips, with the a.m. flow towards the 

downtown business district and the p.m. traffic 

moving away from the downtown core. 

Table 3: Willame e Street ADT, Speed, and Classifica on 

Characteristic  Northbound Southbound Total 

Average Daily Traffic 7,610 (47%) 8,750 (53%) 16,360 

85th Percen le Speed 31.7 mph 29.8 mph 30.7 mph 

Heavy Vehicle Percentage 2% 2% 2% 

Figure 8: 24‐Hour Bi‐Direc onal Volume (Willame e Street south of 27th Avenue)  

-71-

Item B.



14 

Travel Times 

Data collected on Willame e Street between 24th 

Avenue and 32nd Avenue(10) indicates that travel 

mes vary by me of day. The length of me needed 

to travel from one end of the study corridor to the 

other depends on the traffic volume and resul ng 

delay that may occur. The study corridor is 

approximately three quarter miles in length. 

Figure 9 shows the average travel mes collected for 

all hours of the day compared to the p.m. peak hour, 

by direc on. It takes approximately two and a half 

minutes (150 seconds) to travel through the corridor, 

on average over all hours of the day. The travel me 

is approximately equivalent for southbound and 

northbound travel. However, during the p.m. peak 

hour, when traffic volumes are highest, the travel 

me increases by approximately 20 seconds in the 

northbound direc on and 40 seconds in the 

southbound direc on. 

Intersec on Opera ons 

The City of Eugene specifies a minimum performance 

of level of service (LOS) “D” at signalized and 

unsignalized intersec ons. Excep ons exists to the 

City’s mobility standard within the Central Area 

Transporta on Study Area (primarily downtown and 

near the University of Oregon), where the City allows 

LOS “E” for signalized intersec on opera ons and 

within the Eugene Downtown Traffic Impact Analysis 

Exempt Area, where the City allows LOS “F”. 

However, these do not apply to the study corridor. 

The exis ng traffic opera ons at the study 

intersec ons were determined for the a.m. and p.m. 

peak hours based on turn movement volumes 

collected during the a.m. (7:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m.) 

and the p.m. (4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.) peak periods.(11) 

All of the study intersec ons currently meet 

opera ng standards. The Willame e Street/29th 

Avenue intersec on experiences the greatest delay. 

The es mated average delay, level of service (LOS), 

and volume to capacity (v/c) ra o of each study 

intersec on were determined, as shown in Table 4. 

Traffic volumes and opera ons analysis are detailed 

in Technical Memorandum #2. The intersec on 

traffic counts also included bicycle and pedestrian 

volumes at each intersec on. 

Section 2. Existing Conditions 

Figure 9: Study Corridor Travel Times 

-72-

Item B.



15 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Field observa ons were performed during the p.m. 

peak condi ons at the study intersec ons. Extensive 

queuing was observed on the southbound approach 

to the Willame e Street/29th Avenue intersec on 

which resulted in vehicles having to wait more than a 

full traffic signal cycle to move through the 

intersec on. It was also observed that the 

northbound le ‐turn movement experienced long 

queues that did not clear during each cycle. Traffic 

volume and conges on levels were observed to vary 

from day to day. 

Mul modal LOS 

Auto, pedestrian, bicycle and transit opera ons along 

Willame e Street were evaluated using mul modal 

level of service (MMLOS) methodologies.(12) The 

MMLOS evalua on assesses how well a facility meets 

the needs of the traveling community by repor ng a 

LOS grade (A‐F) for each mode of transporta on. This 

evalua on is performed for roadway segments and 

focuses on the users’ perceived comfort level as they 

travel along the corridor. 

Using signalized intersec ons as break points, 

Willame e Street was divided into four segments for 

analysis. Analysis was performed based on p.m. peak 

hour condi ons when the higher traffic volumes 

would result in the worst case level of service for 

each mode of transporta on. The methodology does 

not account for intersec on opera ons, which were 

addressed previously. 

Pedestrian LOS is influenced by traffic volumes, 

vehicle speeds, sidewalk width, and presence of a 

buffer. Bicycle LOS is influenced by bike lane width, 

pavement quality, on‐street parking, and heavy 

vehicle percentage. Transit LOS is influenced by 

service frequency, bus reliability, average passenger 

load, and transit stop ameni es. 

The limita ons of the MMLOS analysis should be 

noted. For example, the exis ng bicycle facili es on 

Willame e Street were evaluated as LOS “D” MMLOS 

opera ons, a be er than expected ra ng. Based on 

stakeholder interviews, most bicycle users are not 

comfortable biking on Willame e Street without bike 

lanes. Therefore, it is clear that the comfort level of 

Table 4: Exis ng Intersec on Opera ons 

Intersection 
Operating 
Standard 

Existing A.M. Peak Hour Existing P.M. Peak Hour 

Delay LOS V/C Delay LOS V/C 

Signalized               

Willame e Street/24th Avenue LOS D 9.5 A 0.52 (0.53) 13.9 B 0.61 (0.74) 

Willame e Street/25th Avenue LOS D 4.0 A 0.34 (0.36) 9.3 A 0.39 (0.49) 

Willame e Street/27th Avenue LOS D 7.7 A 0.34 (0.39) 8.4 A 0.45 (0.46) 

Willame e Street/29th Avenue LOS D 29.9 C 0.82 (0.82) 41.3 D 0.83 (0.85) 

Willame e Street/32nd Avenue LOS D 26.4 C 0.97 (0.97) 10.5 B 0.67 (0.73) 

Unsignalized               

Willamette Street/Woodfield 
Station Driveway LOS D 0.7 A/B 0.29 3.4 A/C 0.44 

Signalized Intersections: 
LOS = Level of Service of Intersection 
V/C = Volume-to-Capacity Ratio of Intersection (Critical 

Movement) 

Unsignalized Intersections: 
LOS = Level of Service of Major Street/Minor Street 
V/C = Volume-to-Capacity Ratio of Worst Movement 

-73-

Item B.



16 

motorists driving on a roadway with LOS “D” 

condi ons is not a suitable comparison to bicyclists 

travelling on a facility with LOS “D” condi ons. 

Despite the limita ons, the MMLOS evalua on 

provides value as an objec ve comparison that 

considers mul ple modes. 

The exis ng MMLOS opera ons for Willame e Street 

are shown in Figure 10. The auto, pedestrian, and 

bicycle LOS range from “B” to “D”. The LOS for transit 

ranges from “C” to “E” based on the current bus 

service frequency. One transit route currently serves 

the Willame e Street segment from 24th Avenue to 

29th Avenue which results in LOS “D/E”. Two transit 

routes serve the corridor from 29th Avenue to 32nd 

Avenue, which is reflected in the LOS “C” opera ons 

for that segment. 

Collision Analysis 

Collision analysis was performed for the study 

corridor and study intersec ons to iden fy collision 

trends and poten ally hazardous loca ons in need of 

safety improvements.(13) As shown in Table 5, the 

collision rate for Willame e Street was calculated to 

be 5.2 collisions per million vehicle‐miles traveled 

(VMT), nearly double the statewide average of 2.9 

Section 2. Existing Conditions 

Figure 10: Exis ng PM Peak Hour Mul modal Level of Service (MMLOS) 

-74-

Item B.



17 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

collisions per million VMT for urban city minor arterial 

roadways for the same years.(14) 

In total, the Willame e Street corridor between 24th 

Avenue and 32nd Avenue experienced 74 collisions 

during the three years evaluated (2008‐2010). For the 

years evaluated, there were no collisions resul ng in a 

fatality and roughly half of the collisions on the 

corridor (54%) resulted in an injury. 

Collision analysis was also performed at the individual 

study intersec ons to pinpoint high collision loca ons.  

The six study intersec ons had a total of 53 collisions 

during the three years evaluated. Intersec on 

collisions include those that occur along the 

intersec ng cross street, as well as on Willame e 

Street, therefore the total number of intersec on 

collisions differs from the total segment collisions.  

Table 6 lists the number of collisions at each study 

intersec on and categorizes them by severity, type, 

and collision rate. The majority of the collisions were 

related to turning movements, and roughly half of all 

intersec on collisions resulted in an injury. 

During the three years evaluated, there were four 

bicycle collisions and no pedestrian collisions. Three of 

the collisions involving bicycles were within 200 feet 

Segment (Distance) 
Severity Type 

Total 
Collision 

Rateb Injury PDOa Turn Rear-End Angle Other 

24th Ave thru 27th Ave (0.30 mi.) 14 10 7 10 6 1 24 ‐ 

27th Ave thru 29th Ave (0.20 mi.) 15 18 22 8 1 2 33 ‐ 

29th Ave thru 32nd Ave (0.28 mi.) 11 6 6 10 0 1 17 ‐ 

En re Study Corridor (0.78 mi.) 40 34 35 28 7 4 74 5.2 

% of Total 54% 46% 47% 38% 10% 5% 100% ‐ 
a PDO = Property Damage Only 
b Rate Calculation = Collision per year / (Average Daily Traffic x 365 days / 1 million vehicle-miles traveled) 

Table 5: Segment Collision Summary (2008‐2010) 

Table 6: Intersec on Collision Summary (2008‐2010) 

Intersection 
Severity Type 

Total 
Collision 

Rateb Injury PDOa Turn Rear-End Angle Other 

Willame e St/24th Ave 2 2 0 1 3 0 4 0.21 

Willame e St/25th Ave 5 1 2 3 1 0 6 0.34 

Willame e St/27th Ave 5 4 4 2 2 1 9 0.44 

Willame e St/ 

Willame e Plaza Driveway 
3 5 8 0 0 0 8 0.45 

Willame e St/29th Ave 8 14 12 7 2 1 22 0.76 

Willame e St/32nd Ave 3 1 2 2 0 0 4 0.23 

Total 26 27 28 15 8 2 53 ‐ 

% of Total 49% 51% 53% 28% 15% 4% 100% ‐ 
a PDO = Property Damage Only 
b Collisions per 1 million entering vehicles 

-75-

Item B.



18 Section 2. Existing Conditions 

COMMUNITY FORUM #1 – EXPLORE THE 
ALTERNATIVES  
Community Forum 1 was held in November of 2012. The 

mee ng introduced the project to the broader community and 

explained the process toward development of a preferred 

alterna ve design.  

This forum was designed to solicit community input on key 

issues and priori es for travel on Willame e Street, as well as 

generate ideas for poten al improvements.  

Par cipants overwhelmingly agreed that Willame e Street is a 

stressful experience for all modes of travel. Adding bike lanes, 

improving pedestrian crossings, and enhancing sidewalks were 

key priori es for par cipants. 

When par cipants were asked a specific ques on about 

improving bicycle facili es, bike lanes on Willame e Street was 

the preferred op on of the majority. However, par cipants also 

ques oned the impacts of reducing travel lanes in order to add 

bike lanes. Individuals who use the corridor to commute to 

work and school expressed a clear desire for the street to 

con nue to move automobile traffic efficiently. 

Merchants located on Willame e Street stressed that they 

need current traffic volumes to maintain their businesses. 

Addi onally, there was near unanimous support for 

undergrounding u li es, careful landscaping to beau fy and to 

improve stormwater problems, and consolida ng some of the 

corridor’s more than seventy driveways. The idea of slowing car 

traffic to the speed limit was acceptable to almost all a endees. 

of the Willame e Street/29th Avenue intersec on and the 

fourth was at the intersec on of 27th Avenue. Two of the bicycle 

collisions were related to vehicles making turning movements 

into and out of driveways. 

In addi on, of the 74 reported collisions, 26 (35%) were related 

to movements into or out of an alley or driveway. As shown in 

Figure 11, a majority of the driveway‐related collisions were 

concentrated between 27th Avenue and 29th Avenue (collisions 

related to driveways are shown in red). When considering me 

of day, the number of collisions increased around the lunch 

hour and remained high un l 6:00 pm. 

Figure 11: Willame e Street Collisions 

Driveway 
Collisions 
Shown in 
Red. Other 
Collisions 
Shown in 
Blue. 

-76-

Item B.



19 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

3. Alternative Concepts 

Six alterna ve cross‐sec on concepts were proposed for considera on for the 

South Willame e Street Improvement Plan. The six proposed alterna ves are 

illustrated via conceptual cross‐sec ons and overhead plan views (Figures 12 

through 17). The following sec on iden fies each of the proposed cross‐sec on 

alterna ves along with alterna ve‐specific considera ons for key elements of the 

facility design. 

The proposed alterna ves were focused on developing a design for short term 

improvements, while also suppor ng a long‐term corridor vision. To facilitate 

development of a design plan that can be adopted and implemented in the short‐

term, an effort was made to minimize the costs related to right‐of‐way acquisi on 

and curb reconstruc on. Each of the conceptual cross‐sec ons maintains exis ng 

right‐of‐way and only two of the six cross‐sec ons would require curbs to be 

relocated for the majority of the corridor. 

Although different segments of Willame e Street vary in exis ng design and 

surrounding land use characteris cs, the alterna ve cross‐sec on concepts 

a empt to create a founda on for a con nuous and cohesive corridor while 

balancing needs and broad objec ves. Differences may exist in roadway 

configura ons for different segments but the design for the preferred alterna ve 

will be refined to be as consistent as possible while taking into considera on 

mul modal needs across the corridor. 

Mul ple improvement 
alterna ves were considered 
for the South Willame e 
Street corridor. Conceptual 
graphics, such as this one, 
were prepared to help 
visualize the improvements. 

-77-

Item B.



20 

ALTERNATIVE 1: 4-LANE 
Alterna ve 1 maintains the exis ng (curb‐to‐curb) 

roadway configura on north of 29th Avenue (see 

Figure 12). Sidewalks would be expanded to their 

maximum width (approximately nine feet) within the 

exis ng right‐of‐way. The cross‐sec on illustra on is 

not being considered south of 29th Avenue because it 

does not include any dedicated bicycle facili es and 

no parallel facili es are available near Willame e 

Street, south of 30th Avenue. 

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

Alternative 1 Considerations 

Motor Vehicle Mobility  Maintains exis ng four travel lanes 

 Le ‐turning vehicles block travel lanes 

Walkability  Consistent nine‐foot sidewalks 

 Sidewalks narrower than ten‐foot standard width (A) 

 Sidewalk width is not sufficient to support ac ve commercial streetscape (B) 

Bicycle Facili es  No on‐street bike lanes 

 Improved bike access would occur via parallel route improvements and 
crossing enhancements (see Figure 23) 

 Bike sharrows possible on curbside lanes 

Transit Service  Maintains eleven‐foot outside travel lane for buses 

Cost  Rela vely low cost to maintain current cross‐sec on 

(A) Minimum width defined for curbside sidewalks in pedestrian‐oriented commercial areas. Design 
Standards and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways, City of Eugene, 
November 1999 

(B) A concept for the “Heart of the Walkable Business District” characterized by a “Safe, A rac ve Pedestrian 
Experience for Business, Shopping and Entertainment” was iden fied in the South Willame e Area Dra  
Concept Plan, City of Eugene, October 2012. 

-78-

Item B.



21 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 12: Alterna ve 1 Concept  

-79-

Item B.



22 

ALTERNATIVE 2: 4-LANE WITH 
CENTER LEFT-TURN LANE 
Alterna ve 2 maintains four travel lanes north of 29th 

Avenue, with one of the exis ng northbound lanes 

converted to a two‐way center le ‐turn lane (see 

Figure 13). The roadway would include two 

southbound through lanes, one northbound through 

lane, and a two‐way center le ‐turn lane. 

Sidewalks would be expanded to their maximum 

width (approximately nine feet) within the exis ng 

right‐of‐way. The cross‐sec on illustra on is not 

being considered south of 29th Avenue because it 

does not include any dedicated bicycle facili es and 

no parallel facili es are available near Willame e 

Street, south of 30th Avenue. 

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

Alternative 2 Considerations 

Motor Vehicle Mobility  Four total travel lanes maintained (2 Southbound, 1 Northbound, and 1 
Center le ‐turn lane) 

 Provides center le ‐turn lane 

 Southbound capacity increased 

 Northbound capacity reduced 

 Northbound buses stopped in a single through lane will have impact on 
northbound travel 

Walkability  Consistent nine‐foot sidewalks 

 Sidewalks narrower than ten‐foot standard width (A) 

 Sidewalk width is not sufficient to support ac ve commercial streetscape (B) 

Bicycle Facili es  No on‐street bike lanes 

 Improved bike access would occur via parallel route improvements and 
crossing enhancements (see Figure 23) 

 Bike sharrows possible on curbside lanes 

Transit Service  Maintains eleven‐foot outside travel lane for buses 

Business Accessibility  Improves motor vehicle access during PM period, when commercial traffic is 
highest 

 Center le ‐turn lane improves access for turning vehicles 

 Does not significantly change accessibility for transit and bicycle modes 

Cost  Rela vely low cost to convert lane direc on north of 29th Avenue 

 Intersec ons and traffic signals would need to be reconfigured north of 29th 
Avenue 

(A) Minimum width defined for curbside sidewalks in pedestrian‐oriented commercial areas. Design 
Standards and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways, City of Eugene, 
November 1999. 

(B) A concept for the “Heart of the Walkable Business District” characterized by a “Safe, A rac ve Pedestrian 
Experience for Business, Shopping and Entertainment” was iden fied in the South Willame e Area Dra  
Concept Plan, City of Eugene, October 2012. 

-80-

Item B.



23 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 13: Alterna ve 2 Concept 

-81-

Item B.



24 

ALTERNATIVE 3: 3-LANE WITH BIKE 
LANES 
Alterna ve 3 would provide one northbound through 

lane, one southbound through lane, a two‐way 

center le ‐turn lane, and a bike lane in each direc on 

(see Figure 14). This configura on would convert 

most of the segment north of 29th Avenue from four 

motor vehicle lanes to three, while adding two bike 

lanes. Three travel lanes would be maintained south 

of 29th Avenue. 

Sidewalks would be expanded to the maximum 

available width within the remaining right‐of‐way. 

Sidewalk and lane widths may vary across the 

corridor depending on the exis ng curb‐to‐curb 

width.  

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

Alternative 3 Considerations 

Motor Vehicle Mobility  Reduces number of travel lanes from four to three, north of 28th Avenue 

 Capacity reduced and travel me increased for through‐traveling vehicles 

 Ten‐foot travel lanes are narrow for trucks and less than the eleven‐foot 
standard width (A) 

Walkability  Consistent nine‐foot sidewalks 

 Sidewalks narrower than ten‐foot standard width (B) 

 Bike lanes provide separa on from motor vehicle lanes 

 Sidewalk width is not sufficient to support ac ve commercial streetscape (C) 

Bicycle Facili es  Includes six‐foot bike lanes 

Transit Service  Ten‐foot travel lanes are narrow for buses 

 Poten al conflicts with bike lanes 

Business Accessibility  Center le ‐turn lane improves access for turning vehicles 

 Improved bicycle access 

Cost  Moderate cost to provide center le ‐turn lane and bike lanes 

 Intersec ons and traffic signals would need to be reconfigured 

Other  Center le ‐turn lane offers opportuni es for design elements including 
median treatments (e.g., landscaping, pedestrian refuge, access 
management) 

(A) Minimum travel lane width on Minor Arterials is 11 feet. Design Standards and Guidelines for Eugene 
Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways, City of Eugene, November 1999 

(B) Minimum width defined for curbside sidewalks in pedestrian‐oriented commercial areas. Design 
Standards and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways, City of Eugene, 
November 1999. 

(C) A concept for the “Heart of the Walkable Business District” characterized by a “Safe, A rac ve Pedestrian 
Experience for Business, Shopping and Entertainment” was iden fied in the South Willame e Area Dra  
Concept Plan, City of Eugene, October 2012. 

-82-

Item B.



25 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 14: Alterna ve 3 Concept 

-83-

Item B.



26 

ALTERNATIVE 4: 3-LANE WITH 
BUFFERED BIKE LANES 
Alterna ve 4 would include one northbound through 

lane, one southbound through lane, a two‐way 

center le ‐turn lane, and a buffered bike lane in each 

direc on (see Figure 15). The roadway would need to 

be reconstructed to expand curb‐to‐curb width to 47 

feet. The alterna ve may apply to the north and 

south of 29th Avenue. 

Sidewalks would be expanded to the maximum 

available width within the remaining right‐of‐way. 

However, with the 47 foot curb‐to‐curb width, 

sidewalk width would be limited to approximately six 

and one‐half feet on both sides of the street, unless 

addi onal right‐of‐way is acquired.  

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

Alternative 4 Considerations 

Motor Vehicle Mobility  Reduces number of travel lanes from four to three, north of 29th Avenue 

 Capacity reduced and travel me increased for through‐traveling vehicles 

 Maintains eleven‐foot outside travel lanes 

Walkability  Sidewalks only 6.5 foot in width 

 Curbside sidewalks far narrower than ten‐foot standard width (A) 

 Buffered Bike lanes provide separa on from motor vehicle lanes 

 Sidewalk width is not sufficient to support ac ve commercial streetscape (B) 

Bicycle Facili es  Includes five‐foot bike lanes with two‐foot buffers 

 Bike lanes painted green to dis nguish from motor vehicle lanes 

Transit Service  Maintains eleven‐foot travel lanes for buses 

 Poten al conflicts with bike lanes 

Business Accessibility  Center le ‐turn lane improves access for turning vehicles 

 Improved bicycle access 

Cost  Higher cost for reconstruc on to expand exis ng curb‐to‐curb width 

 With reconstruc on, u li es should be relocated for ADA compliance 

 Intersec ons and traffic signals would need to be reconfigured 

Other  Center le ‐turn lane offers opportuni es for design elements including raised 
median treatments (e.g., landscaping, pedestrian refuge, access management) 

 Sidewalk and right‐of‐way width may be widened with redevelopment (i.e., as 
a condi on of development approval) 

 Narrow width limits sidewalk design treatments (e.g., landscaping, ligh ng) 

(A) Minimum width defined for curbside sidewalks in pedestrian‐oriented commercial areas. Design Standards 
and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways, City of Eugene, November 1999. 

(B) A concept for the “Heart of the Walkable Business District” characterized by a “Safe, A rac ve Pedestrian 
Experience for Business, Shopping and Entertainment” was iden fied in the South Willame e Area Dra  
Concept Plan, City of Eugene, October 2012. 

-84-

Item B.



27 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 15: Alterna ve 4 Concept 

-85-

Item B.



28 

ALTERNATIVE 5: 3-LANE WITH WIDE 
SIDEWALKS 
Alterna ve 5 would convert most of the roadway 

segment north of 29th Avenue from four motor 

vehicle lanes to three (see Figure 16). The roadway 

would be reconstructed to expand sidewalks, 

resul ng in a narrower curb‐to‐curb width (34 feet 

instead of the current 41 to 42 foot width.) No new 

bike lanes would be included on Willame e Street. 

Sidewalks would be expanded to the maximum 

available width within the remaining right‐of‐way. 

With the 34‐foot curb‐to‐curb width, sidewalks could 

be extended up to 13‐feet. The cross‐sec on 

illustra on is not being considered south of 29th 

Avenue because it does not include any dedicated 

bicycle facili es and no parallel facili es are available 

near Willame e Street, south of 30th Avenue. 

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

Alternative 5 Considerations 

Motor Vehicle Mobility  Reduces number of travel lanes from four to three, north of 29th Avenue 

 Capacity reduced and travel me increased for through‐traveling vehicles 

 Maintains eleven‐foot outside travel lanes 

Walkability  Provides wide (13‐foot) sidewalks to facilitate a transforma ve pedestrian 
environment including design treatments (e.g., storefront displays, café 
sea ng, landscaping) 

Bicycle Facili es  No on‐street bike lanes 

 Improved bike access would occur via parallel route improvements and 
crossing enhancements (see Figure 23) 

 Bike sharrows possible on curbside lanes 

 Poten al to provide raised bike facility if addi onal right‐of‐way acquired for 
sidewalk widening and reconstruc on 

Transit Service  Maintains eleven‐foot travel lanes for buses 

Business Accessibility  Center le ‐turn lane improves access for turning vehicles 

 Wide sidewalks provide opportuni es for design treatments to support 
commercial development, aesthe c treatments, and walkability 

Cost  Higher cost to reconstruct curbs to expand/reconstruct sidewalks 

 Intersec ons and traffic signals would need to be reconfigured 

Other  Center le ‐turn lane offers opportuni es for design elements including raised 
median treatments (e.g., landscaping, pedestrian refuge, access 
management) 

 Wide sidewalks support “Green Street” design treatments 

-86-

Item B.



29 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 16: Alterna ve 5 Concept 

-87-

Item B.



30 

ALTERNATIVE 6: 2-LANE WITH BIKE 
LANES, MEDIAN & ROUNDABOUTS 
Alterna ve 6 would convert the corridor to two 

motor vehicle lanes with bike lanes in each direc on 

(see Figure 17). A median would be constructed in 

the middle of the roadway, with roundabouts at 

intersec ons. The curb‐to‐curb roadway width would 

not need to be modified outside of intersec ons. 

Sidewalks would be expanded to the maximum 

available width within the remaining right‐of‐way. 

Sidewalk and lane widths may vary across the 

corridor depending on the exis ng curb‐to‐curb 

width. 

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

Alternative 6 Considerations 

Motor Vehicle Mobility  Reduces number of travel lanes from four (or three) to two 

 Capacity reduced and travel me increased for through‐traveling vehicles 

 Median would restrict turns at many driveways to right‐in‐right‐out 

 Intersec ons with roundabouts would provide opportuni es for U‐turns 

 Maintains eleven‐foot outside travel lanes 

 Medians and roundabouts would greatly improve corridor safety 

Walkability  Consistent nine‐foot sidewalks 

 Sidewalks narrower than ten‐foot standard width (A) 

 Bike lanes provide separa on from motor vehicle lanes 

 Wide median provides opportuni es for pedestrian crossing refuges 

 Sidewalk width is not sufficient to support ac ve commercial streetscape (B) 

Bicycle Facili es  Includes six‐foot bike lanes 

Transit Service  Maintains eleven‐foot travel lanes for buses 

 Poten al conflicts with bike lanes 

Business Accessibility  Right‐in‐right‐out limits motor vehicle access to driveways 

 Improved bicycle access 

Cost  Very high cost to construct medians and roundabouts 

 Property acquisi on needed to construct appropriately‐sized roundabouts 

Other  Raised median offers opportuni es for streetscape design elements (e.g., 
landscaping, pedestrian refuge, access management) 

 Impact on proper es near intersec ons due to construc ng roundabouts 

 More consistent cross‐sec on throughout the corridor 

(A) Minimum width defined for curbside sidewalks in pedestrian‐oriented commercial areas. Design Standards 
and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways and Accessways, City of Eugene, November 1999. 

(B) A concept for the “Heart of the Walkable Business District” characterized by a “Safe, A rac ve Pedestrian 
Experience for Business, Shopping and Entertainment” was iden fied in the South Willame e Area Dra  
Concept Plan, City of Eugene, October 2012. 

-88-

Item B.



31 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 17: Alterna ve 6 Concept 

-89-

Item B.



32 

COMMUNITY FORUM #2 – EVALUATE 
THE ALTERNATIVES  
Community Forum 2 was held in February of 2013. 

The mee ng allowed the project team to present 

the alterna ves concepts that had been developed 

and describe how well they met evalua on criteria. 

This event was designed to help narrow down to 

three alterna ves to advance to Tier 2 screening. 

The mee ng par cipants listened carefully to the 

alterna ves and were respec ul and though ul in 

asking ques ons and sharing a wide range of 

opinions. A er mee ng in small groups to discuss 

the alterna ves, par cipants completed Input 

Forms to indicate which three alterna ves they 

prefer to forward for further study. The results of 

the mee ng input forms are shown below. 

 Alterna ve 3: 3‐Lane with bike lanes (208 

preferences) 

 Alterna ve 4: 3‐Lane with buffered bike 

lanes (142 preferences) 

 Alterna ve 5: 3‐Lane with wide sidewalks 

(139 preferences) 

 Alterna ve 6: 2‐Lane with bike lanes, 

median & roundabout (113 preferences) 

 Alterna ve 1: 4‐Lane (97 preferences) 

 Alterna ve 2: 4‐Lane with center le ‐turn 

lane (83 preferences)  

Section 3. Alternative Concepts 

-90-

Item B.



33 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

4. Screening Evaluation 

From the six alterna ves ini ally iden fied, three were selected by the City of 

Eugene for further refinement and more detailed analysis. The three alterna ves 

provide the community and decision makers a range of op ons for the South 

Willame e Street Improvement Plan. This decision was based on both technical 

review and public input received. The three alterna ve configura ons advanced to 

the Tier 2 screening phase were a 4‐lane (Alterna ve 1), 3‐lane with bike lanes 

(Alterna ve 3) and 3‐lane with wide sidewalks (Alterna ve 5). 

The Tier 1 screening evaluated community priori es and iden fied broad level 

tradeoffs that exist within a constrained right‐of‐way. The screening provided a 

qualita ve assessment for each alterna ve based on criteria and scoring 

methodology iden fied in Technical Memorandum #1 (South Willame e Street 

Improvement Plan – Evalua on Criteria). As previously described, the evalua on 

criteria were established to assess the poten al of alterna ves to best meet the 

transporta on needs of the users of Willame e Street based on goals and 

objec ves from other planning efforts. 

The scoring evalua on results assisted the City of Eugene staff in selec ng three 

alterna ves to advance for further considera on. The evalua on was considered 

together with community and stakeholder input received through the public 

involvement process. Evalua on criteria scoring for each of the six proposed 

alterna ve cross‐sec on concepts is summarized in Table 7. The screening criteria 

and scoring for each alterna ve are further detailed in the appendix. 

 

Public input was gathered in 
mul ple ways throughout 
the project, including at 
displays along the corridor. 
The input received played a 
key role in the alterna ves 
screening process. 

-91-

Item B.



34 Section 4. Screening Evaluation 

The overall results of the scoring evalua on did not 

show an alterna ve that was clearly superior to 

others. The scoring differences between alterna ves 

where rela vely small. Total scores ranged from 3 to 

7 resul ng in a maximum difference of four across 23 

scoring criteria. 

Alterna ves 3, 5, and 6 scored highest in the Tier 1 

screening evalua on, while alterna ves 1, 2, and 4 

where lower scoring. Although the 4‐lane alterna ves 

(Alterna ve 1 and 2) scored the lowest on the 

evalua on criteria, the public input received indicated 

that further analysis and discussion was needed 

before reduc ons to motor vehicle capacity should be 

further considered. Therefore, Alterna ves 1, 3, and 5 

were selected by the City of Eugene for further 

evalua on. 

Community involvement played a key role in the 
development of the Improvement Plan 

 

Community Forum #1 ‐ Explore 

Community Forum #2 ‐ Evaluate 

Community Forum #3 ‐ Refine 

Stakeholder Interviews/Focus Groups 

Key project issues and poten al solu ons were 

discussed in advance of each Community 

Forum. 

“Explore the Alterna ves” ‐‐ The community 

provided input on key considera ons, 

priori es, and objec ves for Willame e Street. 

“Evaluate the Alterna ves” ‐‐ The community 

provided feedback on the project alterna ves 

and facility design considera ons. 

The community provided feedback on the first 
screening process and technical findings for the 
three alterna ves advanced for considera on. 

Improvement Plan 

Table 7: Evalua on Criteria Scoring of Alterna ves 

-92-

Item B.



35 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

This sec on describes addi onal roadway design details and op ons for corridor 

implementa on of each of the three alterna ve concepts advanced for the South 

Willame e Street Improvement Plan. Discussion is presented for how roadway 

elements are applied on different segments of Willame e Street, intersec on 

configura ons, bicycle and pedestrian connec ons to the corridor, and other 

design considera ons. Cost es mates for each alterna ve are also iden fied. 

Some planned improvements are desired throughout the corridor and will be 

assumed for each alterna ve. These improvements include new pavement, 

improved drainage, wider sidewalks, and enhancements to pedestrian and bicycle 

access around Willame e Streets. Other improvements may vary depending on 

the loca on and alterna ve configura on. 

POTENTIAL SEGMENT CHANGES 
The following sec on describes an overview of poten al differences by roadway 

segment. The cross sec on concepts previously illustrated apply on the north 

segment of Willame e Street, from 24th Avenue to near 28th Avenue. In the south 

segment of the study corridor, no differences are proposed for any alterna ve. 

Around 29th Avenue, a transi on area will provide con nuity between the corridor 

segments while best mee ng the needs and objec ves iden fied for South 

Willame e Street. 

The applica on of the alterna ve configura ons through the corridor are further 

detailed and illustrated through overhead plan views that show configura ons for 

travel lanes, bike lanes, sidewalks, and other roadway elements. Plan views for the 

5. Alternatives Refinement 

Three South Willame e 
Street corridor alterna ves 
were selected for further 
refinement and more 
detailed analysis. 
Conceptual sketches were 
prepared to help visualize 
the alterna ves. 

-93-

Item B.



36 

en re corridor (from 24th Avenue to 32nd Avenue) 

are included in the appendix. 

24th Avenue to near 28th Avenue Roadway 

Configura on: Alterna ve 1 maintains the exis ng 

4‐lane roadway between 24th Avenue and near 28th 

Avenue. Alterna ve 3 illustrates a 3‐lane roadway 

(two travel lanes and a con nuous Center le ‐turn 

lane) and con nuous bike lanes. Alterna ve 5 is 

also a 3‐lane alterna ve, but with widened 

sidewalks rather than con nuous bike lanes. 

24th Avenue to near 28th Avenue Sidewalk 

Configura on: All three alterna ves a empt to 

maximize the sidewalk width within the exis ng 

right‐of‐way. For Alterna ve 1 and Alterna ve 3, 

the sidewalks would be reconstructed to 

approximately 9‐feet wide. For Alterna ve 5, the 

sidewalk widths would expand to approximately 13 

feet wide by replacing the bike lanes illustrated for 

Alterna ve 3 with addi onal sidewalk space. 

Near 28th Avenue to near 30th Avenue Roadway 

Configura on: This sec on is a “transi on area” 

from the proposed cross‐sec ons iden fied for 

each conceptual alterna ve, through the 29th 

Avenue intersec on to near 30th Avenue. 

Alterna ve 1 would maintain the exis ng roadway 

configura on, which widens from one northbound 

motor vehicle lane to two (and a le ‐turn pocket at 

29th Avenue) and widens between the Woodfield 

Sta on Driveway and 29th Avenue to add a 

southbound le ‐turn pocket to the two exis ng 

southbound motor vehicle through lanes. The 

northbound bike lane would end at 29th Place and 

the southbound bike lane would begin south of 

29th Avenue, as currently configured. 

In Alterna ve 3, the exis ng bike lanes would be 

extended northward through the 29th Avenue 

intersec on in order to provide con nuous bike 

lanes between 32nd Avenue and 24th Avenue. 

Adding bike lanes would require either expanding 

the curb‐to‐curb width of the roadway or removing 

Section 5. Alternatives Refinement 

Figure 18: Poten al Changes by Segment 

-94-

Item B.



37 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

a motor vehicle lane. Widening the curb‐to‐curb 

width would likely require narrower sidewalks or 

addi onal right‐of‐way near the 29th Avenue 

intersec on. A proposed design modifica on 

presented for Alterna ve 3 (and Alterna ve 5) would 

add a second southbound travel lane just north of the 

Woodfield Sta on Driveway, but not include a second 

northbound through travel lane (included in 

Alterna ve 1). 

The configura on of travel lanes for Alterna ve 5 

would be similar to Alterna ve 1 for bike lanes and 

Alterna ve 3 for motor vehicle lanes. Bike lanes 

would begin (southbound) and end (northbound) 

south of the 29th Avenue intersec on. A single 

northbound motor vehicle through lane would be 

included, instead of the two exis ng lanes. The 

addi onal space made available by poten ally not 

including a second northbound travel lane in this 

sec on would accommodate wider sidewalk space 

rather than the bike lanes provided in Alterna ve 3. 

Near 28th Avenue to near 30th Avenue Sidewalk 

Configura on: Sidewalk widths in this “transi on 

area” could vary depending on the specific design of 

motor vehicle lanes, turn pocket lengths, bike lanes, 

etc. In general, Alterna ve 5 provides the narrowest 

curb‐to‐curb width and therefore the most space for 

sidewalks and pedestrian ameni es within the 

exis ng right‐of‐way. 

Near 30th Avenue to 32nd Avenue Roadway 

Configura on: No changes to the exis ng travel and 

bike lane configura ons are proposed in any 

alterna ve between 32nd Avenue and near 29th Place 

(where the exis ng northbound bike lane ends). 

Near 30th Avenue to 32nd Avenue Sidewalk 

Configura on: All three alterna ves would expand 

sidewalk widths to approximately 8.5 feet, or the 

maximum available within the exis ng right‐of‐way. 

Figure 19: Poten al Motor Vehicle  

Lane Changes by Segment  

for Alterna ves 3 & 5 

-95-

Item B.



38 

POTENTIAL INTERSECTION CHANGES 
The following sec on describes how each alterna ve 

would be accommodated at the study intersec ons. 

Plan views displaying intersec on configura ons for 

each alterna ve are included in the appendix. 

24th Avenue Intersec on: No changes to right‐of‐way 

or curb‐to‐curb width are proposed at the 

intersec on in Alterna ves 1 or 3. In Alterna ve 5, 

the south leg of Willame e Street would be 

reconstructed with curb‐to‐curb width narrowed to 

accommodate wider sidewalks. In Alterna ve 3 and 

Alterna ve 5, the south leg of Willame e Street 

would be reconfigured from four travel lanes to three 

lanes (one lane in each direc on with a center le  

turn lane in the middle). The space gained from 

removing one of the four travel lanes would be used 

for either bicycle lanes (Alterna ve 3) or wider 

sidewalks (Alterna ve 5). The north leg of Willame e 

Street would convert from two through lanes to one 

through lane and a dedicated le  turn lane. The 

traffic signal would also need to be modified in 

Alterna ves 3 and 5. No changes to right‐of‐way are 

proposed at the intersec on in any alterna ve. 

25th Avenue Intersec on & 27th Avenue 

Intersec on: No changes to right‐of‐way or curb‐to‐

curb width are proposed in Alterna ves 1 or 3, while 

sidewalks are expanded in Alterna ve 5. Traffic 

signals would need to be reconfigured to 

accommodate the 3‐lane configura on iden fied in 

Alterna ve 3 and Alterna ve 5. No changes are 

iden fied for 25th Avenue or 27th Avenue approaches 

at Willame e Street. 

Woodfield Sta on Driveway Intersec on: It is 

recommended that a traffic signal at this intersec on 

be considered as a design op on in all alterna ves. A 

traffic signal would provide be er access for turning 

vehicles and an addi onal pedestrian crossing 

opportunity. No changes to the exis ng lane 

configura on would be needed in Alterna ve 1. In 

Alterna ve 3 and Alterna ve 5, there would be a le  

turn lane on the northbound approach, and a single 

northbound through travel lane. Southbound, one 

travel lane would widen to two approximately 100 

feet north of the intersec on. Driveway 

modifica ons would likely be necessary on the east 

side of Willame e Street, across from the Woodfield 

Sta on Driveway. No right‐of‐way changes are 

an cipated in any of the alterna ves. Sidewalks will 

be extended within the exis ng right‐of‐way. 

29th Avenue Intersec on: Compared to other study 

intersec ons, 29th Avenue has significantly higher 

traffic volumes (see Table 8). To adequately serve the 

Figure 20: Conceptual Back‐to‐Back Turn Lanes at 

Woodfield Sta on and 29th Avenue Intersec ons 

Section 5. Alternatives Refinement 

-96-

Item B.



39 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

intersec on traffic demand and meet City of Eugene 

traffic opera ons performance standards, the 

Willame e Street approaches require more than a 

single through lane on each approach. Alterna ve 1 

includes a 5‐lane cross‐sec on at 29th Avenue, as 

exists currently. For Alterna ve 3 and 5, the 

proposed design op on would include a 4‐lane cross‐

sec on at 29th Avenue including a single northbound 

travel lane. Removing one of the two exis ng 

northbound travel lanes may be considered to 

accommodate bike lanes or wider sidewalks. Without 

reducing the number of vehicle lanes, addi onal right

‐of‐way would be required to provide bike lanes or 

wider sidewalks. 

32nd Avenue Intersec on: No changes are proposed 

in any alterna ve to this intersec on. 

ROUNDABOUT COMPATIBILITY 
Roundabouts can improve traffic flow and reduce 

overall delay at many roadway intersec ons. 

Roundabouts generally reduce the number of overall 

collisions and fatali es when they are installed and 

are less expensive to operate and maintain compared 

to traffic signals. However, emergency vehicle and 

truck operators may be opposed to roundabouts in 

some areas. Furthermore, there may be significant 

property acquisi on costs to provide the right‐of‐way 

needed to construct appropriately‐sized 

roundabouts. 

Roundabouts would need to be constructed with 

mul ple lanes to serve the four travel lanes included 

in Alterna ve 1. The three‐lane configura ons 

(Alterna ves 3 and 5) could be constructed with 

single lane roundabouts; however, the traffic analysis 

results (shown in Technical Memorandum #8) 

indicate that single lane roundabouts may not 

comfortably accommodate peak hour traffic demand 

at several intersec ons. Mul ‐lane roundabouts 

could be considered but would require a larger 

intersec on configura on. 

These larger configura ons would require property 

acquisi on to provide the right‐of‐way needed to 

construct the appropriately sized roundabouts. Right‐

of‐way acquisi on can have significant costs and 

impacts to adjacent proper es, par cularly in a 

developed commercial area. The intersec on of 29th 

Avenue and Willame e Street would likely require a 

mul ‐lane roundabout that would have significant 

impacts to adjacent proper es and businesses. 

While other intersec ons on Willame e Street could 

be configured with smaller layouts, the impacts and 

costs for the right‐of‐way acquisi on and 

construc on may be significant even if the 29th 

Avenue intersec on remained as currently 

configured. Figure 21 illustrates a poten al 

configura on for a single‐lane roundabout at the 27th 

Avenue intersec on. This roundabout configura on 

is typical for an urbanized area and has a 110 foot 

inscribed circle diameter (the distance from one curb 

to the other, directly through the center of the 

roundabout). 

Roundabouts are not explicitly included in the facility 

design of any alterna ve but may be considered 

further as poten al design refinements. Total costs 

for construc ng roundabouts are es mated to be 

approximately $650,000 per intersec on based on 

the single lane roundabout illustrated for Figure 21. 

This cost es mate includes right‐of‐way and would 

replace costs associated with traffic signal 

modifica ons, which are generally es mated to cost 

Intersection 
Total Entering 
Traffic Volume 

Willame e Street/24th Avenue 1,834 

Willame e Street/25th Avenue 1,668 

Willame e Street/27th Avenue 1,914 

Willame e Street/Woodfield 
Sta on Driveway 

1,706 

Willame e Street/29th Avenue 2,732 

Willame e Street/32nd Avenue 1,613 

Table 8: Intersec on Volume (2012 PM Peak Hour) 

-97-

Item B.



40 

$250,000 per intersec on. Therefore, the es mated 

addi onal cost for roundabout construc on would be 

approximately $400,000 per intersec on. The cost 

differences are primarily due to right‐of‐way 

acquisi on and the need to reconstruct the minor 

street (e.g., 27th Avenue) approaches leading to the 

roundabout. 

ACCESS MANAGEMENT ON PUBLIC 
AND PRIVATE APPROACHES 
There are currently over 70 driveways on Willame e 

Street from 24th Avenue to 32nd Avenue. This creates 

numerous conflict points for motor vehicles, 

pedestrians and bicyclists. Reducing conflict points is 

likely to result in fewer crashes and increased 

capacity along the corridor. Managing access points 

along the corridor requires finding an appropriate 

balance between safety, mobility, and access. 

Consolida ng driveway access points will be 

considered as part of each alterna ve, par cularly 

where specific safety benefits would result. 

Preliminary considera on of access management 

strategies for the corridor indicates that 

recommended strategies will not be significantly 

different for any alterna ve compared to another. 

The following strategies will be considered for the 

Willame e Street corridor: 

Figure 21: Poten al Single‐lane Roundabout Configura on at 27th Avenue and Willame e Street 

Section 5. Alternatives Refinement 

-98-

Item B.



41 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

 Removing and consolida ng access points to 

exis ng businesses 

 Sharing accesses between adjacent property 

owners 

 Implemen ng turn lanes at driveways 

 Parking circula on enhancements 

BUS STOPS AND PULLOUTS 
Lane Transit District (LTD) currently services two bus 

routes along Willame e Street. Buses stop on the 

street and block the curbside travel lane during 

passenger boarding and aligh ng. Construc ng bus 

pullouts would remove stopped vehicles from travel 

lanes, but would likely require right‐of‐way 

acquisi on and would also require buses in the 

pullouts to merge back into the traffic stream. Figure 

22 illustrates the dimensions of a poten al bus 

pullout along Willame e Street. The traffic impacts 

of bus pullouts are further discussed in Technical 

Memorandum 8. 

No bus pullouts are recommended for the corridor 

given the frequency of bus uses (five per hour south 

of 29th Avenue and two per hour north of 29th 

Avenue), right‐of‐way impacts, and increased delay 

for transit vehicles. 

Improving bicycle and pedestrian access to transit 

stops would support transit usage along the corridor. 

If sidewalks are expanded there may be space 

available for improved bus stop ameni es such as 

covered benches (shelters), real‐ me arrival 

informa on, or other transit stop ameni es. No 

addi onal transit stop ameni es are suggested for 

the corridor. Ridership should be monitored to 

iden fy poten al future improvements as the 

Willame e Street corridor is redesigned and the 

surrounding land uses change over me. 

ENHANCED BICYCLE CONNECTIONS 
The following sec on describes poten al bicycle 

facility improvements nearby, connec ng to, and 

crossing Willame e Street. These improvements may 

be combined with bike lanes on Willame e Street or 

considered independently. The bicycle connec ons 

iden fied may apply for any alterna ve under 

considera on. 

Figure 22: Bus Pullout Illustra on 

(Source: City of Eugene, revised per Lane Transit District guidance) 

 

50’ 

70’ 

-99-

Item B.



42 

Nearby Bike Routes 

Bicycle facility improvements could include improved 

bicycle access on local streets, with a variety of bike 

boulevard treatments applied. Figure 23 illustrates 

exis ng and proposed bike routes near the study 

corridor that would improve connec ons to 

Willame e Street and/or provide parallel routes of 

travel. Most of the routes iden fied were proposed 

in the Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan, 

which also provides design guidance on a variety of 

bicycle design op ons. 

Figure 23: Bicycle Facility Improvements 

Crossing Improvements for Bicycles 

To support development of the surrounding bicycle 

network, crossing improvements could be provided 

such as intersec on priority areas (i.e., “Green 

Boxes”) or rider‐ac vated push‐bu on signals for 

crossing at intersec ons with traffic signals. 

Two crossing improvement op ons are proposed on 

Willame e Street for the alterna ves: 

 Combined bike/turn lane on 24th Avenue: a 

bike lane would be striped with a dashed line 

within the inside por on of the exis ng right 

turn lane. Signage would be used to iden fy 

the combined lane and guide users toward 

the proper posi oning. This would extend 

the exis ng bike lane on 24th Avenue (which 

currently drops away) and improve comfort 

for some riders who wish to travel through to 

Section 5. Alternatives Refinement 

-100-

Item B.



43 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

the proposed Bike Boulevard on Portland 

Street. A local example of this configura on 

is located on 13th Avenue at Pa erson Street. 

For Alterna ve 3 (which includes bike lanes 

on Willame e Street) a green bike box may 

be added to improve access for bicycle riders 

making a le  turn from 24th Avenue to 

Willame e Street. 

 Crosswalk with Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon at 

29th Place: a Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon is a 

traffic control device that stops roadway 

traffic to allow pedestrians or bicycles to 

cross safely. The beacon is ac vated only 

when a pedestrian or bicyclist pushes the 

bu on to cross. By loca ng a safe crossing 

where the current northbound bike lane 

ends north of 30th Avenue (at the driveway/

path connec ng to 29th Place), safe access 

will be provided for southbound bicycle 

riders wishing to connect to Willame e 

Street from Oak Street, via 29th Place. The 

beacon would be most beneficial in 

Alterna ves 1 and 5, where there are no 

con nuous bike lanes on Willame e Street, 

but may also be considered as part of 

Alterna ve 3. 

These improvements are illustrated in the excerpts of 

the plan view drawings shown in Figure 24 below for 

Alterna ve 1 and Alterna ve 3. The plan view 

illustra ons for each alterna ve are included in the 

appendix. 

Alterna ve 1 – Shared Lane Alterna ve 3 – Shared Lane with 
Bike Box 

Figure 24: Bicycle Improvement Design Op ons 

-101-

Item B.



44 

ENHANCED PEDESTRIAN 
CONNECTIONS 
The pedestrian environment on Willame e Street 

will be improved with wider sidewalks that are 

included in each alterna ve. To further enhance the 

pedestrian experience, crossing opportuni es should 

be improved along Willame e Street. A variety of 

design treatments can be implemented to enhance 

the pedestrian crossings. 

 Signing and striping: pedestrian accessibility 

may be emphasized through enhanced 

signing or striping near intersec ons 

 Modified pavement surface: physical 

differences such as raised pavement or 

textured crosswalks provide a visual signal to 

drivers to watch for pedestrians. 

 Median pedestrian crossing refuges (i.e., 

island): pedestrians may cross a roadway in 

stages when a median pedestrian refuge is 

available. This is especially beneficial for 

users who require more me for crossings. 

 Leading pedestrian interval: pedestrians at 

signalized intersec ons could be provided 

with a three‐ to four‐second head start for 

entering into the crossing, before parallel 

traffic is given a green light. Leading 

pedestrian intervals allow for pedestrians to 

be more visible to turning vehicles. 

 Mid‐block crossings: Opportuni es for 

pedestrian crossings outside of exis ng 

intersec ons may be provided at mid‐block 

crossing loca ons. Mid‐block crossings 

improve pedestrian access by decreasing the 

distance between des na ons that require 

crossing the roadway. A variety of design 

treatments exist for mid‐block crossings 

including rectangular rapid flashing beacons 

and overhead flashing beacons.  

Currently the two largest distances between 

signalized crossings on the corridor are over 1,400 

feet (between 29th Avenue and 32nd Avenue) and 

Rectangular 
Rapid Flashing 

Beacons (RRFBs) 
are also used to 

inform drivers 
that pedestrians 
are crossing the 

road. 

Median pedestrian crossing refuges provide a wai ng area 
for a two‐stage pedestrian crossing.  

Overhead flashing beacons inform drivers that pedestrians 
are crossing the road. 

Section 5. Alternatives Refinement 

-102-

Item B.



45 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

over 900 feet (between 27th Avenue and 29th 

Avenue.) Two poten al crossing improvements are 

proposed for the corridor: 

 Traffic signal with crosswalks at Woodfield 

Sta on Driveway: a traffic signal at this 

loca on would provide a safe crossing for 

pedestrians between commercial areas and 

transit stops on both sides of the street. The 

intersec on could be designed with a median 

pedestrian crossing refuge (i.e., island) on 

the north crosswalk in Alterna ves 3 and 5, 

which include a center le ‐turn lane. The 

median refuge allows pedestrians to cross a 

roadway in stages, which is especially 

beneficial for users who require more me 

for crossings. 

 Crosswalk with Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon at 

29th Place: a Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon could 

be located south of 29th Avenue to provide a 

safe crossing for both pedestrians and bicycle 

riders. The signal would be most beneficial in 

Alterna ves 1 and 5, where there are no 

con nuous bike lanes on Willame e Street, 

but may also be considered as part of 

Alterna ve 3. 

These improvements are illustrated in the plan view 

drawings included in the appendix. 

ON-STREET PARKING 
On‐street parallel parking provides convenient access 

for adjacent businesses and a buffer between 

pedestrians and motor vehicles. On‐street parking 

would likely have a very favorable benefit to the 

pedestrian environment, however, given the 

constrained right‐of‐way and community priori es, 

on‐street parking is not considered in any of the 

three design alterna ves. On‐street parking may be 

reconsidered as part of long‐term enhancements to 

the corridor. 

To provide on‐street parking along Willame e Street, 

either travel lanes will need to be eliminated, or the 

right‐of‐way will need to be expanded to relocate 

sidewalks further from the roadway travel lanes. On‐

street parallel parking spots are typically seven to 

eight feet wide. Figure 25 illustrates one concept 

regarding how on‐street parking may be 

incorporated into the corridor. The concept 

effec vely swaps off‐street private parking for on‐

street public parking. This strategy may be applied 

along the length of the corridor or along individual 

blocks. 

Figure 25: Conceptual Illustra on of On‐Street 

Parking on Willame e Street  

-103-

Item B.



46 

ALTERNATIVE COST ESTIMATES 
Planning‐level cost es mates were developed for 

each alterna ve, with the facility designs specified in 

this memorandum. The cost es mates are shown in 

Table 9. The cost of the paving project ($2.1 Million) 

is the same for each alterna ve. The remaining costs 

vary by alterna ve, with the bulk of the costs due to 

rebuilding the sidewalks. Alterna ve 5 is the most 

expensive because it would provide the widest 

sidewalk and require reconstruc on of exis ng curbs.  

All costs shown are planning‐level es mates in 2013 

dollars and are subject to change. Details and 

assump ons for the cost es mates are shown in the 

appendix. The costs es mated for u lity reloca on 

($2.6 Million) are not included in the es mates 

shown in Table 9. 

 

Alternative 
Pavement 

Project 
24th to 

29th Ave 
29th to 

32nd Ave 
Total 

1 $2.1 $2.0 $0.5 $4.6 

3 $2.1 $2.3 $0.5 $4.9 

5 $2.1 $3.0 $0.5 $5.6 

Pavement Project – City of Eugene project is planned to 
include paving, ADA accessibility, and stormwater 
improvements from 24th to 29th Avenue 
24th to 29th Avenue – Additional costs vary by alternative 
29th to 32nd Avenue – Additional costs same for all 
alternatives 
*All costs are planning-level estimates subject to change 

Table 9: Planning‐Level Cost Es mates (Million 

Dollars, in 2013 Dollars)  

Section 5. Alternatives Refinement 

-104-

Item B.



47 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Travel lanes, sidewalks, bike lanes, intersec on design and transit stops are 

fundamental facility design elements. Each has a func on and must provide safety 

and comfort for the intended users. The configura on of these elements will play a 

part in the streetscape design of Willame e Street, as the percep ons of ease of 

travel and the sense of safety and comfort may change for different users with 

each alterna ve. 

The following sec on is focused on the elements of a unified streetscape that 

should be considered in conjunc on with the roadway facility design alterna ves 

described previously. The design concepts are intended to be er balance comfort, 

safety, and appeal for all users and may be incorporated into many or all Plan 

alterna ves to varying degrees. 

STREETSCAPE ELEMENTS 
Most of the right‐of‐way design elements that will be experienced and appreciated 

as a streetscape occur within the sidewalk corridor. The sidewalk corridor is 

defined by the roadway curbs and the back of sidewalks. When that corridor has 

been well‐designed, it accommodates three primary func ons, with design 

treatments to support those func ons. Figure 26 illustrates conceptual sidewalk 

corridors and how the streetscape elements and the pedestrian experience may be 

affected. 

Through Pedestrian Zone: Comfortable and unobstructed walking is the primary 

func on of the sidewalk corridor. Dra  federal guidelines developed by the Public 

Rights‐of‐Way Access and Advisory Commi ee (PROWAAC), require a minimum 

6. Streetscape Design 

There are mul ple 
elements of a successful 
street‐side realm. While 
right‐of‐way constraints 
and other limita ons can 
not be ignored, 
incorpora ng as many of 
these elements as feasible 
can help improve the 
func oning of the street. 

On-Street 
Parking 

-105-

Item B.



48 

width of 4‐feet and a preferred width of 5‐feet. A 

useful urban design standard is the ability of two 

people to walk comfortably side‐by‐side, which 

typically requires at least 6‐feet. 

Furnishings Zone: Accommodates streetscape 

elements such as u lity poles, street lights, planters, 

trees, benches, bike racks and bus shelters. It may 

also accommodate Low‐Impact Development (LID) 

features such as flow‐through storm water planters. 

Pedestrian ac vi es include transit boarding at 

designated stops, access to bike racks and access to 

on‐street parking. The minimum desired width is 4‐

feet, with preferred widths of 5‐feet to 7‐feet. 

Building Front Zone: For streets that support a 

significant amount of pedestrian‐oriented retail, with 

buildings set close to sidewalks, an addi onal 1‐foot 

to 2‐feet is desirable to support storefront displays 

and window shopping. 

DEVELOPING A DESIGN THEME 
Poten al elements of a streetscape design theme for 

Willame e Street are described in the following 

sec on. Graphic representa ons of the poten al 

elements are included in the appendix. 

Unifying Streetscape Elements 

Typical unifying elements of a streetscape are 

texture, color and form, along with other dis nc ve 

elements that create a unique func onal or art‐based 

character. Each of these elements can play an 

important role in the eventual transforma on of 

Willame e into a signature street for the district. 

Texture: Texture can be a unifying element by using 

a consistent pale e of materials such as paving, 

walls, columns and railings. Opportuni es for 

Willame e Street include sidewalk reconstruc on 

and textured crosswalks at intersec ons, formalized 

mid‐block pedestrian crossings or dis nc ve 

pavements for bike lanes. 

Section 6. Streetscape Design 

Figure 26: Sidewalk Corridor Design 

-106-

Item B.



49 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Color: Color is a unifying element visually linked to 

texture. Colors can e together places separated by 

distance and by func on. Opportuni es include any 

of the above elements that have special textures, as 

well as street furnishings such as bike racks, benches 

and bus shelters, and landscape materials with 

dis nc ve flowers or foliage colors. 

Form: Form can provide both visual unity and visual 

dis nc on. Both unity and dis nc on have a place in 

a well‐designed streetscape. Form also provides a 

sensed of orienta on within the public realm and can 

provide visual landmarks for the district. 

Opportuni es include site furnishings, pedestrian‐

scale ligh ng, signage and bus shelters. 

Addi onal Dis nc ve Elements ─ Green Street 

Green Streets are primarily thought of as innova ve 

facili es to treat and manage stormwater within the 

right‐of‐way. Those facili es create an ecological 

func on for our streets, in addi on to the tradi onal 

mobility and access func ons. There are a number of 

Green Street facili es for stormwater. The selec on 

of one or more facili es for Willame e Street will 

require detailed engineering analysis and consistency 

with exis ng City of Eugene stormwater standards. 

The choice of techniques will also be affected by the 

width of the sidewalk corridor in a preferred 

alterna ve. Typical facili es include the following: 

Flow‐Through Planters: Flow‐through stormwater 

planters are a common bioreten on facility in urban 

areas. They provide a dis nc ve architectural feature 

for the sidewalks of an urban Green Street where 

sidewalk widths are 12 feet or greater, with a 

minimum 5‐foot furnishing zone available. The design 

and loca on of planters should consider other 

sidewalk uses, such as outdoor sea ng storefront 

displays, as well as maintenance of adequate 

passenger loading/unloading space for on‐street 

parking. 

Basins: Because of their larger size, basins are usually 

located behind the sidewalk. They are an alterna ve 

to planters in the furnishing zone if the sidewalk 

width is too constrained to accommodate both the 

planter and a comfortable walking space for 

pedestrians. In those instances, the overall street 

right‐of‐way need may be greater, or a stormwater 

management easement required since the width of a 

basin is greater than a planter due to side slopes. 

 

Flow‐through planters serve for both landscaping and 
bioreten on.  

Example of a basin. 

-107-

Item B.



50 

Filterras: Proprietary devices that treat stormwater 

through a physical process using amended soil and 

bioreten on media combined with small street tree 

or a shrub. These devices can fit within the furnishing 

zone of a sidewalk corridor of 12‐feet or greater in 

width. 

Permeable Paving: Many of the impermeable 

surfaces within the sidewalk corridor could be 

constructed using permeable paving material such as 

landscape plan ng, permeable concrete or porous 

paving blocks. This requires well‐draining na ve soil. 

The disadvantages of permeable paving include 

difficul es with maintenance and repair, higher cost, 

and limited infiltra on effec veness of streets with a 

gradient over five percent. Permeable pavement can 

be used in conjunc on with other Green Street 

features and will help reduce the required size of 

these facili es by lessening the amount of runoff 

coming off the paved surface. 

Sidewalk Silva Cells: This technique creates a 

sidewalk rain garden along the roadway and par ally 

under the sidewalk. Rain falls directly on permeable 

pavers and planters. The silva cells extend the rain 

garden underneath the sidewalk and into a soil 

media that treats stormwater and nurtures the 

landscaping. 

Example of Filterras. 

Example of permeable paving. 

Example concept 
diagram of sidewalk 
silva cells, which are 
located under the 
edge of the sidewalk 
adjacent to the 
landscaping 
subgrade. 

Section 6. Streetscape Design 

-108-

Item B.



51 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

It should be noted that Green Street principles are 

not limited to stormwater management. Other key 

elements of a Green Street are: 

 Safe and appealing pedestrian environment 

 Mul modal travel choices 

 Maximizing opportuni es for trees and 

landscaping 

 Visual and physical connec ons to public 

spaces and open spaces 

 Renewable energy for public signs and 

ligh ng 

Addi onal Dis nc ve Elements ─ Public Art 

Public art becomes another means for people to 

interact with each other and with the urban context. 

Crea ng a lively public realm with art intrigues, 

challenges and inspires us as it becomes part of our 

larger goal of improving the quality if civic life. Within 

the unifying elements of streetscape, it is also 

another opportunity to explore texture, color and 

form. Implemen ng a public art program should 

include assessing the poten al for city and regional 

funding support and coordina on with local 

businesses. Examples of public art within or along a 

street right‐of‐way have been included in the 

appendix. 

SIDEWALK DESIGN 
Exis ng sidewalks on Willame e Street are generally 

narrow with numerous obstruc ons and no 

separa on from travel lanes. Each of the alterna ves 

presented assumes sidewalks will be widened to 

construct the maximum allowable width within the 

exis ng right‐of‐way. Wider sidewalks that extend 

beyond the exis ng right‐of‐way may be constructed 

incrementally as proper es redevelop. 

 

Sidewalks on South 
Willame e Street 
are generally 
narrow with 
numerous 
obstruc ons, no 
separa on from 
travel lanes, and a 
mixture of 
pedestrian and 
bicycle traffic. 

-109-

Item B.



52 

Sidewalk Widening 

Widening sidewalks will provide a more comfortable 

pedestrian environment that is accessible to more 

users and offers substan ally greater support for the 

success of future businesses as the area redevelops. 

Wider sidewalks may also provide opportuni es for 

landscaping, vegeta on, storm water/drainage 

elements (e.g., bioswales), café sea ng, overhead 

signing, decora ve ligh ng, bike parking, etc. 

Example of bioswales (Source: OTAK) 

Example of vegeta on/landscaping (Source: OTAK) 

Section 6. Streetscape Design 

Example of medium width sidewalk with furnishings and 
bike parking. 

Example of narrow sidewalk with clearly defined plan ng 
and furnishings zone. 

Example of wide sidewalk with plan ng buffer, street 
trees, and on‐street parking . 

-110-

Item B.



53 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

U lity Reloca on 

U li es (poles, hydrants, pedestals, etc.) currently 

located along the sidewalks result in an inconsistent 

and obstructed pedestrian environment. Reloca ng 

the u li es underground would improve the 

sidewalk environment by removing some barriers to 

pedestrian access and making the corridor more 

aesthe cally pleasing. Similar opportuni es, as were 

iden fied for widened sidewalks, would become 

available with u lity reloca on, since the available 

sidewalk space would be increased. 

Alterna ve 1 and Alterna ve 3 have the most 

constrained sidewalk condi ons (approximately 9‐

feet width with reconstruc on). Even minor 

adjustments of u lity pole loca ons to be fully within 

the Furnishings Zone represents a significant cost, 

but would increase the Through Pedestrian Zone to 

minimum widths. Reconstruc on of the sidewalk 

corridor to 13‐feet in Alterna ve 5 would require 

reloca on of all above‐ground u li es to the new 

Furnishings Zone loca on created by moving the curb 

lines into the current roadway area. In this scenario, 

ample pedestrian circula on space would be 

available. 

The planning‐level cost es mate for u lity reloca on 

on Willame e Street between 24th Avenue and 32nd 

Avenue is $2.6 Million.(15) Enhancing the Pedestrian 

Zone by moving u lity poles at select loca ons would 

be less expensive than pu ng all u li es 

underground. 

STREETSCAPE DESIGN MATRIX 
Figure 27 provides a summary matrix of how easily 

some of the typical ameni es of a streetscape can be 

accommodated within the sidewalk corridors 

depicted in the alterna ves. It is based on design 

principles described in the Streetscape Design Basics 

for Willame e Street figure (included in the 

appendix) and the accompanying narra ve. 

Example of u lity conflicts in sidewalk. 

-111-

Item B.



54 Section 6. Streetscape Design 

Figure 27: Ameni es Matrix 

Alternative 1 Alternative 3 Alternative 5 

-112-

Item B.



55 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

This sec on compares transporta on impacts of the three alterna ves advanced 

for the South Willame e Street Improvement Plan. Traffic analysis was performed 

for the year 2018, and results include es mates of intersec on opera ons, delay, 

vehicle queuing, travel me, neighborhood traffic shi  and mul modal system 

performance for bicycles, pedestrians and transit. The analysis findings are further 

detailed in Technical Memorandum #8. Three case studies are also provided. 

FUTURE TRAFFIC OPERATIONS 
Future year traffic opera ons were analyzed for 2018 based on forecasts of future 

travel demand for the study corridor. Travel volume forecasts were developed 

using the regional travel demand model developed by the Lane Council of 

Governments (LCOG). The LCOG model provides land use and transporta on 

es mates for base year 2011 and future year 2035. Traffic volumes for 2018 were 

developed by scaling between traffic counts taken in 2012 and future year 2035 

forecasts. 

Peak Hour Intersec on Opera ons 

Traffic opera ons analysis is based on applying 2000 Highway Capacity Manual 

methodology(16) for isolated intersec ons. The es mated average delay, level of 

service (LOS), and volume to capacity (v/c) ra o of each study intersec on is 

included. 

Table 10 compares traffic opera ons for exis ng condi ons (2012) and future year 

(2018) condi ons for the exis ng configura on of Willame e Street. As shown, all 

of the study intersec ons are an cipated to meet the minimum performance 

7. Transportation Impacts 

Par cipants at Community 
Forum #3, held in June 
2013, benefited from a 
group discussion about the 
three South Willame e 
Street corridor alterna ves 
and their expected 
transporta on impacts. 
The purpose of the forum 
was to inform par cipants 
about the alterna ves and 
solicit input regarding a 
preferred alterna ve. 

-113-

Item B.



56 

standard of LOS “D” opera ons. However, more 

delay is an cipated in 2018 as a result of expected 

growth in motor vehicle traffic volumes. 

Table 11 compares 2018 p.m. peak hour traffic 

opera ons for Alterna ves 1, 3, and 5.(17) Alterna ves 

3 and 5 are considered to be the same for motor 

vehicle traffic opera ons. Key facility design 

assump ons affec ng traffic opera ons are listed 

below: 

 Applying the proposed 3‐lane facility design 

(for Alterna ves 3 and 5) on Willame e 

Street at the 29th Avenue would result in 

failing opera ons (LOS F) with traffic demand 

reaching capacity (v/c of 1.0). Therefore, the 

previously described design modifica on was 

applied to include both of the exis ng 

southbound through travel lanes (and a le  

turn pocket) at 29th Avenue for Alterna ves 3 

and 5. 

 For northbound travel through the 29th 

Avenue intersec on, there are two travel 

lanes on Willame e Street included in 

Alterna ve 1 and one in Alterna ves 3 and 5. 

The exis ng second northbound travel lane 

would be replaced by bike lanes (Alterna ve 

3) or wider sidewalks (Alterna ve 5). 

 A traffic signal at the Woodfield Sta on 

Driveway intersec on is assumed to be 

constructed in each alterna ve. The signal 

provides a pedestrian crossing and improved 

turning opportuni es for motor vehicle 

traffic. 

 The Willame e Street approaches at 24th 

Avenue, 25th Avenue, and 27th Avenue 

intersec ons each have one through lane 

and a center le  turn lane (with permissive 

le  turn signal phasing assumed) in 

Alterna ves 3 and 5. 

For most study intersec ons, more delay is 

an cipated in Alterna ves 3 and 5 due to the 

reduc on of travel lanes for motor vehicles. 

However, all of the study intersec ons are 

an cipated to meet the minimum performance 

standard of LOS “D” opera ons in all alterna ves, 

Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

Intersection 
Operating 
Standard 

Existing P.M. Peak Hour 2018 P.M. Peak Hour 

Delay LOS V/C Delay LOS V/C 

Signalized               

Willamette Street/24th Avenue LOS D 12.4 B 0.61 (0.74) 12.5 B 0.62 (0.72) 

Willamette Street/25th Avenue LOS D 10.9 B 0.39 (0.50) 11.7 B 0.40 (0.51) 

Willamette Street/27th Avenue LOS D 8.6 A 0.47 (0.50) 9.5 A 0.51 (0.53) 

Willamette Street/29th Avenue LOS D 40.7 D 0.83 (0.85) 46.8 D 0.88 (0.90) 

Willamette Street/32nd Avenue LOS D 6.1 A 0.63 (0.63) 6.6 A 0.64 (0.64) 

Unsignalized               

Willamette Street/Woodfield 
Station Driveway N/A 4.7 A/D 0.58 4.7 A/D 0.59 

Signalized Intersections: 
LOS = Level of Service of Intersection 
V/C = Volume-to-Capacity Ratio of Intersection (Critical 

Movement) 

Unsignalized Intersections: 
LOS = Level of Service of Major Street/Minor Street 
V/C = Volume-to-Capacity Ratio of Worst Movement 

Table 10: Intersec on Opera ons – Exis ng (2012) and Future No‐Build (2018) 

-114-

Item B.



57 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

with the excep on of Willame e Street at 29th 

Avenue in Alterna ve 3 or 5. 

At the intersec on of Willame e Street and 29th 

Avenue, the southbound capacity is maintained (two 

southbound travel lanes and a le  turn pocket) to 

serve the peak direc on of travel (cri cal movement) 

resul ng in no significant change in traffic delay in 

the southbound direc on. However, the northbound 

approach has one fewer travel lanes and motor 

vehicle delay would increase for northbound travel. 

Furthermore, the northbound le  turn lane may 

regularly exceed the available storage length of 150 

feet. In the exis ng configura on (and Alterna ve 1), 

through traveling vehicles may use the right lane to 

get around when the le  lane is blocked by the full 

le  turn lane. With one through travel lane 

(Alterna ves 3 and 5), the second lane will not be 

available and therefore through traveling vehicles 

will be blocked. This situa on may be mi gated by 

modifying signal ming to provide more green me 

to the northbound le  turn (which requires 

increasing delay for other movements) or widening 

to extend the storage length of the northbound le  

turn pocket. 

Off‐Peak Intersec on Opera ons 

Intersec on opera ons were also analyzed for three 

periods outside of the p.m. peak hour: the a.m. peak 

hour (8‐9 a.m.), the mid‐day peak hour (12‐1 p.m.), 

and the p.m. peak shoulder (4‐5 p.m.). Traffic volume 

forecasts for each period were based on the traffic 

counts and the growth rate iden fied for the p.m. 

peak hour.(18) The off‐peak periods generally had less 

delay than the p.m. peak hour and all of the study 

intersec ons were an cipated to meet the minimum 

performance standard of LOS “D” opera ons in all 

alterna ves, with the excep on of Willame e Street 

at 29th Avenue during the a.m. peak hour in 

Alterna ve 3 or 5. 

Due to the direc onal characteris cs of the a.m. 

traffic volume, delay on northbound approaches is 

higher in the a.m. peak compared to the p.m. peak. 

The intersec on at 29th Avenue would have higher 

overall average delay in Alterna ve 3 and 5 during 

the a.m. peak hour compared to the p.m. peak hour. 

Alterna ve 3 and 5 provide one northbound through 

lane (compared to two in Alterna ve 1). The 

northbound approach volumes would come close to 

the available capacity during the 2018 a.m. peak, 

Intersection 
Operating 
Standard 

Alternative 1 Alternative 3 and 5 

Delay LOS V/C Delay LOS V/C 

Willamette Street/24th Avenue LOS D 13.2 B 0.63 (0.75) 22.4 C 0.80 (0.81) 

Willamette Street/25th Avenue LOS D 11.8 B 0.40 (0.51) 17.4 B 0.69 (0.91) 

Willamette Street/27th Avenue LOS D 10.7 B 0.51 (0.53) 13.9 B 0.82 (0.94) 

Willamette Street/Woodfield 
Station Driveway LOS D 12.0 B 0.41 (0.46) 16.2 B 0.45 (0.50) 

Willamette Street/29th Avenuea LOS D 48.5 D 0.87 (0.90) 56.3 E 0.90 (0.94) 

Willamette Street/32nd Avenue LOS D 6.6 A 0.64 (0.64) 6.4 A 0.63 (0.63) 

Signalized Intersections: 
LOS = Level of Service of Intersection 

a The saturation flow rate for the northbound approach was reduced by approximately 15% to reflect simulation results 
showing lanes being blocked in Alternatives 3 and 5. 

Table 11: Intersec on Opera ons for Alterna ves ‐ Future Year 2018 P.M. Peak Hour  

-115-

Item B.



58 

resul ng in slightly higher overall delay compared to 

the p.m. peak hour. 

Vehicle Queuing 

Traffic simula ons were performed for the 2018 p.m. 

peak hour to es mate expected vehicle queuing. The 

results of the p.m. peak hour vehicle queuing 

comparison between Alterna ve 1 and Alterna ves 3 

and 5 indicate that vehicle queuing increases most 

significantly for southbound through travel between 

24th Avenue and 27th Avenue and northbound 

through travel at 29th Avenue. 

Average southbound vehicle queues between 24th 

and 27th Avenue may increase by 50 to 150 feet (or 

approximately 2‐6 car lengths) at these intersec ons. 

However, with dedicated le  turn lanes present, 

vehicle queues for le  turns would decrease. At 29th 

Avenue, removing one of the two northbound 

through travel lanes would increase northbound 

vehicle queues by up to 200 feet (or approximately 8 

car lengths). As a result, access to the northbound 

le  turn lane may be blocked more frequently during 

peak hours. 

Overall, loca ons where motor vehicle lanes are 

reduced for through travel may expect to see vehicle 

queues approximately double in length. A 

comparison of the average southbound vehicle 

queue during the p.m. peak hour is illustrated in 

Figure 28 for Alterna ves 1 and 5. The simula on 

results including vehicle queuing for all lane 

movements are detailed in the appendix. 

Travel Time 

The es mated average travel mes between 24th 

Avenue and 32nd Avenue during the 2018 p.m. peak 

hour are summarized in Table 12 for each alterna ve 

and illustrated in Figure 29. The es mated travel 

mes are averages over the hour, based on traffic 

simula ons of a weekday p.m. peak hour in 2018. 

The base year simula ons were calibrated to field‐

measured travel mes for typical weekday travel. 

The simula on results including travel mes are 

detailed in the appendix. 

Results of the simula on indicate average p.m. peak 

hour travel mes would increase by approximately 

30 seconds in both direc ons for Alterna ves 3 and 

5. In addi on, the reliability of travel me may be 

be er in Alterna ve 1, as simula on results for 

Alterna ves 3 and 5 showed increased variance. 

Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

Figure 28: Comparison of Average Southbound  

Vehicle Queues 

-116-

Item B.



59 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Roundabout Evalua on 

To evaluate the effec veness of roundabouts on 

Willame e Street, each of the study intersec ons was 

analyzed with a poten al roundabout configura on. 

The assumed size and layout of the roundabouts 

analyzed are typical for urban environments. The 

results of the traffic opera ons analysis for the 2018 

p.m. peak hour indicate that that some intersec ons 

(at 24th Avenue and 27th Avenue) would have 

approaches opera ng near capacity during the p.m. 

peak hour if constructed as single lane roundabouts. 

Although roundabout opera ons would adequately 

serve traffic demand at the 25th Avenue and Woodfield 

Sta on Driveway intersec ons, mixing traffic signals 

and roundabouts in close proximity along the corridor 

could present nega ve outcomes for traffic opera ons 

and safety due to driver expecta ons. Roundabouts 

are not explicitly included in the facility design of any 

alterna ve but may be considered further as poten al 

design refinements. 

Bicycle Lanes Effects on Traffic Opera ons 

The bicycle lanes included in Alterna ve 3 would make 

Willame e Street a more a rac ve bike route to many 

types of riders. The bike lanes would also provide a 

buffer for pedestrians. Bike lanes make it easier for 

cars and trucks to maneuver in and out of driveways, 

compared to a three‐lane sec on with no bike lanes. In 

addi on, buses would stop in bike lanes during 

passenger boarding and aligh ng, which would provide 

addi onal space for motor vehicles to overtake the bus 

when it is safe to do so. 

Direction Alternative 1 Alternative 3 and 5 

Northbound (32nd Avenue to 
24th Avenue) 

2 minutes 55 seconds – 
3 minutes 05 seconds 

3 minutes 15 seconds – 
3 minutes 45 seconds 

Southbound (24th Avenue to 
32nd Avenue) 

3 minutes 20 seconds – 
4 minutes 10 seconds 

3 minutes 30 seconds – 
4 minutes 50 seconds 

Table 12: Travel Time Comparison for Alterna ves ‐ Future Year 2018 P.M. Peak Hour  

Figure 29: Change in Es mated Average Travel Times 

(2018 p.m. peak hour) for Alterna ve 3 & 5 

compared to Alterna ve 1 

-117-

Item B.



60 

However, to construct bike lanes either the roadway 

must be widened or exis ng travel lanes must be 

removed. Previous sec ons of this memorandum 

have covered the increased motor vehicle delay that 

results from removing travel lanes (i.e., traffic 

opera ons in Alterna ve 1 compared to Alterna ves 

3 and 5). This sec on discusses the differences in 

traffic opera ons between Alterna ve 3 and 

Alterna ve 5 (i.e., the effect of bike lines to 

otherwise iden cal roadway configura ons). 

Although bicycle lanes would not have a significant 

direct effect on motor vehicle opera ons, higher 

volumes of bicycles on the roadway may increase 

delays for turning motor vehicles. The magnitude of 

poten al increase in bicycle traffic is not precisely 

known. However, to demonstrate poten al 

sensi vity of motor vehicle opera on to bike lanes, 

the intersec on opera ons analysis was repeated 

with exis ng bicycle volumes doubled. Traffic 

opera ons analysis outputs, with bicycle volumes 

doubled for Alterna ve 3 are included in the 

appendix. 

The results of this analysis indicate that doubling bike 

volumes would increase average delay per motor 

vehicle by less than half a second at all study 

intersec ons. No changes to level of service were 

found to result from this sensi vity test. Therefore, 

motor vehicle traffic opera ons for Alterna ves 3 

and 5 are considered to be the same. 

Bus Pullout Effects on Traffic Opera ons 

Bus pullouts provide a dedicated space outside of the 

primary travel lane for passenger boarding and 

aligh ng. Where bus pullouts are constructed, buses 

exit the travel lane for passenger boarding and 

reenter (merge) a er boarding is complete. 

The primary benefit of bus pullouts is that motor 

vehicles avoid delays when the travel lane is blocked 

by stopped buses. However, bus service would likely 

incur increased delay and poten al conflicts when 

a emp ng to merge back into the travel lane. 

Therefore, transit operators o en prefer to locate 

bus stops within the travel lane. Lane Transit District 

(LTD) has no official policy on bus pullouts, but would 

generally prefer to keep curbside transit stops along 

Willame e Street.(19) 

To a empt to quan fy the effect of including bus 

pullouts, p.m. peak hour intersec on traffic 

opera ons were evaluated with and without bus 

blockages for Alterna ves 3 and 5. The analysis 

assumed the exis ng service frequency was doubled 

(i.e., twice the number of buses on the corridor 

rela ve to the exis ng service which provides two 

per hour north of 29th Avenue and the five per hour 

south of 29th Avenue.) Details for intersec on 

opera ons with bus pullouts are included in the 

appendix. Bus pullouts are not considered for 

Alterna ve 1 due to the presence of two travel lanes 

for most of the corridor. 

Although travel me would likely increase a few 

mes an hour for vehicles delayed behind slower‐

moving buses, the average effect for the overall p.m. 

peak hour is negligible. The results of the analysis 

indicate that bus pullouts would reduce average 

delay per vehicle by less than one second at all study 

intersec ons. No changes to level of service results 

were found. 

Due to the rela vely minor differences in travel 

delay, the right‐of‐way impacts if constructed, 

increased difficulty for bus opera ons and lack of 

support from LTD, bus pullouts are not included in 

any of the alterna ves. Construc ng bus pullouts 

may be revaluated with future redevelopment of the 

corridor or if addi onal transit services are provided 

(e.g., increased frequency, rou ng changes). 

 

Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

-118-

Item B.



61 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

TRAFFIC SHIFT 
Poten al changes in traffic pa erns could result 

from modifying por ons of Willame e Street from 

four motor vehicle travel lanes (in Alterna ve 1) to 

three (in Alterna ves 3 and 5). With increased travel 

mes on Willame e Street es mated for Alterna ve 

3 and 5, some traffic may shi  away from Willame e 

Street to other roadways. Table 13 and Figure 30 

iden fy es mated traffic volumes on Willame e 

Street for each alterna ve.(20) 

Traffic shi ing away from Willame e Street would 

primarily reroute to streets east of Willame e 

Street. Approximately two thirds of the shi  would 

go to Amazon Parkway and Hilyard Street. 

Approximately one third of the shi  would 

redistribute to streets west of Willame e Street 

including Lincoln Street, Jefferson Street, Adams 

Street and Polk Street. The traffic shi  west of 

Willame e Street would be fairly evenly distributed 

between those roadways. 

Scenario/Measure Average Daily P.M. Peak Hour 

Current Year (2012) 16,360 1,550 

Alterna ve 1 17,200 1,625 

Alterna ve 3 & 5 16,700 to 17,100 1,525 to 1,600 

Change (reduc on compared to Alterna ve 1) ‐100 to ‐500 ‐25 to ‐100 

Percent Change (compared to Alterna ve 1) ‐1 to ‐3% ‐2 to ‐6% 

Traffic volume es mates are for Willame e Street south of 27th Avenue 

Table 13: Willame e Street Traffic Volume Comparison for Alterna ves – Future Year 2018  

Figure 30: Average Daily Traffic Volumes 

-119-

Item B.



62 

MULTIMODAL LEVEL OF SERVICE 
Auto, pedestrian, bicycle and transit opera ons along 

Willame e Street were evaluated for the plan 

alterna ves by using the mul modal level of service 

(MMLOS) methodologies previously described for the 

exis ng condi ons analysis. The MMLOS evalua on 

assesses users’ perceived comfort level along a 

facility segment for each mode of transporta on. 

Analysis was performed based on 2018 p.m. peak 

hour condi ons when the higher traffic volumes 

would result in the worst case level of service for 

each mode of transporta on. Despite the previously 

noted limita ons of the approach, the MMLOS 

evalua on provides value as an objec ve comparison 

between alterna ves that consider mul ple modes. 

The expected MMLOS opera ons for Willame e 

Street in the 2018 p.m. peak hour are shown for 

Alterna ve 1 in Figure 31, Alterna ve 3 in Figure 32, 

and Alterna ve 5 in Figure 33. Results are 

summarized for each mode below: 

 The auto mode results indicate the best 

performance in Alterna ve 1, with 

southbound segments from 24th Avenue to 

27th Avenue degrading from LOS C or D to 

LOS F in Alterna ves 3 and 5. 

Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

Figure 31: Alterna ve 1 — 2018 PM Peak Hour Mul modal Level of Service (MMLOS) 

-120-

Item B.



63 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

 The pedestrian mode results are best for 

Alterna ve 5, with several segments 

improving due to wider sidewalks than 

Alterna ve 1 or 3. Alterna ve 3 results in the 

lowest pedestrian opera ons; LOS D 

southbound between 24th Avenue and 27th 

Avenue, due to the higher volume of vehicles 

in the near travel lane. It should be noted 

that the MMLOS methodology rates 

pedestrian comfort higher in Alterna ve 1 

than Alterna ve 3 despite the presence of a 

bike lane serving as a buffer between cars 

and pedestrians. 

 Bicycle opera ons would improve from LOS 

D to LOS B by replacing a motor vehicle lane 

with con nuous bike lanes (Alterna ve 3). 

However, bicycle opera ons would degrade 

from LOS D to LOS E on some segments if 

travel lanes are reduced without adding bike 

lanes (Alterna ve 5). 

 Transit opera ons are rated slightly higher in 

Alterna ve 1 than in Alterna ves 3 and 5 due 

to providing the highest level of mobility (i.e., 

travel me) for all motor vehicles, including 

buses. 

Figure 32: Alterna ve 3 — 2018 PM Peak Hour Mul modal Level of Service (MMLOS) 

-121-

Item B.



64 

CASE STUDIES 
Conver ng a 4‐lane roadway into a 3‐lane roadway 

has become a common prac ce to improve safety, 

accessibility and livability of a corridor. Several 

corridors with characteris cs similar to Willame e 

Street were selected as case studies to demonstrate 

the poten al effec veness of this strategy, which has 

been proposed in Alterna ves 3 and 5. 

The average daily traffic (ADT) is a key characteris c 

when selec ng comparable corridors, as there is 

concern that traffic volumes along Willame e Street 

will result in excessive conges on if it is converted to 

a 3‐lane roadway. Other important factors to 

determining the poten al effec veness of this 

strategy along Willame e Street include adjacent 

land use, number of driveways, and the frequency of 

signalized intersec ons. 

Table 14 summarizes the characteris cs of 

Willame e Street along with the corridors selected 

as case studies. Each case study is described in 

further detail in the following paragraphs. The 

roadway conversion outcomes are summarized in 

Table 15. 

Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

Figure 33: Alterna ve 5 — 2018 PM Peak Hour Mul modal Level of Service (MMLOS) 

-122-

Item B.



65 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Nickerson Street (Sea le, WA) 

In 2010, a 1.2 mile sec on of Nickerson Street was 

reconfigured from four lanes to two travel lanes, a 

two‐way le ‐turn lane, and bike lanes in select 

loca ons.(21) When compared to Willame e Street, 

this corridor carried slightly higher traffic volumes, 

was similar in adjacent land use and driveway 

frequency, and had fewer traffic signals. Similar to 

Willame e Street, it also had two local bus routes 

opera ng with peak headways of 15‐60 minutes. 

Collision, speed and traffic volumes were monitored 

before and a er the conversion to determine its 

effec veness. Prior to the conversion, motor vehicle 

speeds commonly exceeded the posted speed limit 

of 30 mph. The 85th percen le traffic speeds were 

Corridor Length 
Posted 
Speed 

ADT 
Number of Traffic 

Signals 
Adjacent Land Use 

Willame e Street 
(Eugene, OR) 

0.8 miles 25 mph 16,500 5 
Mostly commercial, some single‐
family homes and apartments 

Nickerson Street 
(Sea le, WA) 

1.2 miles 30 mph 18,500 4 
Commercial, light industrial, 
medium‐density residen al 

Fourth Plain Blvd 
(Vancouver, WA) 

1.0 miles 30 mph 17,000 5 
Single‐family residen al, some 
commercial and light industrial 

Edgewater Drive 
(Orlando, Florida) 

1.5 miles 30 mph 20,000 8 Commercial and retail 

Table 14: Case Study Corridors — Characteris cs Summary 

Outcome 
Category 

Measure Corridor Before A er Change 

Motor 
Vehicle 
Speed 

85th Percen le Speed Nickerson St. 
41 mph WB 
44 mph EB 

33 mph WB 
33 mph EB 

‐18% WB, 
‐24% EB 

Average Speed Fourth Plain Blvd. 29 mph 24 mph ‐18% 

Top‐End Speeders Nickerson St. 
17% WB 
38% EB 

1% WB 
2% EB 

‐92% WB, 
‐96% EB 

Top‐End Speeders Edgewater Dr. 18% 12% ‐33% 

Safety 

Collisions Nickerson St. 34 per year 26 per year ‐23% 

Collisions Fourth Plain Blvd. 4.2 per month 2.0 per month ‐52% 

Collision Rate (per Million 
Vehicle Miles) 

Edgewater Dr. 12.6 8.4 ‐34% 

Injury Collision Rate (per 
Million Vehicle Miles) 

Edgewater Dr. 3.6 1.2 ‐68% 

Volume 

Average Daily Traffic Nickerson St. 18,500 18,300 ‐1% 

Average Daily Traffic Edgewater Dr. 20,500 18,100 ‐12% 

Pedestrians Edgewater Dr. 2,136 2,632 23% 

Bicycles Edgewater Dr. 375 486 30% 

Note:    WB = Westbound, EB = Eastbound 

Table 15: Case Study Corridors — Roadway Conversion Outcomes Summary  

-123-

Item B.



66 

measured as 41 mph westbound and 44 mph 

eastbound. A er the reconfigura on, 85th percen le 

speeds reduced to approximately 33 mph in both 

direc ons, a decrease of 18% for westbound traffic 

and 24% for eastbound traffic. The number of top‐

end speeders (i.e., those traveling 10+ mph over the 

speed limit) was reduced by over 90% in both 

direc ons. 

The number of collisions was monitored for one year 

a er comple on of the project. A total of 26 

collisions were recorded, 23% less than the previous 

5‐year average of 33.6 collisions per year. Traffic 

volumes on Nickerson Street decreased from 18,500 

to 18,300 vehicles, or approximately 200 fewer 

vehicles per day (1% decrease). Poten al alterna ve 

routes also experienced slight decreases in traffic 

volume, indica ng that the change was likely part of 

a region‐wide decrease. 

Fourth Plain Boulevard (Vancouver, WA) 

In 2001, a 1.0 mile stretch of Fourth Plain Boulevard 

was restriped to include two travel lanes, a center 

two‐way le ‐turn lane, and bicycle lanes on both 

sides. This corridor is surrounded by slightly more 

residen al land uses than Willame e Street, but it is 

similar in ADT, driveway spacing, and number of 

traffic signals. There are several closely spaced 

signalized intersec ons along the western por on of 

the project. 

Figure 34 depicts condi ons along the corridor 

before and a er implementa on. In addi on, a post‐

Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

Figure 34: Before (Top) and A er (Bo om) Photos along Fourth Plain Boulevard(22) 

-124-

Item B.



67 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

COMMUNITY FORUM #3 – REFINE 
THE ALTERNATIVES 
Community Forum 3 was held in June of 2013. The 

project team presented more detailed informa on 

about the three alterna ves advanced for public 

considera on. The informa on included 

transporta on performance measures, traffic 

impacts of each alterna ve, more details of facility 

design, and cost es mates.  

The primary objec ve of the mee ng was to 

inform par cipants about the alterna ves and ask 

par cipants for input in regards to a preferred 

alterna ve. Input was received via a survey that 

was filled out at the mee ng or online. 

Survey Results 

The project developed a survey to gather public 

input on the impacts of the three remaining design 

alterna ves for the South Willame e Street 

Improvement Plan. Survey ques ons were 

designed to gather public opinion on the results of 

the transporta on analysis presented at 

Community Forum 3.  

The survey was conducted at both Community 

Forum #3 and online for a 7‐day period following 

implementa on report(22) was prepared to evaluate 

the impact of the roadway changes. It was found that 

speeds dropped approximately 18% (from 29 mph to 

24 mph) in the year following the conversion, 

stabilizing around 25 mph a erwards. The number of 

collisions dropped by more than 50% (from 

approximately four per month to two) following 

implementa on when compared to the previous 

three years of crash data. 

Traffic opera ons were a major concern associated 

with changing the lane configura on of the corridor. 

There were no reports of queues con nually 

interrup ng access to adjacent residences or 

businesses, rather, improvements in access were 

noted due to the addi on of a center turn lane. 

While minor increases in travel me were observed, 

improved quality of service and safety resulted in an 

overall posi ve ra ng for the project. Periodic signal 

ming adjustments were iden fied as a follow‐up 

task to ensure op mal performance between closely 

spaced intersec ons.  

Edgewater Drive (Orlando, FL) 

Edgewater Drive was transformed from four lanes to 

two lanes, a center two‐way le ‐turn lane, and bike 

lanes in 2002.(23) The project corridor was 

approximately 1.5 miles long and almost exclusively 

surrounded by commercial and retail land uses. This 

roadway serves as the primary north‐south road 

through the College Park neighborhood and carried 

approximately 20,000 vehicles a day prior to the 

conversion. Some por ons of Edgewater Drive have 

on‐street parking and there are numerous driveways 

and unsignalized intersec ons along the corridor. 

A before‐and‐a er evalua on of the implementa on 

found the crash rate decreased by 34%, with injury‐

causing crashes decreasing by 68%. It was reported 

that the number of vehicles traveling over 36 mph 

(posted speed of 30 mph) decreased from roughly 

18% to 12%. 

Traffic volumes along Edgewater Drive decreased by 

roughly 12%, dropping from 20,500 vehicles per day 

to 18,100 vehicles per day. While some loca ons 

adjacent to Edgewater Drive experienced up to a 30% 

increase in traffic volumes, the total combined traffic 

volumes on all the surrounding streets decreased by 

an average of 4%. Bicycle and pedestrian counts at 

18 loca ons indicated that the number of 

pedestrians increased by 23% and the number of 

bicycles increased by 30%. 

-125-

Item B.



68 Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

the June 11th forum. Out of approximately 275 

people who a ended Forum #3, 223 completed 

surveys. In addi on, 394 surveys were conducted 

online. Forum par cipants benefited from a 

presenta on and group discussion, while online 

par cipants relied on graphics built into the survey. 

The surveys are unscien fic and the results do not 

represent community demographics. Key highlights 

of the survey results are summarized below. 

 Safety, access to businesses, and improved 

pedestrian crossings rated highest on a list 

of nine possible objec ves for the study 

area. 

 Support was expressed for further 

evalua on of a poten al installa on of a 

traffic signal at the Woodfield Sta on 

driveway, with less than 20% of survey 

responses in the “definitely not” or “I don’t 

think so” response. The most common 

response was “It might be helpful.” 

 More than 60% of respondents said an 

addi onal 60 seconds of delay per trip on 

the corridor would be acceptable to them. 

 More than 50% of the respondents said 

they were “OK with the idea” for a small 

por on of Willame e Street traffic to shi  

to parallel routes during peak hours. 

Alterna ve 3 received the most favorable 

responses in mee ng the needs of the community 

amongst the three alterna ves presented.  

Figure 35: Online Public Survey Response—Mee ng Community Needs 

-126-

Item B.



69 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

Figure 36: Online Public Survey Response— Addi onal Delay 

-127-

Item B.



70 Section 7. Transportation Impacts 

STAKEHOLDER GROUP 
DISCUSSIONS 
In addi on to public mee ngs and an online 

survey, stakeholder group discussions were held at 

four key points during the Plan development 

process.  The discussions provided an opportunity 

to hear diverse perspec ves from business and 

property owners, freight vehicle operators, 

bicyclists, pedestrians, local residents, and 

commuters from south of the study area.  

Generalized stakeholder views are summarized 

below: 

Business and Property Owners, and Freight 

Vehicle Operators 

 Many stakeholders expressed serious 

concern about poten al nega ve impacts 

on businesses from reducing car travel 

lanes  

 Other stakeholders felt the status quo was 

unacceptable and welcomed change 

 Supported improved pedestrian 

environment and u lity reloca on 

 Final outcome should do no harm to 

exis ng businesses 

 Impacts of buses stopped in through lanes 

were a major concern  

 Must be func onal for EMS and large 

delivery vehicles 

 Supported development of bike routes on 

parallel streets with connec ons to 

Willame e Street 

 Mostly posi ve feedback toward adding a 

traffic signal at the Woodfield Sta on 

driveway 

Local Residents, Bicyclists, Pedestrians, and 

Commuters from South of the Study Area 

 Variety of opinions expressed 

 Many stakeholders favored 3‐lane with 

bike lanes (Alterna ve 3) while others 

strongly favored 4‐lane (Alterna ve 1) 

 Safety is a primary considera on for most  

 Separate pedestrians from bicyclists by 

adding bike lanes, otherwise bicyclists will 

use sidewalk 

 Some stakeholders felt that bike lanes on 

Willame e will never be safe 

 Some bicyclists felt that parallel routes are 

inadequate and that they have right to use 

public roadway for their chosen method of 

transporta on 

 Support for traffic signal at Woodfield 

Sta on driveway and addi onal pedestrian 

crossing opportuni es 

-128-

Item B.



71 South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 

(1) Tube counts collected south of the Willame e 

Street/27th Avenue intersec on on 7/22/2010 

(2) TransPlan: The Eugene –Springfield 

Transporta on System Plan, Lane Council of 

Governments, July 2002 

(3) Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan Road 

Reconfigura on Assessment, May 2011  

(4) Walkable Community Workshop Summary 

Report, May 2004  

(5) Willame e Street Traffic Analysis, McKenney 

Engineering, June 2001  

(6) City of Eugene 2007 Traffic Flow Map, 

downloaded from City website (www.eugene‐

or.gov) 

(7) 24‐hour data was collected on weekdays 

between May 28th and June 5th, 2013. 

(8) 24‐hour bi‐direc onal volume count taken on 

July 20, 2010 and 24‐hour speed counts taken on 

October 2, 2012.  

(9) Turn movement counts taken on October 2nd and 

3rd, 2012. 

(10) 24‐hour data was collected on weekdays 

between May 28th and June 5th, 2013. 

(11) Turn movement counts taken on October 2nd and 

3rd, 2012.  

(12) This analysis was performed using the LOS+ 

so ware that is a hybrid tool that u lizes two 

different MMLOS methodologies. The auto LOS 

component of the analysis is based on NCHRP 

Project 3‐70, while the pedestrian, bicycle, and 

transit components are based on the HCM2010. 

While NCHRP 3‐70 provided the basis for the 

MMLOS methodology described in the 

HCM2010, there were some significant 

differences. One of the main differences is that 

the LOS methodology for autos presented in the 

NCHRP 3‐70 report requires less input data and 

is less intensive computa onally. The LOS+ 

so ware was developed by Fehr and Peers.  

(13) The most recent three years of available collision 

data (2008‐2010) were obtained from the ODOT 

Crash and Analysis Repor ng Unit and verified 

against collision data provided by the City of 

Eugene. 

(14) 2011 State Highway Crash Rate Tables, ODOT 

Crash Analysis and Repor ng Unit, August 2011; 

Table II, pg. 7. 

(15) The cost es mate is based on 2013 dollars. The 

cost shown is a preliminary high‐level es mate, 

subject to change. Es mate was received by 

email on June 11, 2013 from Mark Oberle, 

Eugene Water & Electric Board. 

(16) 2000 Highway Capacity Manual, Transporta on 

Research Board, Washington DC, 2000. 

(17) The 2018 traffic analysis of alterna ves assumes 

bus service frequency is doubled compared to 

exis ng service. Pedestrian crossing volumes at 

study intersec ons are also assumed to 

approximately double. 

(18) The 2018 p.m. peak hour growth rate for each 

intersec on was applied to the traffic counts 

taken for the a.m. peak hour and p.m. peak 

shoulder to es mate the 2018 turn movement 

volumes. Although intersec on traffic counts 

were not available for the mid‐day peak hour, 24

‐hour bidirec onal counts taken on Willame e 

Street (south of 27th Avenue) were used together 

with the p.m. peak hour intersec on traffic 

counts to es mate the intersec on turn 

movements from 12‐1 p.m.  

(19) South Willame e Street Improvement Plan 

Memorandum from Will Mueller, Lane Transit 

District, March 12, 2013. 

 

 

Endnotes 

-129-

Item B.



72 

(20) The LCOG travel demand model was used to 

evaluate the poten al traffic shi  away from 

Willame e Street and the rela ve effects to 

other roadways. The expected traffic shi  was 

es mated by comparing differences in 

alterna ve model traffic volumes for the 2035 

p.m. peak hour.  

(21) Nickerson Street Rechanneliza on: Before and 

A er Report, Sea le Department of 

Transporta on, 2012 

(22) Fourth Plain Boulevard Demonstra on Re‐

Striping Project: Post Implementa on Report, 

City of Vancouver, WA, 2004. 

(23) Edgewater Drive Before and A er Re‐Striping 

Results, City of Orlando‐Transporta on Planning 

Bureau, 2002. 

Endnotes 

-130-

Item B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3424.doc 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Ceremonial Matters  
 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014 Agenda Item Number:  1 
Department:  City Manager’s Office  Staff Contact:  Beth Forrest 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5882 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This item is to acknowledge awards and achievements and inform the public of proclamations 
signed by the Mayor. No action is required by the City Council.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
At its 1997 fall process session, the council agreed to include a monthly agenda item entitled 
"Ceremonial Matters."  From time to time, the Mayor is asked to sign proclamations or 
acknowledge awards received, which serve to encourage and educate the community about 
important issues and events.  
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
This is an information item only.    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None.  
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Beth Forrest 
Telephone:   541-682-5882 
Staff E-Mail:  beth.l.forrest@ci.eugene.or.us 
 

-131-

Item 1.



 



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3425.doc 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Public Forum  
 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014 Agenda Item Number:  2 
Department:  City Manager’s Office   Staff Contact:  Beth Forrest 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5882 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This segment allows citizens the opportunity to express opinions and provide information to the 
council.  Testimony presented during the Public Forum should be on City-related issues and 
should not address items which have already been heard by a Hearings Official, or are on the 
present agenda as a public hearing item. 
 
  
SUGGESTED MOTION 
No action is required; this is an informational item only. 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Beth Forrest 
Telephone:   541-682-5882   
Staff E-Mail:  beth.l.forrest@ci.eugene.or.us  
 
 
  
 
 
  

-133-

Item 2.



 



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3426.doc 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Approval of City Council Minutes  
 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014  Agenda Item Number:  3A 
Department:  City Manager’s Office   Staff Contact:  Kris Bloch 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-8497 
   
 
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This is a routine item to approve City Council minutes.   
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the minutes of the April 28, 2014, Work Session and Meeting,  April 30, 2014, 
Work Session, May 12, 2014, Work Session and Meeting, and May 14, 2014, Work Session.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. April 28, 2014, Work Session and Meeting  
B. April 30, 2014, Work Session 
C. May 12, 2014, Work Session and Meeting 
D. May 14, 2014, Work Session  
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Kris Bloch 
Telephone:   541-682-8497   
Staff E-Mail:  kris.d.bloch@ci.eugene.or.us 

-135-

Item 3.A.



 



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     April 28, 2014    Page 1 
                      Work Session and Meeting 
 
   
  
 

ATTACHMENT A 
M I N U T E S 

 
Eugene City Council 

Harris Hall, 125 East 8th Avenue 
Eugene, Oregon 97401 

 
April 28, 2014 

5:30 p.m. 
 
Councilors Present:   George Brown, Betty Taylor, George Poling, Mike Clark, Greg Evans, Claire Syrett, 

Chris Pryor 
 
Councilors Absent:  Alan Zelenka  
 
Mayor Piercy called the April 28, 2014, City Council work session to order. 
 
A. Work Session:  City and County Partnership 

 
Planning and Development Director Sarah Medary, and Acting lane County Administrator Alicia 
Hays, gave a PowerPoint presentation on a proposed property exchange involving the County-
owned Butterfly Lot and a portion of the City-owned City Hall site.  
 
Council discussion 

• Eagerness conveyed to address much-needed improvements to Farmers’ Market. 
• Interest expressed in maintaining ownership of City Hall block. 
• Concerns expressed about parking for those who use the City Hall and the Butterfly lots. 
• Support conveyed for City and County working together on partnerships. 
• Further investigation on processes and cost needed. 
• Support for public hearing on the issue expressed. 
• Further study of feasible for the future needed. 

 
MOTION:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to direct the City Manager 
to work with the County to develop a proposed process, timeline and deal points that (a) 
would enable the preservation and future development of the Lane County Farmers’ Market 
on the Butterfly Lot and (b) would identify property for the future courthouse development 
on the City Hall lot, with the first step in that process being a joint public hearing before the 
County Board and City Council on the concept.  
 
AMENDED MOTION AND VOTE: Councilor Brown, seconded by Councilor Taylor, moved to 
amend the motion starting at (b) would identify and secure property for the future 
courthouse development on any City property other than the City Hall lot. 
FAILED 2:5, Councilors Brown and Taylor in favor.  
 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION:  PASSED 6:2, Councilors Brown and Taylor opposed.  

 
 

-137-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     April 28, 2014    Page 2 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

 
 
 
B. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ITEMS OF INTEREST FROM MAYOR, CITY COUNCIL AND CITY  
               MANAGER 
 

Mayor Piercy and councilors reported on the following 
• Mayor’s One-On-One on April 30 at 5:00 p.m.  
• LCOG finances improving significantly; LTD considered as a possible voting member. 
• Groundbreaking for Veterans Hospital well-attended.  
• Human Services Commission has created a Poverty and Homeless Board. 
• First Friday Art Walk coming May 2. 
• First Veterans of Foreign War Council commissioned at the University of Oregon.  

  
The work session adjourned at 6:39 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Chuck Crockett 
Deputy City Recorder 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-138-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     April 28, 2014    Page 3 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

 

 

M I N U T E S 
 

Eugene City Council 
Harris Hall, 125 East 8th Avenue 

Eugene, Oregon 97401 
 

April 28, 2014 
7:30 p.m. 

 
Councilors Present:   George Brown, Betty Taylor, George Poling, Mike Clark, Greg Evans, 

Claire Syrett, Chris Pryor 
 
Councilors Absent:           Alan Zelenka 

 
Mayor Piercy opened the April 28, 2014, City Council meeting. 

 
1. 
 
 
 
 
2. 

CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
Mayor Piercy read a proclamation recognizing “International Jazz Day and Jazz  
Appreciation Month”. 

PUBLIC FORUM 
  1.  Ronald Zauner, supported no bike lanes on South Willamette. 
  2.  Sarah Hucka, was happy with discussion over Butterfly lot and Farmers’ Market. 
  3.  Beth Little, supported the Butterfly lot being used for Famers’ Market.  
  4.  George McGuinness, wanted computer simulation done for South Willamette.  
  5.  Susan Tavakolian, supported keeping Bethel and Sheldon branch libraries open.   
  6.  Dennis Barr, supported the sick leave ordinance. 
  7.  Laura Illig, supported the sick leave ordinance.  
  8.  Megan Gleason, supported the proposed climate recovery ordinance. 
  9.  Adrian Engstrom, supported the climate recovery ordinance.   
10.  Lorene Hunt, recommended an Earth policy for City.  
11.  Nicholas Sanchez, supported the climate recovery ordinance.  
12.  Jennifer Frenzer-Knowlton, said closure of Whoville was deceptive.  
13.  Tracy Joscelyn, supported Whoville. 
14.  Joel Pomerantz, said hospitality industry will be hit hard if sick leave ordinance passes
15.  Justin Walker, said mandatory sick leave will be abused; needs to go to public vote.  
16.  Lee Mercer, surveyed 200 businesses in Eugene and 56% support paid sick leave.  
17.  Claire Seguin, said council should reconsider allocation of CDBG funds.  
18.  Debra McGee, said climate change needs a collective answer to a collective problem.  
19.  Mark Robinowitz, was not happy about potential Whole Foods in downtown Eugene.  
20.  Barbara Prentice, supported sick leave ordinance; Whoville.  
21.  David Nelkin, supported four lanes on South Willamette. 
22.  Jean Stacey, presented a story about homelessness. 
23.  Sharon Posner, supported keeping Bethel and Sheldon libraries open; add to ballet.  
24.  Zach Mulholland, said divestment isn’t enough; supported climate recovery ordinance. 
25.  Michael Adams, supported homeless advocates working with City to find solutions.  
26.  Sarai Johnson, supported reconsideration of allocations of CDBG funds.  

-139-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     April 28, 2014    Page 4 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

27.  John Barofsky, discussed the importance of CDBG funds.  
28.  Gavin McComas, did not support alley vacation; Whole Foods is not needed. 
29.  Brother Charley Ofs, did not support criminalization of homelessness. 
30.  Matthew Yook, supported climate recovery ordinance; we should be national leaders.  
31.  Art Bollman, was not happy with the City’s actions towards the homeless.  

Councilor Taylor requested more information about a computer simulation on South  
Willamette.  
 

 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to  
adopt the items on the Consent Calendar.  PASSED 7:0. 

 
4. ACTION:  Reprogramming of Community Development Block Grant Funds to the 

Emergency and Minor Home Repair Program 
 

Council discussion  
• Interest expressed in looking at Utah model. 
• Concerns expressed about giving up microeconomic funds. 
 

MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, move to  
approve the reprogramming of $150,000 in CDBG funds from the Microenterprise 
Development & Housing Acquisition projects to the Emergency and Minor Home  
Repair program. PASSED 7:0. 

 
 

5. ACTION:  Approval of 2014/15 Funding Allocations for Federal Community Development 
Block Grant and HOME Programs 
 
               MOTION AND VOTE: Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, move to approve  
               the One-Year Action Plan for use of Federal CDBG and HOME funds in FY 2014/15.  
              PASSED 7:0. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:26 p.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
Chuck Crockett 
Deputy City Recorder 

  

-140-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     April 30, 2014    Page 1 
                      Work Session 
 
   
  
 

ATTACHMENT B 
M I N U T E S 

 
Eugene City Council 

Harris Hall, 125 East 8th Avenue 
Eugene, Oregon 97401 

 
April 30, 2014 

12:00 p.m. 
 
Councilors Present:   George Brown, Alan Zelenka, George Poling, Mike Clark, Chris Pryor, Betty Taylor, 

Claire Syrett, Greg Evans 
 
Mayor Piercy called the April 30, 2014, City Council work session to order. 
 
A. WORK SESSION:  Bethel Community Park/YMCA Lease 

Parks and Open Space Planning Manager Neil Björklund and Recreation Services Director Craig 
Smith introduced the topic and provided background information.   
 
Council discussion 
• Great opportunity for Bethel area.  
• Like the idea of a library space; adequate parking will be needed.  
• This type of public/private partnership is promising. 
• Need to continue to offer resources like Echo Hollow Pool. 
• Conversations with LTD will be important.  

 
MOTION and VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to direct the City 
Manager to draft and execute a long-term lease with the Eugene Y consistent with the lease 
terms in Attachment A and the map of lease area in Attachment B, as corrected.   PASSED 8:0 

 
B. WORK SESSION:  Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) Update 

Wastewater Division Director Michelle Cahill and Matt Stauder from MWMC gave a brief 
PowerPoint presentation on the history of MWMC and an update of the program. 

 
Council discussion 
• Wastewater treatment is fundamental to civilization, protection of natural resources. 
• Rates reasonable compared with other comparable markets  
• Good outreach and public relations efforts with community and students.  
• Education on poplar farm and climate resiliency is important.  

 
The work session adjourned at 1:28p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Chuck Crockett 
Deputy City Recorder 

 

-141-

Item 3.A.



 



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     May 12, 2014    Page 1 
                      Work Session and Meeting 
 
   
  
 

ATTACHMENT C 
M I N U T E S 

 
Eugene City Council 

Harris Hall, 125 East 8th Avenue 
Eugene, Oregon 97401 

May 12, 2014 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Councilors Present:   George Brown, Betty Taylor, Alan Zelenka, George Poling, Mike Clark, Greg Evans, 

Claire Syrett, Chris Pryor 
 
 
Mayor Piercy called the May 12, 2014, City Council work session to order. 
 
A. EXECUTIVE SESSION (pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e)) 

The City Council met in executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e). The council returned to 
public session. 
 
                 MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to direct the 

City Manager to seek to purchase the Beverly property subject to the limitations 
discussed in executive session.  PASSED 8:0 

 
B. ACTION:  An Ordinance Vacating a Portion of Mill Alley, Located between East 8th Avenue and  

East Broadway, and a Portion of East 8th Alley, Located between High Street and Mill Alley 
(VRI 14-1) 
Planning and Development planner Becky Taylor gave background information, information on 
public testimony received and findings that show the ordinance is in the public interest.  
 
Mayor Piercy, councilors Brown and Clark declared potential conflicts of interest or ex parte 
contacts.  

 
Council Discussion: 
• Parking garage would be needed to accommodate proposed development. 
• Proposal does not offer public benefit. 
• Proposed development will take money away from local businesses. 
• Proposal is the public interest; pits filled downtown, lots being developed to help City thrive. 
• Lot can develop without alley vacation.  

 
MOTION and VOTE: Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to adopt 
Council Bill 5112, an ordinance vacating the portion of Mill Alley, located between East 8th 
Avenue and East Broadway, and the portion of East 8th Alley, located between High Street 
and Mill Alley, and retaining a public utility easement over Mill Alley, and providing for an 
effective date. PASSED 6:2, Councilors Brown and Taylor opposed. 

 
 
 

-143-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     May 12, 2014    Page 2 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

 C. ACTION:  Council Approval of Budget Committee Recommendation on Potential Library 
Levy Committee 

 
MOTION and VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to accept the 
Budget Committee’s recommendation regarding a possible library operating levy and ask the 
City Manager to gather the information necessary to inform the council about the possible 
amounts, timelines, uses and levy options for building a stable operating budget for both the 
downtown library and the two branch libraries. PASSED 8:0 

  
 

The work session adjourned at 6:39 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Chuck Crockett 
Deputy City Recorder 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-144-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     May 12, 2014    Page 3 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

  
M I N U T E S 

 
Eugene City Council 

Harris Hall, 125 East 8th Avenue 
Eugene, Oregon 97401 

 
May 12, 2014 

7:30 p.m. 
 
Councilors Present:   George Brown, Betty Taylor, Alan Zelenka, George Poling, Mike Clark, Greg Evans, 

Claire Syrett, Chris Pryor 
 

 
Mayor Piercy opened the May 12, 2014, City Council meeting. 

 
1. 
 
 
 
 
2. 

CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

The University of Oregon Men’s and Women’s Indoor Track Team were honored for winning 
the 2014 Indoor Track National Championships.  

PUBLIC FORUM 
  1.  Steve Johnson, expressed concerns with increased fees by LRCS to use City pools. 
  2.  Lynda Christiansen, said swim club can’t afford new rental fees to use City pools.   
  3.  Gordon Levitt, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance and wants council to act.  
  4.  Brian Cramer, said homeless camp should not be allowed near BMX track.  
  5.  George Rode, voiced concern about the timeline for the sick leave ordinance.  
  6.  Jean Stacey, said the City has failed to provide leadership and integrity on homeless issue.  
  7.  Patty Hine, supported the climate recovery ordinance.  
  8.  Lorene Hunt, supported a policy limiting City vehicle idling times.  
  9.  Ralph Parshall, said he does not support sick leave ordinance; should be up to business. 
10.  Julia Olson, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance and climate action.  
11.  Mike Go-wins, said the City won’t have enough time to enforce a sick leave ordinance.  
12.  Sarah Pishioneri, said the City needs to take climate change action.  
13.  Larry “Go Ducks” Newby, said the sick leave ordinance is too aggressive.  
14.  Elizabeth Brown, said strong government action on climate change is needed.  
15.  Cooper Brinson, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance. 
16.  Alice Stroud, said climate change is the most important issue facing the city.  
17.  Nicholas Sanchez, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance.  
18.  Anne Haugaard, was thankful the City values natural resources. 
19.  Kyra Gunther, noted the urgency of climate change action.  
20.  Karen McCombe, encouraged strong leadership on climate change.  
21.  Andrew Bednarek, said he is not happy about how fast sick leave ordinance is moving. 
22.  Jennifer Gordon, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance. 
23.  Melissa Turenne, said binding commitments are needed to meet goals of climate change. 
24.  Benjamin Mew, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance. 
25.  Megan Gleason, supported the Climate Recovery Ordinance and leadership of council. 
26.  Zach Mulholland, said global warming is no longer a future threat; action needed now. 
27.  Erik de Buhr, reported issues with Conestoga hut in alley; asked council to review.  
28.  Dino Deschaine, said BMX track is not an appropriate area for homeless camp. 
29.  Nicholas Fox, supported Climate Recovery Ordinance; concerned about global warming. 

-145-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     May 12, 2014    Page 4 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

30.  Jerry Smith, said regular advocacy from the City on climate issues needed.  
31.  Drix, said that tie dye should be the official color of the City. 
32.  Jayden Mialkovski, supported the sport of BMX. 
33.  Ryder Mialkovski, said he does not support a homeless camp at the BMX track. 
34.  Richie Weinman, Human Rights Commission, supported the sick leave ordinance. 
 

 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to 
approve the items on the Consent Calendar.  PASSED 8:0. 

 
4. WORK SESSION:  Fireworks 

Fire Marshal Al Gerard and Police Lieutenant Sean McGann gave background information  
on the proposed changes to the social hot ordinance; limited use days; and education and 
enforcement budgets related to fireworks.   

  
Council discussion  

• Utilize media free campaigns for education.  
• Provide detailed information on rules at places that sell fireworks.  
• Enforcement is the biggest issue. 
• Suggest creating an app to track. 
• Support a five- day usage period but not a total fireworks ban. 
• Work to create behavioral changes. 
• Concern limiting the usage days will harm local organizations who sell for fundraising.  
• Provide zones in which residents use fireworks. 

 
MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to direct the 
City Manager to schedule a public hearing on an ordinance to amend Eugene Code section 
4.670 to include unlawful use of fireworks as part of the list of offenses that may trigger 
social host liability, as shown in Attachment C. PASSED 8:0 
 
MOTION AND VOTE: Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to direct the 
City Manager to schedule a public hearing on an ordinance to limit the use of fireworks to 
January 1, July 3, 4, and 5 and December 31, as shown in Attachment D.  
PASSED 6:2 Councilors Poling and Clark opposed.  
 
MOTION AND VOTE: Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to identify 
options to provide additional funding for public education and enforcement concerning 
unlawful use of fireworks, in the amount shown in the table on page 2 of the Agenda Item 
Summary. PASSED 8:0 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Chuck Crockett, 
Deputy City Recorder 

 

-146-

Item 3.A.



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     May 12, 2014    Page 5 
                      Work Session and Meeting 

 

  
 

  

-147-

Item 3.A.



 



MINUTES – Eugene City Council                     April 30, 2014    Page 1 
                      Work Session 
 
   
  
 

ATTACHMENT D 
M I N U T E S 

 
Eugene City Council 

Harris Hall, 125 East 8th Avenue 
Eugene, Oregon 97401 

 
May 14, 2014 

12:00 p.m. 
 
Councilors Present:   George Brown, Alan Zelenka, George Poling, Mike Clark, Chris Pryor, Betty Taylor, 

Claire Syrett, Greg Evans 
 
Mayor Piercy called the May 14, 2014, City Council work session to order. 
 
A. WORK SESSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  Envision Eugene Implementation - An Ordinance 

Concerning Employment and Industrial Zones 
Interim Planning Director Carolyn Burke and Senior Planner Terri Harding gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the effect of the proposed code changes.   
 
Council discussion 
• Concerns with changing I-2 zone to C-2 zone expressed. 
• Support expressed for “do no harm” approach 
• Need to address rights of existing businesses to expand in future.  
• Connectivity to neighborhood and accessibility to all modes of transportation important. 

 
MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Pryor, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to adopt Council 
Bill 5111, an ordinance concerning Employment and Industrial zones contained in Attachment 
B.  Passed 8:0 

 
B. WORK SESSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: Envision Eugene Implementation – An Ordinance  
               Concerning Single-Family Code Amendments for Accessory Buildings, Alley Access Lots and  
               Secondary Dwellings 

Interim Planning Director Carolyn Burke and Senior Planner Alissa Hansen gave a  
PowerPoint presentation on the history of the code changes, background information and 
recommended direction on the code changes.  
 
Council discussion 
• Deliberation on each element preferred. 
• Piece-by-piece deliberation is not effective; proposed package of recommendations by 

neighborhood groups is well thought out.  
 

MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Clark, seconded by Councilor Evans, moved to direct the City 
Manager to come back on the third Monday in June public hearing with ordinance language on R-1 
code amendments that reflect the requested ordinance language that several councilors made two 
months ago, that was captured in the work done by the neighborhood leaders and detailed in the 
memo from Carolyn of two months ago.  (Clarification:  That language is what I would like to see the 
council, the third Monday is June, have a public hearing on, and to initiate the notice to affected 
property owners.)  PASSED: 5:3, Councilors Zelenka, Pryor, and Syrett opposed.  

-149-

Item 3.A.



2 

 
The work session adjourned at 1:28p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Chuck Crockett 
Deputy City Recorder 

 

-150-

Item 3.A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3431.doc 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
     

Approval of Tentative Working Agenda  
 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014  Agenda Item Number:  3B 
Department:  City Manager’s Office   Staff Contact:  Beth Forrest 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5882 
   
 
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This is a routine item to approve City Council Tentative Working Agenda.   
 
 
BACKGROUND         
On July 31, 2000, the City Council held a process session and discussed the Operating Agreements.  
Section 2, notes in part that, “The City Manager shall recommend monthly to the council which 
items should be placed on the council agenda.  This recommendation shall be placed on the 
consent calendar at the regular City Council meetings (regular meetings are those meetings held 
on the second and fourth Monday of each month in the Council Chamber).  If the recommendation 
contained in the consent calendar is approved, the items shall be brought before the council on a 
future agenda.  If there are concerns about an item, the item may be pulled from the consent 
calendar at the request of any councilor or the Mayor.  A vote shall occur to determine if the item 
should be included as future council business.”  Scheduling of this item is in accordance with the 
Council Operating Agreements.   
 
  
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
There are no policy issues related to this item. 
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The council may choose to approve, amend or not approve the tentative agenda. 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation on this item. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the items on the Tentative Working Agenda. 
 

-151-

Item 3.B.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3431.doc 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Tentative Working Agenda 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Beth Forrest 
Telephone:   541-682-5882   
Staff E-Mail:  beth.l.forrest@ci.eugene.or.us  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

-152-

Item 3.B.



EUGENE CITY COUNCIL  
TENTATIVE WORKING AGENDA 

May 21, 2014 

 

A=action; PH=public hearing; WS=work session 
M:\CMO\CC\CCAGENDA.docx  

 
MAY 27     TUESDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A.  WS: Climate Recovery 45 mins – CS/McRae 
      B.  Action:  South Willamette Street Improvement Plan 45 mins - PW/Henry 
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Ceremonial Matters (Willamette High School, Kids to Parks Essay Contest Winners) 
      2.  Public Forum 
      3.  Consent Calendar  
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
       b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
            c. Execution of Document to Provide for Payment of VA Clinic’s SDCs PW/Corey 
      4.  PH: Ordinance Concerning Prohibited Acts in the Downtown Activity Zone  EPD/Kerns 
      5.  WS: Proposed code changes related to Eugene skateboard and bicycle laws PW/Shoemaker 
 
MAY 28         WEDNESDAY         **  NOTE:  MEETING TIME CHANGE ** 
12:30 p.m.      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
      A.  WS: Envision Eugene – Residential Re-designation 60 mins – PDD/O’Donnell 
 
JUNE 3       TUESDAY              ** MEETING ADDED ** 
6:00 p.m.     Joint Public Hearing with Lane County  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  Poling 
     A.  PH: City/County Partnership PDD/Medary 
     B.  PH: Envision Eugene - Residential Re-designations PDD/O’Donnell 
 
JUNE 9      MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: Syrett 
     A.  WS:  MUPTE Program Revisions 90 mins – PDD/Braud 
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences: Syrett 
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar 
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
             b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
      3.  PH and Action: FY14 2nd Supplemental Budget CS/Silvers 
      4.  PH and Action: FY15 Budget CS/Silvers 
      5.  Action: Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees CS/Forrest 
 
JUNE 11      WEDNESDAY           
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  Syrett 
     A.  WS:  Library Levy  90 mins – LRCS/Grube 
 
JUNE 16     MONDAY            
7:30 p.m.     Council Public Hearing  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
      1.  PH: Ordinance Concerning Deer Fencing (CA 14-1) PDD/Kappa 
      2.  PH: Ordinance to Re-designate and Rezone “The Willamette Stationers’ Site” PDD/Taylor 

-153-

Item 3.B.



EUGENE CITY COUNCIL  
TENTATIVE WORKING AGENDA 

May 21, 2014 

 

A=action; PH=public hearing; WS=work session 
M:\CMO\CC\CCAGENDA.docx  

      3.  PH: Ordinance Amending Social Host Ordinance to Include Fireworks Fire, EPD/Gerard, Fellman 
      4.  PH: Ordinance Limiting the Usage of Fireworks Fire. EPD/Gerard, Fellman 
      5.  PH:  Ordinance Concerning Single Family Code Amendments PDD/Hansen 
 
JUNE 18         WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
      A.  WS:  Sick Leave Ordinance 90 mins – CS/Dedrick 
 
JUNE 23     MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A.  WS:  City Manager Performance Evaluation 45 mins – CS/Smith 
      B.  WS:  Sick Leave Ordinance 45 mins – CS/Dedrick 
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar  
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
       b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
      3.  Action: Ordinance Concerning Deer Fencing (CA 14-1) PDD/Kappa 
      4.  Action: An Ordinance to Re-designate and Rezone “The Willamette Stationers’ Site” PDD/Taylor 
      5.  Action: Ordinance Concerning Single Family Code Amendments PDD/Hansen 
 
JUNE 25         WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A.  WS:  Police Auditor Performance Evaluation 45 mins – CS/Smith 
      B.  WS:  Sick Leave Ordinance  45 mins – CS/Dedrick 
 
JULY 9      WEDNESDAY           
12:00 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
     A.  WS:  Beltline Highway Facility Plan 45 mins – PW/Henry 
     B.  WS:  Envision Eugene – Residential Re-Designation 45 mins – PDD/O’Donnell 
 
JULY 14     MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
     A.  Committee Reports: HRC, SC, Travel LC, HSC, LCOG, MPC, PSCC 30 mins 
     B.  WS:  Fossil Fuel Divestment Initiative  45 mins – CS/Miller 
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar 
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
             b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
      3.  Action:  Envision Eugene – Residential Re-Designations PDD/O’Donnell 
 
 
 
 

-154-

Item 3.B.



EUGENE CITY COUNCIL  
TENTATIVE WORKING AGENDA 

May 21, 2014 

 

A=action; PH=public hearing; WS=work session 
M:\CMO\CC\CCAGENDA.docx  

 
JULY 16      WEDNESDAY           
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
     A.  WS:   
     B.  WS:   
 
JULY 21     MONDAY            
7:30 p.m.     Council Public Hearing  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
      1.  PH: Ordinance Adopting Changes to the Public Contracting Code CS/Silvers 
      2.  PH: Sick Leave Ordinance (tentative) CS/Dedrick 
      3.  PH: Proposed code changes related to Eugene skateboard and bicycle laws PW/Shoemaker  
 
JULY 23         WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: Taylor 
      A.  WS:  Joint Meeting with EWEB 90 mins - CS 
 
JULY 28     MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
      A.  Committee Reports and Items of Interest from Mayor, City Council, and City Manager 30 mins 
      B.  WS: Sick Leave Ordinance (tentative) 60 mins – CS/Dedrick 
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar 
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
       b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
      3.  Action:  Ordinance Adopting Changes to the Public Contracting Code CS/Silvers 
      4.  Action:  Sick Leave Ordinance CS/Dedrick 
      5.  Action: Proposed code changes related to Eugene skateboard and bicycle laws PW/Shoemaker 
 
JULY 30         WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A.  WS:  Sick Leave Ordinance (tentative) 90 mins – CS/Dedrick 
      B.  WS:   
 
 
 
 
SEPTEMBER 8    MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
     A.  Committee Reports: PC, Lane Metro, Lane Workforce, LTD/EmX, OMPOC, McKenzie Watershed 
     B.  WS:  
     C.  WS: 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL BREAK:  July 31, 2014 – September 8, 2014 

-155-

Item 3.B.



EUGENE CITY COUNCIL  
TENTATIVE WORKING AGENDA 

May 21, 2014 

 

A=action; PH=public hearing; WS=work session 
M:\CMO\CC\CCAGENDA.docx  

 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar 
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
             b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest  
 
SEPTEMBER 10    WEDNESDAY           
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
     A.  WS:   
     B.  WS:   
 
SEPTEMBER 15   MONDAY            
7:30 p.m.     Council Public Hearing  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
      1.  PH:  
 
SEPTEMBER 17       WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
      A.  WS:   
      B.  WS:  
 
SEPTEMBER 22   MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A. Committee Reports and Items of Interest from Mayor, City Council and City Manager 30 mins 
      A.  WS:   
      B.  WS: 
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar  
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
       b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
 
SEPTEMBER 24       WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A.  WS:   
      B.  WS:   
 
OCTOBER 8    WEDNESDAY           
12:00 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
     A.  WS:   
     B.  WS:   
 
 
 
 

-156-

Item 3.B.



EUGENE CITY COUNCIL  
TENTATIVE WORKING AGENDA 

May 21, 2014 

 

A=action; PH=public hearing; WS=work session 
M:\CMO\CC\CCAGENDA.docx  

OCTOBER 13    MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
     A.  Committee Reports: HRC, SC, Travel LC, HSC, LCOG, MPC, PSCC 30 mins 
     B.  WS:   
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar 
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
             b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
 
OCTOBER 15    WEDNESDAY           
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
     A.  WS:   
     B.  WS:   
 
OCTOBER 20    MONDAY            
7:30 p.m.     Council Public Hearing  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:   
      1.  PH:  
 
OCTOBER 22        WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
      A.  WS:   
      B.  WS:   
 
OCTOBER 27    MONDAY           
5:30 p.m.     Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences:  
      A.  Committee Reports and Items of Interest from Mayor, City Council, and City Manager 30 mins 
      B.  WS:  
 
7:30 p.m.     Council Meeting  
Harris Hall     Expected Absences:  
      1.  Public Forum 
      2.  Consent Calendar 
       a. Approval of City Council Minutes    CS/Bloch 
       b. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda CS/Forrest 
 
OCTOBER 29        WEDNESDAY          
Noon      Council Work Session  
Harris Hall      Expected Absences: 
      A.  WS:   
      B.  WS:  
 
ON THE RADAR 
 
 
 
 

Work Session Polls/Council Requests 
 Status 
1.   Downtown smoking ban (Evans) .......................................................................................... Approved, date TBD 
 

-157-

Item 3.B.



 



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3432.docx  

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Action:  Execution of Document to Provide for Payment of Veterans Affairs Clinic’s 
Systems Development Charges   

 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014  Agenda Item Number:  3C 
Department:  Public Works   Staff Contact:  Kurt Corey 
www.eugene-or.gov/pw Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-8421 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This is an action item to direct the City Manager to execute a document that provides for the City’s 
payment of the Veterans Affairs (VA) Clinic’s Systems Development Charges (SDC) from future 
property tax revenue that the City will receive from the construction of the VA Clinic and that will 
allow the City to issue a building permit for the project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Generally, a current owner of record who wishes to develop their property must pay an SDC that 
is imposed when new development, expansion, or an intensification of use of property occurs that 
is served by City infrastructure (e.g., at construction of a new building or expansion or change of 
use of an existing developed site). The fees are used to fund the non-assessable portion of the 
construction of infrastructure (wastewater, stormwater, transportation, and park facilities) 
needed to support growth in the community and to recoup a portion of the community’s 
investment in the infrastructure already in place.  
 
Regarding the construction of the VA Clinic, in February 2012, the City Council directed the City 
Manager to look at what action the City could take in order to make sure that the City remained 
competitive for the siting of a new VA Clinic.  To that end, the City committed that the developer of 
a new VA Clinic would not be required to pay the City’s SDCs related to the VA Clinic.   
 
In order to ensure that the City’s SDC fund is able to pay for the infrastructure upon which the 
City’s SDC methodology is based, the City intends to make the SDC fund whole by paying the VA 
Clinic’s SDC fees with future property tax revenue that the City will receive from the construction 
of the VA Clinic.   
 
If approved by the Eugene City Council, the City Manager will execute a document whereby the 
City will pay the City-imposed SDCs related to construction of the VA Clinic from property tax 
revenue that the City will receive from the construction of the VA Clinic, with the first payment 
due on or before November 2017.  The estimated SDC amount is $1,100,000 (estimated 
installment payments of $110,000 per annum).   

-159-

Item 3.C.



 

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3432.docx 

 
The developer of the VA Clinic will soon be ready to pick up a building permit and before that can 
happen, a mechanism to address the SDCs needs to be in place. Approval of the recommended 
motion will allow the City to issue the building permit now, even though the actual payment for 
the SDCs will not happen until later.  This is similar to the mechanism that the City offers others 
who desire to pay their SDCs in installments, rather than all of the SDCs upfront.  Payment for the 
VA Clinic SDCs would essentially come from the future property tax dollars that the City receives 
from the private owner/developer of the VA Clinic (the federal government will be leasing the 
building, rather than owning it, which makes the building subject to property taxes).   
 
 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
The City's authority to establish and adopt system development charges (SDCs) is granted by the 
Eugene Charter of 1976 and by ORS 223.297 - 223.314. By virtue of that authority the City 
adopted Eugene Code, 1971 sections 7.700 - 7.740 and related provisions. 
 
The City Council adopted Growth Management Study (GMS) policies to provide direction for 
provision of infrastructure services related to new development:  

GMS Policy #14: Development shall be required to pay the full cost of extending infrastructure 
and services, except that the City will examine ways to subsidize the costs of providing 
infrastructure or offer other incentives that support higher density, in-fill, mixed-use, and 
redevelopment. 

 
 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The City Council can approve or not approve the execution of a document that provides for the 
City’s payment of the VA Clinic’s SDCs from future tax revenues.  
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager recommends proceeding with executing a document that provides for the City’s 
payment of the VA Clinic’s SDCs from property tax revenue that the City will receive from the 
construction of the VA Clinic. 
 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the City Manager proceeding with the execution of a document that provides for 
the City’s payment of the VA Clinic’s SDCs from property tax revenue that the City will receive 
from the construction of the VA Clinic, with the first payment due on or before November 2017.   
 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
None.  
 
  
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Kurt Corey, Public Works Director 
Telephone:   541-682-8421  

-160-

Item 3.C.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3432.docx  

Staff E-Mail:  Kurt.A.Corey@ci.eugene.or.us 

-161-

Item 3.C.



 



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3433.docx 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Public Hearing:  An Ordinance Concerning Prohibited Acts in the Downtown 
Activity Zone and Amending Section 4.872 of the Eugene Code, 1971  

 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014  Agenda Item Number:  4   
Department:  Police Staff Contact:  Lt. Eric Klinko 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5851 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
In 1972, the City adopted the Downtown Activity Zone to “renew, preserve and enhance the 
economic and aesthetic value of the city’s central business district” EC 4.870. This proposed 
ordinance adds two offenses to the list of prohibited activities, to address changing conditions in 
the downtown core.  Those changes are the prohibition of unlicensed dogs, and the closure of 
Broadway Plaza from 11 p.m. to 6 a.m.  
 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Downtown Activity Zone was established by the City Council by Ordinance 16614 in 1972.  It 
governs the behavior of people in the downtown core, and includes activities such as blocking 
sidewalks, leaving dogs unattended, and setting up temporary structures.   
 
For purposes of this tool, the Downtown Activity Zone includes the area between 6th and 11th, and 
High and Lincoln. 

 

Two provisions are being added to this existing tool to address current behaviors that are not 
“conducive to a harmonious blend of civil, social, cultural, residential and economic pursuits,” as 
the purpose of the Downtown Activity Zone outlines in EC 4.870.  The proposal prohibits 
unlicensed dogs in the Downtown Activity Zone.   
 
The second provision effectively closes Broadway Plaza from 11 p.m. to 6 a.m., except for through- 
traffic or other activities permitted by the City.  Violations of this provision are to be enforced in 
the same manner as the Parks and Open Space Rules, including the issuance of a notice of 
restriction of use.   
 
Penalty for violating this section is a fine not to exceed $500.  Any subsequent violation of the 
same prohibited conduct is punishable by a fine not to exceed $1,000, or confinement in jail not to 
exceed one year. (EC 4.990)  Actual penalties are established by the Municipal Court.   
 
 

-163-

Item 4.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3433.docx 

 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
Council goal – A community where all people are safe, valued and welcome. 
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
1. Subsequent to the hearing, the council may direct staff to amend the ordinance. 
2. Subsequent to the hearing, the council may direct staff to schedule this ordinance for action. 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
No recommendation is needed to hold a public hearing on the proposed code revisions. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
No motion is needed to hold a public hearing on the proposed code revisions.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A.  Proposed Ordinance 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Carter Hawley 
Telephone:   541-682-5852 
Staff E-Mail:  carter.r.hawley@ci.eugene.or.us   

-164-

Item 4.



Ordinance - Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING PROHIBITED ACTS IN THE DOWNTOWN 
ACTIVITY ZONE AND AMENDING SECTION 4.872 OF THE EUGENE CODE, 
1971. 

 
 THE CITY OF EUGENE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  Subsection (2) of Section 4.872 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

4.872 Downtown Activity Zone - Prohibited Acts. 
(1) Except when approved as part of an authorized activity, the following 

acts are prohibited in the public pedestrian areas within the downtown 
activity zone: 
(a) Interfering with an authorized activity. 
(b) Impeding access to any public pedestrian area or to any public or 

private building adjacent to the public pedestrian area. 
(c) Engaging in a commercial pursuit, except for personal solicitation 

and street entertainment. 
(d) Placing a display. 
(e) Placing a newspaper dispenser: 

1. Within ten feet of a street corner; 
2. Within one foot of a street curb; 
3. Within one foot of, or connected or affixed by any means to, 

a sidewalk fixture, such as a light pole, bicycle rack, planter, 
bench or art work; 

4. Except with the permission of the person in charge of the 
building, between the central traveled portion of the adjacent 
sidewalk and any window abutting a public pedestrian area; 
or 

5. Within the central traveled portion of the sidewalk or in any 
other location likely to impede pedestrian traffic. 

(f) Setting up or operating a public address system or other amplified 
sound equipment. 

(g) Permitting a dog to be present, unless the dog is licensed by 
the city, assisting law enforcement personnel, or assisting an 
individual with a disability. 

(2) In addition to the acts prohibited in subsection (1) of this section, except 
when approved as part of an authorized activity, the following acts are 
prohibited in the public pedestrian areas in the downtown core: 
(a) Climbing any tree. 
(b) Except for stairways, climbing any structure that is more than six 

feet in height on any side. 
(c) Climbing any structure in such a manner as to create a danger of 

personal injury or property damage. 

-165-

Item 4.



Ordinance - Page 2 of 2 

(d) Leaving a dog or other animal unattended, whether leashed or 
unleashed. 

(e) Creating or continuing a noise disturbance. 
(f) Entering into a landscaped planting area or acting in a manner 

harmful to any plant life, including walking, lying or sitting in a 
landscaped planting area.  A “landscaped planting area” is any 
public area set aside for planting of trees, shrubs, flowers or other 
vegetation, except grass. 

(g) Setting up any temporary structures or enclosures, including but 
not limited to canopies, tents or tables, or restricting access to any 
portion of the public pedestrian area so that other persons may 
not freely enter such area. 

(h) Picking or cutting flowers or other vegetation from landscaped 
planting areas. 

(i) Allowing a child who is in one’s charge and is under 12 years old 
to violate any provision of this section or of section 3.344. 

(j)   Entering or remaining on the Broadway Plaza (as defined in 
Resolution No. 4505) portion of the public pedestrian areas 
between the hours of 11:00 p.m. of one day and 6:00 a.m. of 
the succeeding day, except that moving through the plaza 
without stopping is not prohibited.  The prohibition of this 
subsection (j) may be enforced in the same manner as 
enforcement of the adopted Park and Open Space Rules, 
including issuance of a notice of restriction of use to 
violators. 

 
 Section 2.  The City Recorder, at the request of, or with the consent of the City Attorney, 

is authorized to administratively correct any reference errors contained herein, or in other 

provisions of the Eugene Code, 1971, to the provisions added, amended or repealed herein. 

 
Passed by the City Council this    Approved by the Mayor this 
 
___ day of _______________, 2014   ____ day of _______________, 2014  
 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
 City Recorder        Mayor 

-166-

Item 4.



 

 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY
 
  

Work Session:  Proposed Changes 
Eugene Skateboard and Bike Laws

 
Meeting Date:  May 27, 2014  
Department:  Public Works   
www.eugene-or.gov 
  
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
The City Council will receive a presentation on two proposed code changes to existing Eugene 
skateboard and bicycle laws.  Eugene law prohibits the use of motorized 
off-street paths, including electric 
City Code to allow electric assisted bikes 
device engaged.  Under Oregon law, electric
motorized vehicles.  Presently, there is a zone
allowed and another zone where sidewalk bike riding 
change would modify the current downtown Eugene skateboard
into one combined area.  No action is requested at this time.
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Electric Assisted Bicycles 
On February 14, 2005, the City Council approved a resolution prohibiting 
transportation devices on off-street paths, including 
operated exclusively by human power.
assisted bicycles, the council at that time 
exceptions for City staff and people with disabilities.
 
State law considers an electric assisted bicycle a bicycle rather than
the power of the electric motor and speed in which they can be operated (see attached Eugene and 
state law information). 
 
Since that time, there are more people using electric assisted bicycles for 
recreation.  We hear from people who want to purchase electric bikes
them and want to know if there are restrictions on their use and they are disappointed that they 
don’t have full access to all of Eugene’s bikeways.
 
City staff held several stakeholder 
input on the use of electric assisted bicycles

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter

OUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

UMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 

Proposed Changes to Eugene Code Related to 
Eugene Skateboard and Bike Laws  

 Agenda Item Number:  
 Staff Contact:  

Contact Telephone Number:  

The City Council will receive a presentation on two proposed code changes to existing Eugene 
Eugene law prohibits the use of motorized transportation devices on 

 assisted bicycles.  The first proposal is to change the Eugene 
assisted bikes to be ridden on Eugene off-street paths with the electric 

law, electric assisted bicycles are considered bicycles and not 
Presently, there is a zone downtown where sidewalk skateboarding

allowed and another zone where sidewalk bike riding is prohibited.  The second proposed code 
e would modify the current downtown Eugene skateboard-bicycle no sidewalk

action is requested at this time. 

On February 14, 2005, the City Council approved a resolution prohibiting the use of 
street paths, including electric assisted bicycles, when not being 

operated exclusively by human power.  While there was discussion of exceptions for electric 
at that time chose to prohibit all forms of motorized devices with 

people with disabilities. 

State law considers an electric assisted bicycle a bicycle rather than a motor vehicle and restricts 
the power of the electric motor and speed in which they can be operated (see attached Eugene and 

Since that time, there are more people using electric assisted bicycles for transportation 
hear from people who want to purchase electric bikes or already have purchased 

them and want to know if there are restrictions on their use and they are disappointed that they 
Eugene’s bikeways. 

 meetings and a public meeting in November 
on the use of electric assisted bicycles and the downtown skateboard-bike

Document Converter\temp\3434.docx 

Related to  

Agenda Item Number:  5 
Staff Contact:  Lee Shoemaker 

Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5471 
 

The City Council will receive a presentation on two proposed code changes to existing Eugene 
transportation devices on 

assisted bicycles.  The first proposal is to change the Eugene 
street paths with the electric 

assisted bicycles are considered bicycles and not 
where sidewalk skateboarding is not 

The second proposed code 
sidewalk riding zones 

the use of all motorized 
when not being 

ion of exceptions for electric 
chose to prohibit all forms of motorized devices with 

a motor vehicle and restricts 
the power of the electric motor and speed in which they can be operated (see attached Eugene and 

transportation and 
or already have purchased 

them and want to know if there are restrictions on their use and they are disappointed that they 

a public meeting in November 2013 to solicit 
bike no sidewalk 

 

-167-

Item 5.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3434.docx  

riding zone.  Approximately 45 people attended the meeting with 27 people supporting this 
proposal and 10 people opposed.  The main reasons cited in support were:  need an extra boost 
especially when carrying children or cargo; this would help older, less fit, or people with physical 
limitations; want an alternative to driving a car; and, want to be able to use entire bike network.  
Most of those opposed were concerned about the speed of an electric bike and two cited the East 
Alton Baker Park Plan which discourages the use of motorized vehicles.  Staff believes some of the 
opposition is based on confusing an electric assisted bicycle with motorized scooters. 
 
Staff is bringing this proposal to the City Council for the following reasons: (1) Eugene’s code is 
inconsistent with state law which considers an electric assisted bicycle to be a bicycle, rather than 
a motor vehicle, for purposes of the Oregon Vehicle Code, (2) legalizing the use on paths may 
increase biking usage, and (3) public requests.  Staff proposes to make an exception to allowing 
electric assisted bicycles use on paths with the electric assist engaged in East Alton Baker Park.  
The exception could be revisited if that plan is updated. 
 
Downtown Skateboard-Bicycle No Sidewalk Riding Zone Modification 
City staff frequently hear complaints from the public about skateboard and bicycle sidewalk riding 
in downtown Eugene.  Many of the complaints are from older residents who are concerned that 
they may be seriously injured if they are hit by a person riding on the sidewalk.  There are two no  
sidewalk riding zones, one for people skateboarding and another for people biking (see attached 
map).  Having two different zones is confusing to the public which may result in more violations. 
 
Transportation planning staff also engaged the public and other City employees in a discussion of 
the downtown skateboard-bicycle no sidewalk riding zones.  At the public meeting, 21 people 
supported a modification with 16 opposed.  Reasons for supporting the zone modification 
included: more people are walking downtown; bike riding and skateboarding on downtown 
sidewalks creates unsafe conditions for pedestrians especially for seniors; and, there is a need to 
include the sidewalks around the 13th and Olive apartments and the Eugene Hotel.  Reasons for 
opposing the zone modification:  it will limit students’ ability to skate and bike; zone is already too 
restrictive and it will limit downtown through-trips by skateboard; and, it’s too dangerous to bike 
on downtown streets. 
 
Through the community dialogue and discussions with Eugene police officers, a proposed new 
zone is recommended (see attached map) for council consideration.  The factors used to 
determine the new zone were:  pedestrian safety; public input; ease for the public to know 
boundaries of the zone; compact area for efficient enforcement; and reduced costs for stencils or 
signs. 
 
Staff is bringing this proposal to the council for the following reasons:  (1) increase pedestrian 
safety; and, (2) simplify the zone for better public understanding and enforcement. 
 
 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
TransPlan (2002) 
TSI Pedestrian Policy #1:  Pedestrian 
Provide for a pedestrian environment that is well integrated with adjacent land uses and is 
designed to enhance the safety, comfort, and convenience of walking. 

-168-

Item 5.



 

C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\3434.docx 
 

Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan (2012) 
Policy 2.1: Continually improve bicycling and walking comfort and safety through design, 
operations and maintenance including development of “low stress” bikeways to attract new 
cyclists. 
 
Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Strategic Plan 
3.1.5 Examine reasons for riding bikes on downtown sidewalks and work to ameliorate the 
problem through an education campaign and accompanying enforcement. 
 
3.1.6 Re-examine the “no bikes on sidewalks” zone for possible expansion.  
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Option 1 - Direct staff to prepare an ordinance and hold a public hearing on proposal to allow 
people to ride electric assisted bicycles on off-street paths with the electric assist device engaged. 
 
Option 2 - Direct staff to prepare an ordinance and hold a public hearing on proposal to modify 
downtown no skateboard-bike sidewalk riding zone. 
 
Option 3 – Voice support for existing laws.   
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
No recommendation at this time.  This item is scheduled for a July 21, 2014, public hearing.  
Following the public hearing, the City Manager will make a recommendation to be included on the 
council agenda and scheduled for action on July 28, 2014.  
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
None.  Information only. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Related Eugene Code and State Laws Related to Proposed Changes 
B. Map of Existing and Proposed Skateboard-Bike No Sidewalk Riding Zones 
  
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Lee Shoemaker 
Telephone:   541-682-5471   
Staff E-Mail:  lee.shoemaker@ci.eugene.or.us  

-169-

Item 5.



 



1 
 

Eugene Code and State Laws Related to Proposed Changes 

1.  Electric assisted bicycles 

Related City Code 

5.010  

Definitions.   

In addition to those definitions contained in ORS Chapters 801 to 825, and Chapter 153, 
the following words or phrases, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning shall mean: 

Motorized transportation device.   

Any vehicle that is not propelled exclusively by human power, including but not limited 
to, an electric assisted bicycle (when not being operated by human propulsion), an 
electric personal assistive mobility device, a moped, a motor assisted scooter, a motor 
vehicle, a motorcycle, a motorized skateboard, any similar vehicle that operates without 
human propulsion.   
 

5.160 Unlawful Use of Motorized Transportation Device. 

(1) No motorized transportation device may be operated on any city owned 
off-street bicycle or pedestrian path or trail, unless exempt.  A 
motorized transportation device is exempt from this provision if it is 
used as a mobility aid by a person with a mobility impairment, used by 
a person with express permission from the City, or used by a City 
employee or agent in the course of City business. 

(2)   No person shall operate a motorized transportation device in a manner 
causing excessive, unnecessary, or offensive noise which disturbs the 
peace and quiet of any neighborhood or which causes discomfort or 
annoyance to a reasonable person of normal sensitivity. 

(Section 5.160 added by Ordinance No. 20340, enacted March 4, 2005, effective April 3, 
2005; administratively corrected June 15, 2005.) 

Oregon Revised Statutes 

814.405 Status of electric assisted bicycle. An electric assisted bicycle shall be 
considered a bicycle, rather than a motor vehicle, for purposes of the Oregon Vehicle 
Code, except when otherwise specifically provided by statute. [1997 c.400 §4]       

-171-

Item 5.



2 
 

801.258 “Electric assisted bicycle.” “Electric assisted bicycle” means a vehicle that: 

      (1) Is designed to be operated on the ground on wheels; 

      (2) Has a seat or saddle for use of the rider; 

      (3) Is designed to travel with not more than three wheels in contact with the ground; 

      (4) Has both fully operative pedals for human propulsion and an electric motor; and 

      (5) Is equipped with an electric motor that: 

      (a) Has a power output of not more than 1,000 watts; and 

      (b) Is incapable of propelling the vehicle at a speed of greater than 20 miles per hour 
on level ground. [1997 c.400 §2; 1999 c.59 §233] 

2.  Bike-Skateboard Riding Prohibitions in Downtown Core 

Eugene City Code 

5.400 Operating Rules. 

(1) No person may ride a bicycle on a sidewalk in that area bounded by the 
outer limits of Charnelton Street on the west, 6th Avenue on the north, 
Pearl Street on the east, and 11th Avenue on the south. 

(2) No person may park a bicycle in or near a public thoroughfare or place 
in such a manner as to obstruct traffic or endanger persons or property. 

(3) A person riding a bicycle 

(a) In a lane for vehicular traffic or parking may ride only in the 
direction legally prescribed there for that traffic. 

(b) In a lane for vehicular traffic or parking shall ride as closely to 
the curb as is safe, but when approaching an intersection where a 
curb lane is designated "Left Turn" or "Right Turn" shall avoid 
that lane within 50 feet of the intersection if intending to ride 
through the intersection without turning. 

(c) On a street or alley shall ride in single file with other bicyclists 
whenever a motor vehicle is approaching within 100 feet to the 
rear. 

(d) On a bicycle path or a sidewalk shall keep as far to the right as is 
safe, except when overtaking and passing pedestrians and other 
vehicles, which shall be overtaken and passed only on the left. 

-172-

Item 5.



3 
 

(4) Peace officers, police community service officers, police volunteers, 
and parole and probation officers performing official duties are exempt 
from the provisions of this section. 

(Section 5.400, formerly section 5.410, renumbered and amended by Ordinance No. 
17690, enacted June 28, 1976; amended by Ordinance No. 20496, enacted October 8, 
2012, effective November 10, 2012.) 

5.450 Skateboards. 

(1) As used in this section, a "skateboard" means a board of any material natural or 
synthetic with wheels affixed to the underside, designed to be ridden by a person and 
propelled by human power. 

(2) No person shall ride a skateboard: 

(a) On any sidewalk within the area bounded by the western sidewalk along 
Charnelton Street between 8th Avenue and 11th Avenue, the northern sidewalk along 8th 
Avenue from Oak Street to Charnelton Street, the eastern sidewalk along Oak Street 
between 8th and 11th Avenues, and the southern sidewalk along 11th Avenue between 
Oak and Charnelton Streets, or on either side of Willamette Street between 8th and 7th 
Avenues, or in the area between the Eugene Conference Center and the Hult Center. 

(b) In any multi-level parking facility within the city. 

(c) Within ten feet of any major bus transfer station. 

(d) In the portion of a street designated for automobile traffic, except when crossing a 
street in a crosswalk or at a right angle. 

(e) On Alder Street, including the sidewalks thereof, between and including the 
southern sidewalk of East 12th Avenue and the northern sidewalk of East 14th Avenue, 
nor on East 13th Avenue, including the sidewalks thereof, between and including the 
eastern sidewalk of Pearl Street and the eastern sidewalk of Kincaid Street. 

(3) A person commits the offense of unsafe operation of a skateboard on the sidewalk 
if the person does any of the following: 

(a) Rides a skateboard upon a sidewalk where prohibited; 

(b) Rides a skateboard upon a sidewalk where not otherwise prohibited and does not 
yield the right of way to all pedestrians on the sidewalk; or 

(c) Rides a skateboard on a sidewalk in a careless manner that endangers or would be 
likely to endanger any person or property. 

-173-

Item 5.



4 
 

(Section 5.450 added by Ordinance No. 19623, enacted June 26, 1989; amended by 
Ordinance No. 19693, enacted June 11, 1990; amended by Ordinance No. 20057, enacted 
August 12, 1996; and Ordinance No. 20071, enacted November 4, 1996, effective 
December 4, 1996.) 

 

-174-

Item 5.



Proposed Skateboard-Bike
No Sidewalk Riding Zone

Legend
Proposed New Zone
Existing Bike Zone
Existing Skateboard Zone
Taxlots

North Sidewalk 
only on 13th Ave

East Sidewalk
only on Lincoln St

Existing 
Skateboard Zone

Existing 
Bike Zone

Proposed 
New Zone

OA
K 

ST

HI
GH

 ST

OL
IVE

 S
T

PE
AR

L S
T

MI
LL

 A
LY

HI
GH

 A
LY

OA
K 

AL
Y

PE
AR

L A
LY

CH
AR

NE
LT

ON
 S

T

WI
LL

AM
ET

TE
 S

T

W 6TH AVE

W 7TH AVE

W 8TH AVE

E 15TH AVE

E 14TH AVE

E 13TH AVE

E 11TH AVE
W 11TH AVE

W 10TH AVE

W 13TH AVE

E 8TH AVE

W 5TH ALY

W 6TH ALY

W 7TH ALY

E 10TH AVE

E 7TH AVE

W BROADWAY

E 12TH AVE
W 12TH AVE

E 5TH AVE

E 10TH ALY

E 6TH AVE

FE
RR

Y A
LY

W BROADWAY ALY

E 8TH ALY

W 14TH AVE

OL
IVE

 A
LY

W 11TH ALY

E 12TH ALY

LIN
CO

LN
 S

T

LA
W

RE
NC

E 
ST

W 15TH AVE

W 10TH ALY

W 8TH ALY

MI
LL

 ST

LIN
CO

LN
 A

LY

HILYARD ST
CH

AR
NE

LT
ON

 A
LY

E BROADWAY
LA

W
RE

NC
E A

LY

E 14TH ALY

E 13TH ALY

FE
RR

Y S
TR

EE
T B

RI
DG

E

E 11TH ALY

E 14TH ALY

W 8TH ALY

PE
AR

L A
LY

LIN
CO

LN
 A

LY

OL
IVE

 A
LY

OA
K 

AL
Y

W 15TH AVE

WI
LL

AM
ET

TE
 S

T

W 15TH AVE

W 10TH ALY

MI
LL

 ST

OL
IVE

 A
LY

W 8TH ALY

LIN
CO

LN
 S

T

LA
W

RE
NC

E 
ST

MILL ST

´
Caution:

This map is based on imprecise
source data, subject to change,
and for general reference only.

0 250 500125
Ft

-175-

Item 5.



 


	AGENDA
	CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONHarris Hall
	A. WORK SESSION:
Climate Recovery Proposal
	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachment A]
	[Powerpoint.pdf]

	B. ACTION:
				South Willamette Street Improvement Plan

	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachment A]


	CITY COUNCIL MEETINGHarris Hall
	1. CEREMONIAL MATTERS
	[Agenda Item Summary]

	2. PUBLIC FORUM
	[Agenda Item Summary]

	3. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachment A]
	[Attachment B]
	[Attachment C]
	[Attachment D]

	B. Approval of Tentative Working Agenda
	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachment A]

	C. Execution of Document to Provide for Payment of Veterans Affairs Clinic’s Systems Development Charges
	[Agenda Item Summary]


	4. PUBLIC HEARING: 
An Ordinance Concerning Prohibited Acts in the Downtown Activity Zone and Amending Section 4.872 of the Eugene Code, 1971

	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachment A]

	5. WORK SESSION:
	Proposed Changes to the Eugene Code Related to Eugene Skateboard and Bike Laws

	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachments A and B]



